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1                  -  -  -

2    (Councilman Jones sitting as Chair.)

3     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Good morning,

4 everyone.  This is a Public Hearing of the

5 Committee of the Whole regarding Bills No.

6 150162, 150163, 150164 and Resolution No.

7 150179.

8     Ms. Lewis, would you please read the

9 titles of the bills and resolutions.

10     MS. LEWIS:  Bill No. 150162:  An

11 Ordinance to adopt a Capital Program for the

12 six Fiscal Years 2016-2021 inclusive.

13     Bill No. 150163:  An Ordinance to adopt

14 a Fiscal 2016 Capital Budget.

15     Bill No. 150164:  An Ordinance adopting

16 the Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2016.

17     And Resolution No. 150179:  Providing

18 for the approval by the Council of the City

19 of Philadelphia of a Revised Five Year

20 Financial Plan for the City of Philadelphia

21 covering Fiscal Years 2016 through 2020, and

22 incorporating proposed changes with respect

23 to Fiscal Year 2015, which is to be

24 submitted by the Mayor to the Pennsylvania
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1 Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority (the

2 "Authority") pursuant to the

3 Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement,

4 authorized by an ordinance of this Council

5 approved by the Mayor on January 3, 1992

6 (Bill No. 1563-A), by and between the City

7 and the Authority.

8     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Thank you very much.

9 Today we'll be hearing testimony from the

10 following departments:  The Department of

11 Behavioral Health, the Health Department,

12 the Department of Human Services and

13 Supportive Housing.

14     Will the first group to testify for the

15 Administration please come forward to the

16 table.

17   (Witnesses approaches witness table.)

18     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Dr. Evans, welcome

19 back.  Thank you very much.  And if you will

20 pull the mic a little closer to you, and

21 when you begin testimony, please state your

22 name.

23     DR. EVANS:  Okay.  Good morning,

24 Councilman Jones and Members of Council.  My
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1 name is Dr. Arthur C. Evans.  I'm the

2 Commissioner for the Philadelphia Department

3 of Behavioral Health and Intellectual

4 Disability Services.  And I'm here to

5 present testimony on our FY2016 operating

6 budget.  Joining me today is Deputy

7 Commissioner David Jones as well as many

8 senior staff who are in the audience.

9     The FY16 DBHIDS Operating Budget request

10 totals $1.2 billion:  13.9 million in the

11 General Fund, 254.8 million in the Grants

12 Revenue Fund and 961.6 million in the Health

13 Choices Behavioral Health Revenue Fund.

14 DBHIDS -- the DBHIDS FY16 budget will

15 support 259 positions, 16 in the General

16 Fund and 243 in the Grants Revenue Fund.  Of

17 the $1.2 billion, 61 million or 5 percent is

18 for intellectual disability and early

19 intervention services, an 1.1 million or

20 95 percent is for behavioral health

21 services.

22     Class 100 totals $24 million.  Class 200

23 totals $1.2 billion.  Class 300 totals

24 $221,000.  Class 400 totals 185.9 million --
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1 $185,940.  And Class 800 totals

2 $1.6 million.

3     The department is not requesting City

4 funds beyond those already allocated to

5 support current operations for FY16.

6 99 percent of the Department of Behavioral

7 Health Intellectual Disability Services

8 funding comes from state and federal

9 government, including over 960 million from

10 the state to provide managed behavioral

11 healthcare for 120,000 City residents

12 receiving medical assistance benefits

13 annually.

14     In late March of this year, Drexel

15 University Lindy Institute for Urban

16 Innovation released a report entitled, "The

17 Economic Impact on Behavioral Health and

18 Intellectual Disabilities," spending on the

19 City of Philadelphia.  For the 1 percent of

20 funding that comes from the general fund,

21 the report found that the impact of spending

22 by the department on the Philadelphia

23 economy is nearly $4 billion including

24 25,400 jobs.  In terms of annual tax
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1 revenues to the City, DBHIDS is responsible

2 for generating $36.1 million.  For every

3 dollar DBHIDS spends, the report continues

4 results in $2.50 in additional economic

5 activity.

6     The Department Minority Women and

7 Disabled participation target was 8 percent.

8 And the Department achieved 10 percent.

9 Participation by minority and minority and

10 women in both leadership positions and

11 workforce composition among DBHIDS nonprofit

12 contract service providers remains high.

13 Specifically, 91 percent of the total

14 workforce and 72 percent of the executive

15 staff of nonprofit contract agencies are

16 comprised of minority or female employees.

17 The number of contract providers with formal

18 plans to promote supplier diversity has

19 increased from 50 percent in FY13 to

20 65 percent in FY14.  And I should note that

21 this initiative has been highlighted by

22 OEA -- OEO as a model practice.

23     In terms of living wage, this department

24 contracts with over 70 agencies to provide a
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1 range of behavioral health services for

2 children and adults across the City.  I'm

3 pleased to report that while originally 15

4 contractors submitted requests for wage

5 and/or benefit waivers pertaining to the new

6 standards, in dialogue with them, with

7 myself and Deputy Commissioner David Jones,

8 12 of the 15 contractors subsequently

9 achieved compliance and withdraw their

10 waiver petitions.  Ultimately, only three

11 contractors pursued and were granted waivers

12 which were based on either collective

13 bargaining or training considerations.

14     The department will continue to

15 encourage and promote universal compliance

16 with the new standards across the contract

17 service network.  Over the past ten years,

18 the department has partnered with a broad

19 range of stakeholders to transform how the

20 City approaches behavioral health and

21 intellectual disability issues.  Behavioral

22 health and intellectual disability services

23 have traditionally focused on symptom

24 stability and crisis response.  DBH has
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1 replaced these priorities with services and

2 expectations promoting genuine recovery from

3 behavioral health and addiction challenges,

4 strengthening the resiliency of children and

5 offering individuals with intellectual

6 disabilities opportunities to exercise

7 choice and self determination.

8     Accomplishments achieved during this

9 transformation decade have garnered local,

10 national and international attention due to

11 the fact that our approach is working.

12 Local innovations have attracted visitors

13 from across the United States and around the

14 world who seek to replicate Philadelphia's

15 model.

16     The department's achievements have been

17 recognized by major news outlets including

18 the New York Times, the National Public

19 Radio, the Wall Street Journal, Essence

20 Magazine and even youth oriented media

21 outlets like Matchbook.com.  Numerous

22 behavioral health journals and professional

23 organizations have cited the department's

24 progressive forward-thinking approaches
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1 frequently referenced as the Philadelphia

2 Model.  And recently, I was invited to join

3 the launch of a national awareness campaign

4 that featured First Lady Michelle Obama

5 because of Philadelphia's reputation as an

6 innovator and national leader in this area.

7     The department's emphasis on advancing a

8 public health approach which includes

9 population health promotion, community

10 wellness and a focus on social determinence

11 of health has been a cornerstone of our

12 transformation.  We continue to do a variety

13 of topics -- a variety of activities that

14 promote education and promote early

15 intervention for people experiencing mental

16 health challenges.

17     The department also remains committed to

18 our belief that Philadelphia residents who

19 depend upon our services should be afforded

20 ample access to state of the art behavioral

21 health interventions.  Based on this

22 commitment, we continue to expand the

23 availability of evidenced-based treatment

24 approaches.  To enhance the impact of these
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1 approaches, the department has partnered

2 with multiple internationally acclaimed

3 originators of evidence-based practices.

4     The department is also continuing it's

5 Pay For Performance Program.  This program

6 provides financial incentives for top

7 performing providers in our Medicaid Managed

8 Care Program, which is administered by CBH.

9 This program significantly improves -- has

10 significantly improved provider performance

11 in a number of areas resulting in better

12 outcomes for people receiving services and

13 significant savings to the department

14 because of increase efficiencies such as

15 reduced avoidable readmissions to inpatient

16 settings.

17     In conclusion, we appreciate the

18 support continuing -- we appreciate the

19 continuing support of Councilmembers in the

20 ongoing effort to highlight public health

21 issues and to secure the resources required

22 to meet the growing demand for behavioral

23 health and intellectual disability services.

24 My staff and I would welcome the opportunity
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1 to meet with Councilmembers at your

2 convenience to engage in further discussion

3 regarding these issues.

4     I would also like to extend a personal

5 invitation to you and your staff to

6 participate in mental health first aid

7 training.  Our City has emerged as a

8 national leader for raising awareness to

9 fighting stigma to foster safe and

10 supportive community.  The Mental Health

11 First Aid Program has exceeded expectations

12 due to the wide interest from the public and

13 private organizations including First

14 Responders like the Police Department, the

15 Fire Department, the School District, faith

16 organizations and individuals across a broad

17 section of our community.  And this year we

18 are on track to sup -- surpass 10,000 people

19 trained in mental health first aid.

20     With that, I will end my verbal

21 testimony and I welcome your questions.

22     Thank you.

23     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Once again, good

24 morning.  Thank you for your testimony.
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1     I guess I should start by thanking you

2 for your intervention on Parkside Avenue

3 with the methadone clinic there.  We had

4 experienced some interaction issues related

5 to the community and the proper

6 administration of that program.  You stepped

7 in.  We had, I think, one or two meetings,

8 two at the most.  And the problem has been,

9 for the most part, remediated to everyone's

10 satisfaction, to the clients that leave

11 those types of services and to the community

12 that host those kinds of programs.

13     So, I want to thank you publicly on the

14 record.  To say that your intervention made

15 a world of difference.  There is so much so

16 that there are plans for increased

17 development out in that area that was

18 spurred by the fact that we resolved some of

19 the congregation problems.  So, I publicly

20 want to thank you for that.

21     DR. EVANS:  Well, I want to thank you.

22 And first of all, I really appreciate as

23 Commissioner of this department your

24 political leadership, your leadership in not
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1 just complaining but coming to us.  And not

2 only coming to us and asking us to solve the

3 problem, you personally went to that

4 provider, you went to -- along with me to

5 that provider.  You sat at meetings.  You

6 problem solved.  And as a result, that

7 problem was -- that problem was resolved.

8     And I think that the way you approach

9 that really is a model for how we can have

10 services in communities and meet the needs

11 and expectation of communities in terms of

12 development, in terms of community

13 expectations.  And I just can't thank you

14 enough for your personal involvement.

15     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Now once we got that

16 out of the way, now we get to the hard

17 questions.

18     DR. EVANS:  Okay.  I wanted to continue

19 the love fest.

20                 (Laughter)

21     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Can't keep that up

22 for a long period of time.

23     DR. EVANS:  Okay.

24     COUNCILMAN JONES:  I really -- no hard
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1 questions for me.  You have a 9-to-1 ratio

2 of City dollars to federal dollars, I think,

3 that are transmitted through the state; is

4 that correct?

5     DR. EVANS:  That's correct.  So we --

6 our budget, as I said in my testimony, about

7 1 percent of our budget -- $1.2 billion is

8 City general fund, about $13 million.

9 Almost all of that $13 million is used for

10 match to the state to draw down federal and

11 state dollars.  So, it's a really great

12 investment on the City's part, 9-to-1

13 dollars for every dollar the City puts in.

14     I also said in my testimony that recent

15 study by Drexel University showed that for

16 that investment, the City gets back

17 $36 million in direct tax revenue.  So, we

18 are way ahead in terms of the investment

19 that City puts into this department.

20     COUNCILMAN JONES:  One of the issues

21 that President Clarke, who is going to join

22 us shortly, has been a champion of is

23 wraparound services for public education.

24 Dealing with, I think a couple years ago, a
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1 parent advocate for public education said

2 that kids from our neighborhoods come to

3 school with two book bags; one with the

4 books and the lessons of the day, and the

5 other with the troubles of the night before

6 from home.

7     And so to address that, can you explain

8 how you are offering services to some of our

9 more challenged schools in Philadelphia?

10     DR. EVANS:  Sure.  So, we actually have

11 probably the best relationship with the

12 School District that we've had certainly in

13 my tenure here.  I think Dr. Hite has been

14 tremendous in terms of his understanding of

15 the importance of addressing the social and

16 emotional needs of children.

17     I meet with him on a regular basis.  We

18 have ongoing staff meetings between my staff

19 and his staff.  We, as a department, invest

20 $75 million each year in direct services

21 that are provided within the schools.  Some

22 of those services are school, what are

23 called therapeutic services, some of those

24 are preventions services, some of those are

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 16

1 student assistance program services.  And

2 that broad range of services really is

3 designed to meet the needs, the behavioral

4 health needs of children to address those

5 needs such that those issues do not impact

6 on their ability to learn.

7     COUNCILMAN JONES:  So, what does that

8 mean to a -- what schools qualify and what

9 kind of services -- is it a case by case?

10     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

11     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Is it a school by

12 school kind of relationship?

13     DR. EVANS:  So what I would say is that

14 at the outset is that every child, whether

15 they are in a school that has a specific

16 program or not and who is eligible for

17 behavioral health services, we ensure that

18 they get those services.  So whether they

19 receive those services in school or in the

20 community, we -- our role is to make sure

21 they get those services.

22     For the schools that have services, and

23 we're in about 107 different schools --

24 actually 132 schools.  Those services have
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1 been -- those schools have been identified

2 really based on the number of children who

3 are in those schools who receive Medicaid

4 and who have behavioral health needs.  So,

5 where we have resources is, to a large

6 degree, historical based on that.  One of

7 the conversations we're having with Dr. Hite

8 right now is a lot of these decisions were

9 made 10 years ago, 15 years ago.  And the

10 conversation we're having is, you know, are

11 these schools where you have the highest

12 needs today.

13     So, we're in those conversations.  We're

14 in the process of doing some redesign on

15 some of the school-based services.  And

16 simultaneously, we're having those

17 discussions about where do we redeploy

18 those -- those services so they're at the

19 schools with the highest need.

20     COUNCILMAN JONES:  So, Doctor, I've had

21 an opportunity now to have visited every

22 school based on Councilwoman Sanchez' and

23 Councilwoman Blackwell's insistence.  I have

24 actually been in every one of my schools.
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1 And some schools are more challenged than

2 others.

3     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

4     COUNCILMAN JONES:  The spectrum of

5 special needs is a bit higher.

6     So my question kind of relates to, A,

7 how many children in the public school

8 system are eligible for Medicaid and

9 Medicaid services and are covered?

10     And then, how soon will we prioritize

11 schools that have a higher percentage of

12 these types of services or poverty-related

13 stresses that come with that?

14     DR. EVANS:  Sure.  So, I don't remember

15 what the exact percentage is.  But in

16 Philadelphia, just to give you some

17 perspective, in a city of 1.5 million

18 people, we have about a third of the

19 population that is qualified for medical

20 assistance.  That's just at the outset.  And

21 if you look at children, the proportion of

22 children in the Philadelphia schools is

23 fairly high.  I would think in the 60 to

24 70 percent range, but I can get the exact
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1 number.

2     So in most schools in Philadelphia, the

3 overwhelming majority of children in those

4 schools are eligible for Medicaid services.

5 And for those children who are not, we have

6 other ways that we can provide services to

7 them.

8     COUNCILMAN JONES:  So, I will be anxious

9 to see how you prioritize and what the

10 correlations will be for that connectivity.

11 There are some schools, for whatever reason,

12 poverty related, have greater stressors --

13     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

14     COUNCILMAN JONES:  -- than others.  And

15 in order for children to actually receive

16 the lessons of the day, they have to -- they

17 have to deal with a whole bunch of other

18 related problems that I know you guys are

19 capable of addressing.

20     So, I'm going to turn it over to

21 Chairwoman Tasco who has a -- on the clock

22 also.  She's up next.  So, I may join you

23 shortly.

24     DR. EVANS:  Okay.
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1   (Chairwoman Tasco now sits as Chair.)

2     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Good morning.

3     DR. EVANS:  Good morning.

4     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Good morning to all

5 of you who have come out today to testify

6 on, I guess, the whole spectrum of health

7 services that we provide in the City of

8 Philadelphia.  And I want to say thank you

9 so much for your leadership in the

10 Department of Behavioral Health and

11 Intellectual Disability Services.  I think

12 when we started out it was just behavioral

13 health.

14     DR. EVANS:  Yes.  We've had a few name

15 changes over the years.

16     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Yes.  And thank you

17 for the -- your leadership and your role in

18 bringing this department forward.  And I

19 just want to say this will be my last

20 budget, and thank you for your support and

21 helping.  I have enjoyed working with you,

22 and I know that we are moving forward.

23     We have come a long way from the days

24 that we sat in here with that young lady
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1 dealing with some of my constituents out

2 there, advocates who we worked with through

3 the years to change the whole picture of

4 public health in Philadelphia.

5     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

6     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  And so, we thank

7 you for your leadership.

8     I think I just have a couple of

9 questions.  You may have read them in your

10 testimony and, of course, my ears were not

11 open.

12     I'm aware of a diversity program for

13 offenders with mental health issues operated

14 as a partnership between the Police

15 Department and the Department of Behavioral

16 Health.  Would you please brief us on the

17 program and its current source of funding.

18 Also, has your department and the Police

19 Department taken steps to make this program

20 permanent?

21     DR. EVANS:  Sure.  So the -- we actually

22 have a very good relationship with Police

23 Department Chief Ramsey.  Commissioner

24 Ramsey really understands the importance of

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 22

1 behavioral health issues and having a strong

2 partnership.

3     When he came in, the program that you're

4 referring to is the CIT Program, which is

5 Crisis Intervention Training.  It's actually

6 a national program.  It's done in almost all

7 the major cities around the country.  A few

8 years ago we, through conversations with the

9 Police Department, were able to get buy-in

10 from the Police Department.  When

11 Commissioner Ramsey came in, he really

12 embraced the program.

13     Then basically what the program is, is a

14 one week training course that teaches police

15 officers how to identify and intervene

16 appropriately with people who are in

17 psychiatric distress.  It's been very

18 successful.  When Commissioner Ramsey came

19 in, we had on an unfortunately a fairly

20 regular basis incidence where police

21 officers had shot and, in some cases, killed

22 someone who is in psychiatric distress.

23     Since we've implemented this program, we

24 have not had any of those kinds of
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1 situations that he and I have been -- that

2 been brought to our attention.  We trained

3 about 40 percent of the uniform police

4 officers.  That's over 2,000 officers.  I

5 can tell you I have done ride alongs with

6 police officers.  I have seen CIT trained

7 officers.  They really do a good job of

8 handling situations where it's clear that a

9 person has a mental health challenge.

10     And it's one of our strategies to try to

11 divert people who shouldn't be in the

12 criminal justice system out of the criminal

13 justice system and into appropriate

14 treatment.

15     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Well, are all -- at

16 any time will all of the police officers be

17 trained?  Is that the goal?

18     DR. EVANS:  So, what Commissioner Ramsey

19 has said is that he'd like to see every

20 officer in the Police Department get the

21 training.  And I think, you know, at the

22 rate that we're going, we're going to reach

23 that number.  We are probably 40 percent of

24 uniformed officers.  We are not only
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1 training police, Philadelphia police, but

2 we're training the university police

3 departments, SEPTA police.  We're even

4 training some of the federal agencies in

5 town.

6     So, what we're really trying to do is

7 when people who have mental health

8 challenges come into contact with law

9 enforcement, for that first contact to be

10 people who are trained to recognize, spot

11 and have a differential response in those

12 cases.  I should also say that the police

13 are now using -- doing mental health first

14 aid training in the academy.  Everyone who

15 comes out of the Academy is getting a

16 one-day course on recognizing mental health

17 challenges, knowing how to support people

18 and connect people to services.

19     So, I think what has evolved over the

20 years is a continuum of trainings from

21 mental health first aid, which is a more

22 introductory training, through CIT training

23 which is a very intensive training that

24 really trains officers not only to recognize
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1 but to really have the skill set to

2 intervene in those situations.

3     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Okay.  Thank you.

4 Maybe at some point it could -- whole

5 training component could be a component of

6 the initial training when the perspective

7 officers are in the Academy be it more --

8 more in depth training at that point, then

9 you get everybody.

10     DR. EVANS:  Sure, yes.

11     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  It would be better

12 I think, so just a point.

13     I'm aware that a Hoarding Task Force was

14 created in 2013 to address the problems of

15 hoarding in Philadelphia.  Could you

16 describe the extent of the problem in

17 Philadelphia and how the Philadelphia

18 Hoarding Task Force is addressing this

19 issue?

20     How is the task force funded?  And what

21 is your department's role in the task force?

22 And they need to come to my house.

23     DR. EVANS:  Probably a lot of houses.

24 But I think the people that most work with
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1 are people who really have significant

2 issues.

3     Hoarding is an anxiety disorder.  It is

4 usually found -- lots of people who are

5 often older, people in poverty who or at a

6 greater risk for hoarding.  The people who

7 get -- for whom this is -- whose attention

8 this is brought to initially are often

9 either Fire Department or L&I.  We get

10 called in after the fact, after they've gone

11 in, they see the person has a hoarding

12 problem and there's clearly a mental health

13 challenge there.

14     And our role has been to try to connect

15 people to services.  Our department doesn't

16 lead that task force.  I think that Fire and

17 L&I are more of the leaders around that task

18 force.  I do have a staff person that is

19 on -- on that task force.  And again, our

20 role is to make sure that once the public

21 safety issues are addressed, that we are

22 stepping in to make sure people get

23 connected to appropriate treatments.

24     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Would you please
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1 share your views on an operational scenario

2 where more Philadelphians with health

3 insurance, including Medicaid, are now

4 requesting services through the providers

5 funded by your department.

6     How would you provide for additional

7 demand?

8     DR. EVANS:  Not sure if I quite

9 understand the question.  Is it --

10     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Let me go back.

11 It's not my question.

12     DR. EVANS:  Okay.

13     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  It says, you state

14 on page 1 of your testimony that community

15 behavioral health was founded to provide

16 behavioral healthcare services for

17 Philadelphia's 475,000 Medicaid recipients.

18 The question, please share your views on an

19 operational scenario where more

20 Philadelphians with health insurance,

21 including Medicaid, are now requesting

22 services through the providers funded by

23 your department.

24     How would you provide for the additional
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1 demand?

2     DR. EVANS:  For the additional demand.

3 Okay.

4     So, well couple of things.  One is that

5 Philadelphia has over many years, long

6 before I came in, has developed a very

7 strong network of providers.  This is one of

8 the few places in the country where, you

9 know, people have access to services and

10 they don't have very long waiting list.  So

11 if you need an inpatient psychiatric

12 admission, there -- you can be admitted in

13 the same day.

14     And a lot of the situations you may be

15 hearing in the national media that there are

16 a lot of communities where people have to

17 wait.  They wait on emergency departments.

18 They don't have access for literally

19 sometimes for days before they can have

20 access to that.  That's not the case in

21 Philadelphia.

22     Similarly, people who have addictions

23 who need residential treatment, we almost

24 always have residential capacity for people.
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1 Again, that's not something that you find

2 typically particularly in a lot of urban

3 settings.

4     So, a couple of things.  One is that

5 even though we have lots of access, we still

6 have a challenge as a field and people

7 actually coming to treatment.  So,

8 40 percent of the people who have mental

9 health diagnosis don't come to treatment.

10 That's 40 percent of the people in our

11 community have a problem, could get help;

12 but for a variety of reasons, don't access

13 care.  90 percent of the people who have an

14 addiction don't access care.  So what that

15 means is that if all of those people

16 suddenly showed up, obviously, we would not

17 have enough capacity.

18     We are not at that point yet as a City.

19 And, in fact, what we've been doing is to be

20 very aggressive at doing outreach.  The CIT

21 Program that I just told you about, Mental

22 Health First Aid which I talked about in

23 my -- my testimony.  We do community mental

24 health screenings to identify people who
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1 might be having issues.  All of those are

2 designed to try to get at that 40 percent,

3 to get at that 90 percent so people actually

4 come into treatment.

5     The last piece of your question I think

6 has to do with access and Medicaid

7 expansion.  So, you know, that -- excuse

8 me -- with the President's healthcare

9 legislation, that one of the ways that

10 access is being expanded to people is by

11 expanding Medicaid.

12     And in -- with the new administration

13 with Governor Wolf, he has opted to do

14 traditional Medicaid expansion which we

15 believe is a good thing because we already

16 have the infrastructure.  It's less costly.

17 It can be more efficient.  We are already

18 set up to -- to address the people's needs.

19 And with incremental funding, we can do that

20 pretty efficiently.  And so, we think that

21 Medicaid expansion will give us the

22 opportunity to get to another group of

23 people, people who are traditionally people

24 that might be working but not making a lot
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1 of money and not in a position where they

2 have health insurance.  A lot of those

3 people now have health insurance, and I

4 think will be more likely to reach out for

5 help.

6     That's what's been found in other

7 communities.

8     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Thank you very

9 much.  Chair will now recognize Councilwoman

10 Blackwell.

11     COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.

12 Thank you very much.

13     I wanted to thank, as I did last year, I

14 wanted to say thank you.  I call all the

15 time and I always ask for Dr. Arthur Evans.

16 And he always calls me and he always answers

17 all my questions that has to deal with

18 anything regarding Health Department,

19 Behavioral Health, CBH, et cetera.  So, I

20 just want to say thank you for always being

21 there and responsive.

22     DR. EVANS:  Thank you.

23     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  I ditto that.

24 Whenever you call regarding issue or health,
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1 he responds and he takes action to address

2 the issue for you.  So, we appreciate that.

3     Chair recognizes Councilwoman Sanchez.

4     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Thank

5 you, Madam Chair.

6     I also want to thank the department.  I

7 think that some of the work that they do is

8 probably the most difficult and painstaking

9 as it relates to working in the communities.

10 And I appreciate we're in the process of

11 moving a methadone clinic a hundred feet.

12 And I'm still getting beat up because we're

13 moving it a hundred feet, but in a more

14 conducive environment.

15     Over the years, we've talked about how

16 do we rightsize -- or not rightsize.  How do

17 we create environments where the amount of

18 the services we are providing are not

19 disruptive to neighborhoods?  Has the

20 department begun to look at that?

21     I know part of the challenge with the

22 placement of methadone clinics is the size.

23 Has the department looked at that and

24 reconfigured how and where the services are
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1 provided?

2     DR. EVANS:  Yes.  So, great question.

3     I think that -- I think that the issue

4 around how do we rightsize the system I

5 think is an important one.  I think your

6 issue around or the question around what is

7 the appropriate size of a program is a very

8 important question.  And, you know, Roland

9 Lamb who runs our addiction services has

10 said, you know, we have 5,000 people in 13

11 programs, Roland?  Thirteen agencies.  We

12 have 5,000 people in 13 agencies.  Do the

13 math.  Those are very large numbers in some

14 of those programs, over a thousand people.

15     We would much prefer to have, you know,

16 maybe 20 or 30 programs with a lot fewer

17 people in them.  But as you know, siting a

18 methadone program is really, really

19 difficult.  In fact, we are having a program

20 that will be opening later this year.  It

21 took us literally seven years from the time

22 that we issued the RFP to the time that this

23 program is going to open.  Seven years.

24     So, it's very difficult.  You know, this
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1 is not an issue that we can solve as a

2 department.  It's one that we have to do in

3 collaboration with City Council and with

4 other political leadership.  I will say that

5 this year I think we're in a much different

6 place on this issue.  You heard Councilman

7 Jones.  One of the things I appreciate about

8 what he said was, you know, I'm not asking

9 you to close the program.  I just want the

10 program to be a better neighbor.

11     Councilman Henon was very instrumental

12 in getting the program that's open -- that's

13 going to be opening.  Councilman Squilla,

14 again, very helpful in terms of addressing

15 problem, deals and those kind of things, but

16 doing it in a way that didn't impact on our

17 ability to site programs.

18     I guess what I would say is that I think

19 it can be done.  I think we know -- a year

20 ago I don't know.  Today I think that we

21 have some great examples of Council people

22 stepping to the plates, having conversations

23 with us and trying to figure out how do we

24 balance community needs with the needs --
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1 the other needs of community, which is to

2 have access to services in communities that

3 they can get to.

4     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Last

5 week I hosted a round table with the

6 Alliance for Community Partners.  And they

7 gave us kind of a map of district by

8 district of providers providing some of

9 these services throughout the City.

10     Have you -- because one of the questions

11 I've asked in the past is, have we mapped

12 out similar situated programs?  And can that

13 data be reviewed as part of this bigger

14 option?

15     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

16     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  As we

17 talk about the possibility of reutilizing

18 schools for community-based services and

19 those things, I think we need that data

20 captured.  And I appreciated the fact that

21 they mapped out for us on a district basis

22 who are the providers in that district and

23 what are some of the services.

24     But no one in the Administration seems
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1 to want to be in charge of taking that on.

2 We need DHS, the Health Department,

3 Behavioral Health to map out locations.  And

4 so that we can be more thoughtful in our

5 process.

6     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

7     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  And look

8 at what are the opportunities to team up

9 folks.  Is anybody going to take that on?

10     DR. EVANS:  Well, you know, I will tell

11 you, we geomap.  We geomap everything.  We

12 geomap where our clients are coming from.

13 We geomap who are providers are.  In fact,

14 one of the ways that we address disparities

15 is by looking at where do we have high need

16 populations and then our programs in those

17 areas.

18     And in fact, one of the RFPs that we did

19 last year was -- what we noted was that we

20 have a disparity for African-American access

21 to mental health services.  If you look at

22 the proportion of people in the Medicaid

23 program who actually -- who are

24 African-American who actually access
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1 services, it's about half of what you would

2 expect.  So, what we did was actually

3 University of Pennsylvania mapped the

4 population, mapped where we had high

5 utilization and low utilization.  And what

6 we found was that we had areas of the City

7 where we had large numbers of

8 African-American, low numbers of providers.

9 And we did RFPs specifically in those areas.

10     So, my only point is this.  That we

11 welcome sitting down with you, showing you

12 what we have and, you know, having those

13 discussions.

14     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  I have

15 to step out, but I will come back for

16 another round.  But I wanted you -- I looked

17 at your demographics of your staff.  And I

18 wanted you when I come back to tell me

19 what's your plan to address the disparity

20 there, okay?  I'll be back.

21     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Councilman Neilson.

22     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Thank you,

23 Councilwoman.

24     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  I got to follow the
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1 numbers.

2     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Good morning and

3 thank you for coming today.

4     DR. EVANS:  Good morning.

5     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  As everybody in

6 here, we really appreciate the hard work you

7 do.

8     I was listening to Councilman Jones'

9 questioning and I listened to some of the

10 statements you had about that you spend

11 75 million in public schools.  You serve

12 about 132 other schools.  And your formula

13 of 1.5 million and one third of the

14 population qualify for Medicare and

15 Medicaid.  And through the basic math that

16 you put in front of us there today, I did a

17 little basic math sitting at my table here.

18 As you can see, the school-based family

19 services centers is something that we are

20 concentrating here on in Council.

21     132 schools, says you spend about

22 $568,000 per each one of those schools.  And

23 as we're trying to get school funding, I

24 wanted to know the department's approach.

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 39

1 Because wouldn't it be better to put a full

2 time staffer in each one of those schools

3 and fund a school -- an individual to be

4 there full-time basis?  Because we're here

5 and we have no full-time counselors.  We

6 have no full-time nurses in our schools.

7 And with that kind of money, it seems to be

8 real easy and beneficial to your department

9 to save resources either way to have

10 full-time people in these schools in our

11 communities.

12     And I was wondering your thoughts on

13 that and getting to that point on how you

14 plan to get there?  Because it seems basic

15 to me that it would probably save us money

16 by putting those resources in our schools

17 rather than spending over a half a million

18 dollars.  I know the services array in all

19 different services.  But for full-time

20 counselor in school, we're talking about

21 probably $70,000 and half a million dollars

22 in each school.

23     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

24     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  I think that's a
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1 better way to spend our money and it

2 benefits all of our children.

3     DR. EVANS:  Sure.  So, the money that we

4 spend in the schools, most of it is

5 Medicaid -- Federal Medicaid dollars.  There

6 are rules and regulations around how we can

7 spend the money, where we can spend the

8 money, who can be reimbursed.  So while

9 there are those kinds of needs in terms of

10 counselors and nurses, we can't use Federal

11 Medicaid dollars for those purposes.

12     And in fact, the only way we can use

13 those dollars is -- are by providers that

14 are credentialled, who are approved and who

15 are behavioral health providers.  So what we

16 do then is in those schools, actually 107

17 that have school-based services.  And the

18 difference between 132 and those other

19 schools are schools that have prevention or

20 SAP services, school assistance -- Student

21 Assistance Program services.

22     So what we do then is we have contracted

23 the providers who are deployed in the

24 schools.  They actually, in the best case
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1 scenarios, are really become a part of the

2 mix of adults in the building, become a part

3 of the culture.  They advise the school

4 staff on how to address certain behavioral

5 health issues for not only the children that

6 they're working with and they have

7 responsibility for but for children in

8 general.  They help with school climate.

9     When there are crisis in school, when

10 there's a shooting in the community, kids

11 are coming into school.  They are in crisis,

12 are traumatized.  They are being -- they are

13 there to provide support in those settings.

14 Even though these are not school employees,

15 they play a very critical and vital role in

16 how many of these schools operate.  And, you

17 know, so those are the rules and parameters

18 around which we can use the services.

19     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Sure.  We're

20 talking about a half a million dollars per

21 school, right.

22     DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES:  I was going

23 to add, Councilman -- David Jones.  This is

24 David Jones, Deputy Commissioner.  I want to
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1 add to what the Commissioner said.  That we

2 also in terms of the way we use our staff,

3 it allows for greater continuity between

4 school and home.  You know, what we try to

5 do is recognizing that most, you know,

6 children are certainly attached to adults.

7     What we have our staff is able to do is

8 to, again, be able to go in home or into

9 general community and work with families.

10 So, they are working with that entire system

11 to then help them, you know, everybody --

12 whatever their needs may be and help them

13 progress towards wellness.  So, I think

14 there is actually an added benefit to kind

15 of the way we use staff in addition to what

16 they do in each of the schoolhouses.

17     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  The -- you didn't

18 get saved by the bell.  Okay.

19  (Councilman Greenlee now sits as Chair.)

20     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  I just -- is this

21 your staff or is this contracted staff?

22     DR. EVANS:  These are contracted staff.

23 We contract with a network of, you know, 200

24 different providers.  About half of them are
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1 providing children services.

2     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Has there been any

3 investigation to see if we can save any

4 funding by instead of contracting that

5 staff?  Because, I mean, now you cut -- if I

6 cut the 132 down to 107, that's going to

7 push that up to over 600,000 per school.

8     I mean --

9     DR. EVANS:  These services --

10     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  That puts --

11     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

12     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  That puts 10 people

13 there, 365 days at $70,000 a year employees.

14 I'm just -- the basic math.  I'm just

15 talking basic math.  I want to make certain

16 that we provide these kids with great

17 services.  And 10 employees, 365 and school

18 is not in all summer.  I mean, we're talking

19 about eight months a year that we're

20 spending $600,000 per school.  And I just

21 question that.

22     And if we are contracting it, maybe look

23 at these contracts.  Are we spending too

24 much money on the contracts?  Would it be
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1 cheaper for us to hire a full-time staffer,

2 assign that staff to the school to do all

3 that's necessary to provide these kids help,

4 provide those students the support that they

5 need and the teachers that support that, you

6 just said they needed.  But to put that

7 person right there in the community and the

8 school has the space, if we even rent an

9 office off them which you are allowed to do

10 under your funding.  I mean, we have $1.2

11 billion flexible budget here.

12     DR. EVANS:  I wish it was flexible.

13     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  You have to spend

14 it on certain things.  It's flexible.  You

15 can spend more on others and more on this.

16 You have some things that you must do.

17     And I came from the state.  I know about

18 the funding streams.  I worked in the

19 administration in the Governor's office.

20 And I know how we can utilize these funding

21 streams.  I'm not ignorant to that point.

22     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

23     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  I just think we

24 have an opportunity within your department
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1 to help our children in every school and

2 this is it.  And this could do it.

3     I'm just asking, Commissioner, I know

4 it's -- you're not going to be able to fix

5 it by June.  I know we're not going to be

6 able to change everything today and say,

7 hey, look, Councilman, you came up with a

8 good idea.  We're going to run with it.

9 It's going to take time to put that

10 together.  And I just ask that you and your

11 department really investigate and look at

12 this harder because our children need the

13 help.  You know it as much as I do.  You

14 know more than me because your -- this is

15 your baby, Doctor.

16     Like you said when you started, I

17 appreciate it.  But to spend $600,000 per

18 school, I know we can do better.  I know we

19 can do better.  And I'm just asking you to

20 take a look at it, please.

21     DR. EVANS:  I will do that, Councilman.

22 And I would actually would welcome having

23 conversations with you.  I think that

24 we're -- as I said, we make a $75 million
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1 investment in schools every year.  We have

2 lots of parameters around what we can and

3 can't do because our Federal Medicaid

4 dollars.  I agree with you.  I think we can

5 always be creative.  We can always look at

6 these situations differently.  And I would

7 welcome having those conversations with you.

8     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  I look forward to

9 it.  Thank you again for testimony.

10     I have nothing further, Mr. Chairman.

11     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Thank you,

12 Councilman.

13     Councilman O'Brien, isn't it?  Yeah,

14 O'Brien, yes.

15     COUNCILMAN O'BRIEN:  Thank you,

16 Mr. Chairman.

17     First, Dr. Evans, I would like to

18 applaud you for your use of Medicaid dollars

19 in ways that no other municipality has ever

20 dreamed of doing.  And I also recognize that

21 you've talked about autism.  But I want to

22 specifically thank you for your endorsement

23 of the Philadelphia Autism Project.

24     We have created 119 initiatives that
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1 resulted out of those discussions over the

2 last years.  But I really want to take time

3 to recognize some of the individuals that

4 were on your staff that materially

5 contributed to this.  That is Frank Gould

6 from Grants and Procurements.  And from

7 Contracts we had Vicky Finnegan and Yasmine

8 Thornton.  They were very responsive and

9 diligent.  And they were able to take those

10 recommendations from the stakeholders and

11 make them the top priorities.

12     And I can't say enough about Valerie

13 Oldes.  She's working with us to implement

14 those initiatives.  And -- but she gave us

15 guiding principle when we started.  And that

16 was that we had to focus on the

17 underrepresented and under-served groups.

18 And then she further instructed us that we

19 should provide seed money to individuals,

20 groups and faith-based organizations and

21 grass roots organization that range from a

22 few hundred dollars to $1,500.  We had 30

23 applicants.  We have 11 awardees they we're

24 going to recognize on May 14.  I hope that
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1 you're there because we are responsible for

2 this unusual conversation.  You took the

3 lead that brought in not only behavioral

4 health but DHS, CBH and the School District

5 in a collaborative that's really making a

6 difference.

7     Also, I had a great experience.  And

8 again, you are forward looking inclusive

9 strategies that translate into all the staff

10 people are just extraordinary from the first

11 day I met you.  But I met with a group

12 called Spectrum Friends.  They're about 40

13 individuals that are self advocates on the

14 autism spectrum.  I met with them last

15 Wednesday.  They are only 10 or 12 because

16 they have two groups now, the business and

17 the fun group.  I'm not the fun group, so

18 only 12 of them showed up.

19     But when you talk about making

20 Philadelphia autism friendly where you are

21 taking the lead, I just sat there and my

22 head just went poosh(makes sound).  They

23 started -- I wanted to make Philadelphia the

24 first autism friendly.  They just went off
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1 on a tear.  I thought every policymaker

2 should sit and listen to those individuals.

3 We should have a Spectrum Friends chapter

4 here in Philadelphia.  They talked about an

5 individual pursuing his Ph.D. who got his

6 Masters degree and talked about all the

7 barriers in pursuing higher education.  And

8 he told me that when he got and he announced

9 his dissertation all the support stopped.

10 And that's why individuals with intellectual

11 disabilities don't pursue their dreams.

12     And they talked about housing.  They

13 talked about taxi drivers, which we all have

14 issues with.  For them when they drive fast,

15 they don't listen, they run red lights and

16 they can't get back in a cab again.

17     And then one individual talked about the

18 challenges of going to an airport when you

19 have a bag and you're always worried about

20 you're going to lose it.  And he said why

21 can't we have a GPS that you get when you

22 come into the airport and track your bag.

23 That's great for everybody.  I worry.  I

24 always leave my stuff.
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1     But, you know, the one thing that they

2 say and you talked about this in your

3 testimony about the employment rate, that's

4 there a 3 percent increase of employment

5 among individuals with intellectual

6 disabilities.  500 individuals with IED and

7 DD.  But they expressed to me that they

8 don't want to be poor.  And when they're on

9 Social Security, if they get a great paying

10 job, then they're going to lose their MA.

11     And we have to go to Washington and get

12 them to understand that that eligibility

13 criteria is punishing those individuals from

14 success.  And further, Valerie also

15 contracted with Karen Krippet from Elwyn to

16 produce three videos.  Two that will deal

17 with autism among the African-American

18 community, and one that's going to focus on

19 autism with Hispanic families.  Those

20 videos, because of your direction, are going

21 to be available in our free libraries.  So,

22 they will become physical hubs so

23 individuals with disabilities are now going

24 to be able to access a broader network of
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1 support.

2     So, I just want to thank you for that.

3 Recognize that you have really talented.

4     (Bell rings.)

5     And I got under the wire, and I thank

6 you.

7     DR. EVANS:  Well, I want to thank you as

8 well, especially for bringing together the

9 task force and really your commitment to

10 this issue for many, many years.  Appreciate

11 you.

12     COUNCILMAN O'BRIEN:  Thank you.

13     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Thank you,

14 Councilman O'Brien.  Thank you.

15     Councilman Oh.

16     COUNCILMAN OH:  Thank you very much,

17 Mr. Chairman.

18     Good morning.

19     DR. EVANS:  Morning, Councilman.

20     COUNCILMAN OH:  I don't have a question.

21 I just wanted to come up and just praise you

22 and your team, your executive team and all

23 your -- all your staff.  I mean, I think

24 your department is exceptional.  I mean,
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1 your entire organization is -- just really

2 reaches out, hits every nook and crannie of

3 Philadelphia, every community.  Anywhere I

4 go, your folks are there.  And I think it's

5 so important that people, you know, they

6 recognize that you care.

7     And just the amount of innovative

8 programs that you produce.  Yesterday, I was

9 at the Network of Care for Veteran Survive

10 Members and Their Families.  Another first

11 and first in Pennsylvania.  And I said, it's

12 kind of -- it's kind of odd in a way that

13 your organization would be the forefront of

14 this -- this entire project.  But in another

15 way, it's not because you've been such a

16 leader.

17     And for those who don't know, this free

18 website which had a tremendous investment in

19 California and, I think, in Maryland perhaps

20 is now in Philadelphia available on the

21 City's website through the Department of

22 Behavioral Health and Intellectual

23 Disability Services.  And will coordinate

24 all the Veteran services and continue to
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1 grow.  But whether it's a -- it's that or a

2 community where folks don't speak English or

3 not familiar with the culture or any section

4 of our City, I have seen your department

5 there.

6     And I think we, oftentimes, don't get a

7 chance to praise the people who work for our

8 City that do such an exceptional job.  I

9 think, unfortunately, a lot of people don't

10 appreciate the public service that is done.

11 You don't get, you know, a lot of pay for

12 this.  And I just want to say that you

13 deserve the praise for doing this job well.

14 But when you're a national model, you know,

15 it certainly makes all of us very prod.  And

16 we support you a hundred percent and keep up

17 the good work.

18     Thank you.

19     DR. EVANS:  Thank you, Councilman.  And

20 I appreciate all of the kind words from you

21 and from other Councilmembers.  And I just

22 want to acknowledge my staff who make all of

23 this -- you know, all of these things

24 happen.  I think they work extremely hard.
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1 And I don't think you're going to find a

2 more dedicated group of people in government

3 anywhere.  So, I really applaud them for

4 their work.

5                 (Applause)

6     COUNCILMAN OH:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

7     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Thank you,

8 Councilman.

9     Councilwoman Sanchez.

10     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Thank

11 you.  I wanted to talk a little bit.  We

12 have a language access ballot question on

13 the books.  Part of that is to get

14 departments, particular departments like

15 yours who are service delivery, to have a

16 language access plan.  And I noticed that in

17 your administrative team as well as your

18 full-time staff, your bilingual numbers are

19 2 percent.

20     Wanted to know if you had a plan,

21 thought moving forward how do you increase

22 language access in your department?

23     DR. EVANS:  Sure.  We do have bilingual

24 people, Spanish as well as other languages,
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1 who are in our -- on our staff.  At CBH we

2 have people in provider relations.  We have

3 people in our member services.  We have care

4 managers.

5     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Would

6 you provide that?  I think when you look at

7 the CBH budget and whatever billion dollars,

8 we don't get any of that information.

9     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

10     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  That

11 might be helpful.

12     DR. EVANS:  Okay.  We can provide you

13 those numbers.  And in addition to that, we

14 have to have translation services.

15 Although, I don't think translation services

16 particularly for behavioral health is the

17 desired way to go.  But we often have

18 communities in Philadelphia who -- where we

19 don't have professionals that speak the

20 language.  So, sometimes we have to rely on

21 that.

22     I think -- I mean, I think the issue

23 around language access is really important

24 as it relates to the Latino community.  You
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1 know -- again, Philadelphia is very unique.

2 We have very strong network of

3 Spanish-speaking Latino providers who are

4 not only speaking the language but know the

5 culture.  They're in the community.  They

6 know people who are in the community.  And

7 as a result, at least for Latinos in

8 Philadelphia, we have actually the highest

9 penetration.  So, Latinos who are in the

10 Medicaid program have a very high

11 penetration rate.

12     We have very strong --

13     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  When you

14 talk about the penetration rate -- you and I

15 have had this conversation before.  So one

16 of the issues, you know, and we've talked

17 about the store front medical centers to the

18 pharmacy situation.  We had that

19 conversation a lot.

20     If we have a high penetration rate, what

21 are we doing to ensure best quality?

22     And you and I -- told you I was going to

23 put this on the record.  We have two medical

24 centers who are under federal jurisdiction.
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1 The feds came in, took their files, but they

2 still allowed to take new patients.

3     DR. EVANS:  Right.  So, let me talk

4 about then what we do for quality.  We

5 actually put a lot of emphasis on how we

6 monitor and oversee providers.

7     First of all, in terms of being

8 contracted through CBH, you have to go

9 through a credentialling process.  We have a

10 very extensive process where we have staff

11 that go out and who are not just from CBH

12 but from our office of addiction services,

13 from our office of mental health.  And we

14 look at everything.  It's a -- for large

15 providers, it's a multi-day process.

16     We not only look at charts, we have

17 physicians who look at charts, as well.  We

18 have interviews directly with people who are

19 in those programs.  We interview staff.

20 It's really a comprehensive look at --

21     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  I don't

22 doubt that, Arthur.

23     DR. EVANS:  -- each provider.

24     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  I don't
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1 doubt that.  But if the Feds are coming in,

2 is there anything you can do to say until

3 this review, everybody is innocent until

4 proven guilty.  Until this review is

5 completed, can the folks stop taking new

6 patients?

7     DR. EVANS:  Sure.  Of course we can.  We

8 make that decision based on what we see.

9 But in the case where there might be a

10 federal agency that's looking at an

11 organization, one of the things that happens

12 when you have a federal investigation is

13 they don't tell you anything.  And so, you

14 can have a federal agency show up at a

15 provider, you know, interview people, take

16 records.  We don't get any of that

17 information.

18     The only thing we can base our decisions

19 on is what we see and what we know.  We do

20 that in collaboration with the state.

21     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  You

22 never stopped someone from getting new

23 clients after even after federal?

24     DR. EVANS:  Sure.  We do that all the
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1 time.  I get alerts almost every other day

2 of a decision to stop admissions to a

3 provider.  Typically, those decisions are

4 based on safety issues.

5     If a provider has someone who has a

6 critical incident, those kinds of things we

7 will stop admissions.  Our physicians will

8 review the practices of that provider.  And

9 before we will allow that provider to

10 continue admitting people, we will make a

11 determination as to whether those issues are

12 resolved.

13     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Well,

14 I -- I --

15     DR. EVANS:  What I would say is that if

16 there is an investigation of a provider,

17 again, we will look at are there safety

18 issues?  Are there concerns?  Can we detect

19 anything?  And is the state -- has the state

20 removed that provider's license?

21     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  No.  I

22 get the licensing and I know we have an RFP.

23 I'd like to know for the -- in my district

24 that are under federal review, what thought
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1 process, decision making to allow them to

2 continue to do the services?

3     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

4     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  What

5 your announcement was on each one of those

6 individuals to continue to take new clients.

7     DR. EVANS:  Sure.  When we get any kind

8 of alert about a provider, whether it's --

9 the federal government is looking at them or

10 the state government is looking at them, the

11 first thing that we do is try to talk to

12 those agencies and understand what are their

13 concerns.  Now, so that's the first thing.

14     The second thing is we send our own

15 people in to those agencies.  And what we're

16 looking for, number one, is are there any

17 safety concerns?  Are there practices there

18 that put people at risk?  And if there are,

19 we take action.  The second thing we look at

20 is are there qualify of care concerns?

21     In the case of a federal investigation,

22 it could be that there may be business

23 practices that they're looking at that have

24 less to do with the safety of people who are
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1 coming to those programs.  And so, until

2 they come to a conclusion, it would be

3 unfair based on the fact that there's an

4 investigation to stop admissions again if

5 there's not a safety issue or quality of

6 care issue.

7     I can tell you that we have had some

8 providers who have literally had people

9 looking at their agency for multiple years.

10 And if they -- if the Federal Government or

11 state agency doesn't take action, then it's

12 kind of hard for us in the absence of any

13 other information to take action.  But

14 again, we do that -- we take that very

15 seriously.  We send our own people in.  And

16 again, we consult with those agencies to the

17 extent that we can.

18     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Okay.

19 My time is up.

20     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Thank you.  Thank

21 you, Councilwoman.

22     Councilwoman Reynolds Brown.

23     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Good

24 morning, gentleman.
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1     DR. EVANS:  Good morning.

2     DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES:  Good

3 morning.

4     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  To your

5 Deputy, this is your first opportunity to be

6 in this process?

7     DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES:  Actually, my

8 second.

9     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Oh, okay.

10     DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES:  But thank

11 you.

12     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Welcome

13 back.  You survived it.

14     So with regards to the School District,

15 can you talk about specifically children

16 with disabilities, the process by which you

17 interface with the School District to get

18 those children on track for the services

19 that they need?

20     The back story is, I've been working

21 myself with one case of a child with autism

22 who I've been -- my office has been involved

23 with since the age of 4.  That young man is

24 now 12.  And the mother is still struggling
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1 with EOPs.  That every six months the School

2 District wants to do another EOP, which

3 sends a lot of bad signals on -- period,

4 around systemic breakdown, disengagement

5 whatever.

6     So, I would like to hear from you to

7 what extent is the involvement of your

8 office with the School District?  And what

9 milestones or benchmarks do you look for or

10 have that are signal to you that more needs

11 to happen with a particular student?

12     DR. EVANS:  Sure.  So, for kids who have

13 autism or other disabilities, it really is

14 an interplay between our agency and the

15 School District.  So, the School District

16 has to do an IEP.

17     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Right.

18     DR. EVANS:  They have to determine what

19 the educational needs are.  To the extent

20 that through that process or other processes

21 they identify that there's a behavioral

22 health issue that we can intervene on, we

23 will ensure that, one, that there's an

24 assessment but then also that the
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1 appropriate services are -- are --

2     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Rendered.

3     DR. EVANS:  Are rendered for those --

4 for those children.  But, you know as I was

5 mentioning earlier, that -- that in the best

6 case scenarios, the providers that are

7 providing those services are really doing

8 that in collaboration, close coordination

9 with the schools and with parents to make

10 sure that as people, as you hit those

11 milestones, if there are challenges, that

12 those are being addressed through a --

13 through a refining of the treatment

14 approach.

15     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  What point

16 does your agency say enough is enough, we're

17 not doing -- operating the best interest of

18 this kid, let's do something else?

19     I mean, at what point is the plug pulled

20 to say we're not meeting the needs of this

21 child?

22     DR. EVANS:  Right.  That's a hard

23 question.  I mean, I think that's a question

24 that we would -- we would try to answer in
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1 collaboration with parents and with the

2 people who are in the school.  I don't think

3 that there's a particular formula around

4 that.  I do think that one of the things

5 that we're very proud of, I'm very proud of,

6 I should say, I guess all of us, is that we

7 are trying to increase the options that we

8 have for children.

9     And in particular, using evidence-based

10 treatment approaches, we have been working

11 with Aaron Beck who is creator of cognitive

12 therapy, wildly used in our field.  One of

13 the most effective treatment strategies.

14 But people from his staff are working with

15 some of our school-based programs to infuse

16 evidence-based treatment approaches within

17 the school.  Your point is a good one.

18 Sometimes traditional approaches don't get

19 us where we need to.  And we need to look at

20 other alternatives, other practices.  So,

21 that's one thing.

22     We are also developing evidence-based

23 treatment approaches in the rest of our

24 network.  To the extent that children aren't

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 66

1 getting their needs met within school-based

2 services, the appropriate thing to do would

3 then be to refer the child to maybe a

4 community-based service that might be more

5 effective given the challenges that they're

6 facing.

7     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  So, where

8 are the assurances that a child and children

9 don't get lost in the system?

10     DR. EVANS:  We try to -- you know, we

11 try to make sure through the oversight that

12 we give of those programs --

13     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.

14     DR. EVANS:  -- that kids who are not

15 having their needs met are being identified

16 and -- and referred.  So, I think it's

17 through our oversight process that we can

18 pick those up.  I would also say if you are

19 working with a child or a family and you

20 feel like they are not getting the needs

21 met, you know, those are the kinds of things

22 you can bring to our attention.

23     DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES:  Actually --

24 David Jones.
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1     I would add that we actually have staff

2 as Dr. Evans is indicating that parents can

3 reach out directly to, to be in conversation

4 to say both, you know, we would like to see

5 things go differently or to ask a broader

6 question in terms of so what are the -- what

7 are the services, what are the

8 evidence-based practices that we should be

9 looking for to help our child achieve their

10 goals?  In fact, our child or family achieve

11 their goals.

12     We have people aboard.  We also

13 certainly encourage families to be in

14 contact with, again, our personnel to talk

15 with -- to help them work with the agencies

16 as well so that we always end up growing in

17 the same direction.

18     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  So, that's

19 assuming parents are sophisticated enough to

20 know where to look, where to reach.  What's

21 the presence of your agency in our school?

22     DR. EVANS:  Sure.  What I would say to

23 that, which is a very good question.

24 Parents around behavioral health issues tend
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1 to be more sophisticated then you might

2 imagine.

3     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.

4     DR. EVANS:  We have a lot of parents who

5 advocate through CBH.  They are familiar

6 with the appeals process.  And in fact, we

7 have had to spend quite a bit of our

8 resources on just building infrastructure to

9 deal with the appeals that come in from

10 parents.  A lot of that has to do with

11 parents and providers really looking at the

12 needs of the child, looking at whether or

13 not those needs are being met and then

14 identifying other resources and often from

15 those providers -- those same providers in

16 terms of services that can be provided.

17     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.  I

18 have one more.

19     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  If you have one

20 more, well, wait a minute, I'm sorry.

21 Councilwoman Sanchez is Tee'd up, too.

22     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.  Now

23 problem.

24     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Okay.

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 69

1     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  So given

2 the -- the dramatic decrease of counselors

3 in schools, what has been CBH's response to

4 that reality because we don't have enough

5 counselors with ridiculous numbers in our

6 schools now.

7     DR. EVANS:  Right.  Obviously, we can't

8 supplant with Federal Medicaid dollars --

9     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  I see.

10     DR. EVANS:  -- the loss of counselors.

11     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.

12     DR. EVANS:  But what we have -- one of

13 the first conversations we have had with

14 Dr. Hite was because when we came in, he had

15 a budget crisis, was what can we do to try

16 to -- again, we can't supplant, but can we

17 use those existing behavioral health

18 providers who are in schools to address some

19 of the unmet needs because of the loss of

20 staff.

21     We try to do that in a creative way.

22 You know, one of the conversations that we

23 have had with Dr. Hite and his staff Karen

24 Lynch is, you know, what are the schools
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1 that have the highest needs.  I think it may

2 have been Councilman Jones that raised

3 this.  Where is those places that raise --

4 there is Councilman Jones there.  He was

5 there the first time.

6     Where are those places where you have

7 high numbers of kids who have, you know,

8 significant challenges, who met -- you may

9 also not have adequate resources.  And can

10 we redeploy some of the resources --

11     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Yes.

12     DR. EVANS:  -- that we currently have

13 through the schools?  We are going through a

14 process with the School District around

15 that.  It's really a two-stage process.

16     One is, how do we change the model and

17 optimize the model that we're using.  The

18 other part of that is, how do we make sure

19 that those services are in the places that

20 we have the greatest need.

21     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  To wrap up

22 time or the window to achieve what you just

23 talked about is when?

24     DR. EVANS:  Sure.  So, I think when we
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1 really got to down to brass tacks and start

2 to look at this, we though probably we can

3 do this in a year or two.  I think

4 realistically to do this, it's probably

5 going to take us two to three years.

6     We have over a hundred programs,

7 school-based programs in schools.  It's over

8 half the schools, by the way.  These are

9 primarily elementary and middle schools.

10 And, you know, one of the things we don't

11 want to do is to take a resource out of a

12 school in a way that in some way might

13 destabilize a school.  And so, we are going

14 to make those decisions very carefully in

15 collaboration with a school.  Again, at the

16 same time, looking at changing the model so

17 that the model is actually more effective.

18     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  So, I

19 would recommend at whatever point that

20 happens, a briefing with Councilmembers

21 would be useful.

22     DR. EVANS:  Oh, absolutely.

23     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  That we

24 can know of schools in the councilmatic
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1 district what the new structure looks like.

2     DR. EVANS:  Okay.  We appreciate that.

3     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Thank you.

4 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

5     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Thank you,

6 councilwoman.

7     Councilwoman Sanchez, do you?  Okay.

8     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Yes.

9     A couple of things.  And I don't know if

10 Councilman Goode asked this, but I was not

11 here.  I noticed that on your contract being

12 services, you didn't list the participation.

13     Is that because it's unavailable or

14 you're reporting out?

15     DR. EVANS:  I'm not sure what you're

16 referring to Councilwoman.

17     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  On page

18 13 when you talk about your providers, kids

19 and family, Goldstar, you don't offer any of

20 the ranges for minority participate.  I just

21 wanted to know if that's unavailable or --

22     DR. EVANS:  Let me see if I can find

23 what you're referring to.

24     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  While
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1 you're getting that information, again I

2 think your office has been as thoughtful as

3 it possibly can in dealing with the citing

4 of stuff.  I am very happy that we have

5 found after six years a location for

6 prevention point.  But I notice that in your

7 budget, you are reducing your budget.

8     Is there a reason for that?  They are

9 going to get money from other places?

10     DR. EVANS:  Reducing the budget for?

11     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  For

12 Prevention Point.

13     DR. EVANS:  I'm being told that we're

14 not.  I didn't think we were.  Should be

15 flat funding for Prevention Point itself.  I

16 don't know if you're looking at the line

17 that has multiple things on it.  But

18 Prevention itself, Prevention Point itself

19 is not being reduced.

20     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Okay.

21 Because according to this in 2004, the

22 budget was 465; 2005, 390.  Now we're going

23 into finally a great location and you still

24 have them at 390 with -- when we know we
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1 have expensed the rent.  When we talk about

2 them moving, we knew that their expenses,

3 because of the comprehensiveness of the

4 services, was going to be more.  But they're

5 flatlined there.

6     DR. EVANS:  So, you're saying that the

7 amount is flat, but the expenses are going

8 to go up.

9     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Right.

10     DR. EVANS:  There may be a discrepancy.

11 That's something that we would look at.

12     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  You have

13 145,000 in undetermined.  I just want to

14 make sure.  You know how hard it is for me

15 to cite --

16     DR. EVANS:  Well, this is -- we

17 appreciate your support and understanding of

18 the importance of that program, and we're

19 committed to that as I think you are.  And

20 whatever that discrepancy is, we're going to

21 figure out a way to accommodate that.  I

22 wouldn't be concerned about that at this

23 point.  Thank you.

24     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Okay.  I
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1 will make sure that before the end of the

2 budget.

3     The other question that I have as it

4 relates to the schools, because you

5 mentioned earlier that you do have kind of

6 the best collaboration.

7     Without the violation of HIPPA laws, how

8 do you track how many different providers

9 are touching a child?

10     A child may have a TSS worker.  A child

11 may go to a special afterschool program.  A

12 child may get a home visit.

13     How are we tracking how many providers

14 touch a child?  I know we tried it in the

15 past as comprehensive.

16     DR. EVANS:  Right.  It's not something

17 that we typically do from a central

18 standpoint.  That's something that we expect

19 providers to do and to identify.  So if

20 you're working with a child, you're

21 providing a service, part of your job is to

22 know what are the other services.  Not only

23 behavioral health services but what are the

24 physical health services that a child might
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1 be receiving.

2     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Okay.

3 So, you leave that up to the --

4     DR. EVANS:  We leave it up to the

5 individual provider.

6     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Okay.

7 And then the last question.

8     We've been dealing with a recovery

9 houses situation.  And again, this is an

10 area where Roland has been fabulous and

11 going out with me and getting screamed at

12 with me.  You know, we can take it.

13     Where are we with asking providers to

14 conduct site visits?  Have some of the

15 providers conducted site visits where we

16 have multiple addresses for behavioral

17 health services?  Have any been conducted

18 and have providers been willing to do that?

19     DR. EVANS:  I'm not sure if I

20 understand.

21     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  So, the

22 recovery house has twelve men living in the

23 house.  They all go to the same provider.

24 Part of the request a few years ago was when
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1 we have multiple addresses, the providers

2 should go and visit the facility to make

3 sure it's appropriate.

4     DR. EVANS:  What do you mean multiple

5 addresses?

6     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  We have

7 12 men living in a house.

8     DR. EVANS:  Right.

9     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  The one

10 provider.

11     DR. EVANS:  Right.

12     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  The

13 provider looks at there's a five-plus match.

14 We had this conversation last time.

15     DR. EVANS:  Right, I know.  When you

16 said in the past, which we agreed with and I

17 know Roland has followed up on, one of the

18 things you said, just to make sure I do

19 listen, is that, you know, how do we use our

20 leverage as a payer to ensure that people

21 are going to appropriate recovery houses.

22 And I know that Roland has followed up on

23 that.

24     Just as a way of background, you know,
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1 that there are recovery houses that we

2 directly fund.

3     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  I get

4 that.

5     DR. EVANS:  Okay.

6     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  My thing

7 is because we couldn't track state license

8 versus City-funded but we still have a

9 robust list --

10     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

11     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  -- that

12 has been wonderful in working with other

13 stuff.  We, as a mental health provider,

14 that has multiple matches, addresses.  Part

15 of the request was why can't we get them to

16 help us when they see that to visit the

17 site, providing counseling, group individual

18 counseling to 12 people at an address?

19     I want to know have people willingly

20 cooperated?  Have we gotten any reports

21 back?

22     DR. EVANS:  Sure.  I'm going to let

23 Roland talk about what they've -- they've

24 done in that area.
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1     MR. LAMB:  Good morning, Councilwoman.

2 Good morning, Chair and Members of City

3 Council.  My name is Roland Lamb.  I'm the

4 Director for the Office of Addiction

5 Services.

6     Your request two years ago did not fall

7 on deaf years.  We have initiated a program

8 over the past year, really even before that,

9 where we are now holding the treatment

10 providers accountable for site control over

11 the recovery houses that people are -- that

12 they are accepting people into their

13 programs from.  We are also saying to them

14 that the treatment services must be first.

15     We can't have a situation where we have

16 recovery houses farming bodies out to

17 treatment programs.  We want to make sure

18 that the person has choice in the matter.

19 We are going to pilot it.  We have four

20 providers that are now exercising site

21 control over the recovery houses.  By that

22 we mean is we are holding the treatment

23 provider accountable for the behavior of the

24 recovery houses.
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1     And by the way, in order to be in this

2 pilot, the recovery houses has to meet our

3 criteria.  As you well know from talking

4 with Fred, it's a very stringent criteria

5 that requires a lot of support from the

6 community.  We still have a problem.  And

7 the problem is that we have all these

8 unattached recovery houses across

9 Philadelphia that are doing their own thing.

10 Many of them have been around for a while

11 and doing good work.  We have a bunch that

12 are not.

13     Therefore, we are looking through the

14 states now policy of DDAP overseeing, you

15 know, the recovery house system and the

16 recommendations that are coming out of that

17 to then put those recommendations in play

18 here in Philadelphia.  But we've begun to

19 get ahead of the curve by saying we are now

20 going to hold the treatment provider, the

21 licensed treatment provider accountable.

22     And hopefully, over the next year, we

23 can go from that 4 to 8 to 16 and see if we

24 can't have better controls over the recovery
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1 houses that are working with people who are

2 in our treatment programs.

3     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  So, how

4 are you going to measure this?

5     MR. LAMB:  Two ways.  One, we are again

6 looking at the treatment provider.  First,

7 we are saying that the choice must be the

8 person who is in treatment, you know, as far

9 as the treatment provider is concerned.

10     Two, the treatment provider must do an

11 adequate assessment that suggests that this

12 person would benefit from that kind of

13 housing.

14     And three, we are now putting it through

15 the Office of Addiction Services housing

16 unit.  We are going out with the -- the

17 provider has to go out, too.  We are going

18 out into the community.  We are looking at

19 the providers.  We are certifying the

20 houses.  And we are also requiring that the

21 houses, you know, meet certain criteria as

22 far as reporting back to us.

23     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  And I

24 will tell you, I think that the work between
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1 Fred and, obviously, you and this task force

2 we had with L&I really has helped a lot.

3     Moving forward as we educate folks and,

4 you know, I'm happy to hear that pilot and

5 we move forward.  What should we be asking

6 residents to do when they suspect there's a

7 bad actor?

8     I will tell you, a lot of my Frankford

9 folks have really bonded together.  The good

10 actors want the bad actors out.  They

11 learned that this is not a good thing to do.

12 And we did utilize L&I on the code

13 enforcement stuff.

14     What is it that we need to be saying now

15 to our community partners to make them

16 reassure in case another one does pop up or

17 something pops up?  How do you want us to

18 relate that?

19     MR. LAMB:  Well, two things.  One, I

20 want to continue the marvelous collaboration

21 that we've had with your office.  I Think

22 that the communication we've had over the

23 years has been more than helpful.  That's

24 number one.
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1     Number two, I'd like to make sure that

2 everyone in the community is educated.  You

3 have a number of entities that are in your

4 community and you have not had an easy job

5 of it at the least.  You have community

6 corrections programs.  You have boarding

7 homes.  You have recovery houses.  You also

8 have licensed treatment programs.  And then

9 you also have folks that are calling

10 themselves all kinds of different things in

11 your community that are just not consistent

12 with what good practice is.

13     So, we want to make sure the people are

14 educated as to what's what.  The state has,

15 you know, a community corrections program

16 where no one in the City has, you know,

17 pretty much any authority over or has any

18 control over.  The same thing is true with

19 certain licensed drug and alcohol treatment

20 programs.  In fact, I would like to

21 encourage folks at this level to begin

22 thinking about asking the Department for

23 drug and alcohol programs to seek city

24 support for a program before it licenses
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1 that program in a particular community

2 because we have no say over that.

3     Those are the kinds of things we would

4 like to be able to have.  We would like to

5 als be able to know when folks are

6 "establishing" something in the community.

7 As you well know, we had our housing unit be

8 responsive to you and anyone who has called

9 them and actually gone out and taken a look

10 at recovery houses that are not even under

11 our purview to make sure that, you know,

12 what we're looking at here makes sense or it

13 doesn't make sense.

14     So, those are the kinds of things we

15 want to continue to do.  Been able to go out

16 and meet with certain civic groups in the

17 community.  And we certainly want to

18 continue the collaboration that we have had

19 with you and the community.

20     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Yes.  We

21 do have a lot more work to do with the

22 state.  And -- and I -- I know that state

23 officials are starting to have hearings

24 about it.  My concern is always that when we
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1 engage the state, because there is so many

2 unfriendly people at the state as a result

3 the work that we're doing, the treatment,

4 there's always a concern because what they

5 end up doing is making it harder, not easier

6 for us to monitor the good and bad.  Their

7 idea is let's cut the money as opposed to

8 how do we provide support so you can better

9 monitor site and do all the other things

10 that we're talking about.

11     That is definitely something.  And the

12 reason to bring the community, the alliance

13 folks is we need to begin to have those

14 conversations because they have a different

15 relationship with the state also and the

16 legislators and being able to get people

17 around the table to say these services are

18 necessary.  They need to be in every

19 neighborhood because every neighborhood has

20 people who need methadone and everything

21 else.  How do we better license, approve,

22 identify and do those things.  It's a very

23 delicate conversation.  Because when I have

24 it at the state, people think punitive.  I
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1 don't want to be punitive.  These are people

2 who need services.

3     And so, now that we have a democratic

4 governor who I think gets this and the

5 elimination of the asset tax and maybe

6 general assistance will come back, I don't

7 know, it's the right time to figure out what

8 are the regulatory issues that we need to

9 request.

10     I think we need the leadership from your

11 department to give us that.  If we're going

12 to go for new regulations, what does that

13 look like so that Councilman Jones can talk

14 to the state delegation, I can talk to any

15 state delegation and others to say, you

16 know, when I was having a conversation be

17 Senator Shirley Kitchen around the

18 pharmacies, they're already moving in that

19 direction in terms of figuring out, you

20 know, the pill factories and those types of

21 things.

22     MR. LAMB:  Right.

23     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  So we

24 can have a getter conversation.  I don't
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1 know what those all are because I don't know

2 their protocols, but I don't want it to be

3 punitive and then hurt.

4     MR. LAMB:  You'll be happy to know I

5 agree with you on the fact that this is --

6 we have an opportunity now.  Across the

7 state, the recovery house issue is an issue

8 as well nationally.  So, we have an

9 opportunity to take the lead.  You'll be

10 happy to know not only do we support Fred

11 and par on the state's work group for

12 recovery housing, my deputy Marvin Levine is

13 also on the work group for recovery housing

14 that goes up to Harrisburg and meets.

15     So, we are very much involved in the

16 leadership of direction and the

17 recommendations that are going to be coming

18 out of the state around recovery housing.

19 And in some cases, what we're doing here in

20 Philadelphia is actually being used as a

21 model.  So, I think that we have an

22 opportunity to make some real substantive

23 changes in the recovery house arena.

24     COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  All
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1 right.  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Lamb.

2     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,

3 Councilwoman.  Chair -- let me real quick,

4 Councilman, one second.  Since I -- excuse

5 my, I don't know if it's called tardiness

6 because I am way over traditionally late.  I

7 want to thank you all.  Apologize.

8     I do have one question.  My

9 understanding that in earlier testimony, and

10 good morning.

11     DR. EVANS:  Good morning.

12     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Is that you

13 all committed in its entirely to the

14 school-based family services model.

15     DR. EVANS:  You heard that?  Of course.

16     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Councilman

17 te -- okay.

18     DR. EVANS:  It's a done deal.

19     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  I understand

20 that some of the challenges associated with

21 implementation.  You know, I mean, this is

22 not some short term thing.

23     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

24     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  We had a
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1 really good presentation.  People understood

2 it's going to take time.  In Cincinnati, I

3 think they took five years to fully

4 implement theirs in all of their schools.  I

5 understand.  I want to thank you.  This is

6 something that we really need to do.

7     I referenced -- when I talk about it, I

8 reference Councilman Jones district in 86

9 and that -- all that empty space that we had

10 that actually faces out onto the Ridge

11 Avenue commercial corridor.  And the thought

12 that we can actually put other services and

13 Councilman Jones can put his office in that

14 place and we get free rent, because we are

15 paying right now for his district office.

16 We can put that thing up there and cut back

17 on that budget would be very helpful.

18     I want to appreciate, you though, for

19 talking about the way that we can

20 collaborate and get this in place.

21     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

22     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you.

23     Chair recognizes Councilman Jones.

24     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Thank you from all my
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1 constituents to look out for us like that.

2     On the level of what Councilwoman

3 Sanchez talked about, just briefly can

4 you -- I know you monitor all of your

5 subcontractors.  And I would imagine it's in

6 the performance-based --

7     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

8     COUNCILMAN JONES:  -- manner.  And I

9 don't know if it's a pass/fail or a -- you

10 got a B.  You can get an A if you do the

11 following things.  I don't know if it's on

12 that kind of measurement.

13     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

14     COUNCILMAN JONES:  If it is, is it

15 appropriate for you to share that with us?

16     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

17     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Because if we're

18 talking about the numbers that you

19 mentioned, it's a major commitment by your

20 department, but it's a major commitment of

21 our budget.  And we constantly -- we are

22 going to ask the same thing of DHS.

23     But is there a way that you can kind of

24 constantly inform us, hey, we're doing good
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1 in this aspect of it.  We need to do better

2 in recovery.  And by doing that, I think a

3 couple years ago you guys did a wonderful

4 presentation showing the inner locking

5 relationship between you, DHS and, I think

6 it was, the Health Department.  And I just

7 thought it was an excellent way to get us to

8 understand how this major budget

9 classification works.

10     So, if you can share that again.

11     DR. EVANS:  Let me just tick off a

12 couple things just so you have a sense of

13 comprehensiveness of the way we approach it.

14     I mentioned we have what we call, for

15 lack of a better word, integrated monitoring

16 teams.  That's not what we call them

17 internally, but that's probably more

18 descriptive of people who work across my

19 agency from CBH to Office of Addiction

20 Services to mental health.  We do a

21 comprehensive look at each provider every

22 year or every other year depending on how

23 long they're credentialed.

24     We do Pay For Performance where we look
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1 at data and we -- we determine which

2 providers are performing well and which are

3 performers -- providers are not performing

4 so well.  In fact, we have been written up

5 about our Pay For Performance system as one

6 of the few places in the country that have a

7 pay-for-performance behavioral healthcare

8 system.  It's pretty extensive.

9     We have -- just a quick aside, on the

10 Pay For Performance, we have been literally

11 saved millions of dollars because we're able

12 to do is by incentivizing providers to

13 provide better care, we have been able to

14 reduce things like unnecessary readmissions

15 to inpatient settings which at 5/600 dollars

16 a day can be quite expensive.  We literally

17 saved millions of dollars.  We more than

18 paid for the program.

19     So in addition to Pay for Performance,

20 in addition to the monitoring, we also have

21 consumer satisfaction team.  There is a

22 separate contract, people who go out and

23 talk directly to people in the programs

24 independent of us.  And what they are asking
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1 is, how were you treated?  Are your needs

2 being met?

3     They give us a report on each provider

4 every year.  I meet with them, with the

5 executive director of that agency that does

6 that report with my executive staff.  We go

7 over those reports, over their findings.

8 And we deploy them to do other kinds of

9 work.  Within CBH, we also have compliance

10 that goes out and looks at their -- at

11 providers, whether or not they are adhering

12 to Medicaid rules.

13     We also have quality checks where if

14 there is an issue, a critical incident,

15 where we will send staff from CBH and often

16 physicians into providers to look at what,

17 you know, the practice or providers.  If you

18 kind of put all of that together, you know,

19 we have a pretty comprehensive view of any

20 particular provider.  You know, the issue

21 around sort of carrot sticks, we have I

22 think a good combination of carrot sticks.

23 The Pay For Performance is a carrot.

24     If you achieve really highly, you will
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1 get financially rewarded.  We also have

2 sticks so that if providers aren't doing

3 what they need to do, we will extrude them

4 from the network.  We've done that last

5 year.  I think we terminated the contracts

6 for two or three different providers who

7 weren't meeting muster.

8     I think we have a good comprehensive

9 range of things.  We try to be very

10 thoughtful.  Couple of other things that I

11 will just mention in terms of quality, we

12 have a very extensive evidence-based

13 practice initiative where we are bringing in

14 the best practices literally in the world in

15 terms of state of the art.  And, you know,

16 people in South Philly and North Philly and

17 West Philly are really getting start of the

18 art treatments in some of our treatment

19 programs.

20     And you know, all of that together, I

21 think, gives us, you know, a level of

22 confidence that, for the most part, people

23 are getting good services.

24     COUNCILMAN JONES:  So, we have over the
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1 years found -- we kind of in this body kind

2 of know which departments kind of really

3 give us what we need by way of information

4 and trusting that -- you're one of them, so

5 that you know.

6     One of the things that I hope you might

7 consider, friendly submitted, is that a

8 certain point in some departments what we

9 realize that we are contracting out,

10 contracting out, contracting out.  And it

11 felt good.  Cost effective when we first

12 started.  We started realizing that the cost

13 of it started inching up.  And some

14 departments actually took the direction to

15 say, no, I'm not going to contract.  I'm

16 going to -- it hit the equilibrium point

17 where I want to higher someone.

18     The Recreation, Public Property has done

19 that.  They have done in-house units now

20 where they realize it just doesn't pay for

21 me to keep contracting out.

22     DR. EVANS:  Sure.

23     COUNCILMAN JONES:  In your field of

24 endeavor, is there a equilibrium point or is
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1 there an evaluation where you say, you know

2 what, we spend a lot on this, a lot on this.

3 Maybe it comes a time where we should within

4 our own employment base hire somebody to

5 just cover that.  Do you evaluate for that

6 kind of thing particularly around schools?

7     At what point is it better to just go

8 ahead and get a counselor that has a degree

9 in social work or even better a doctorate in

10 healthcare or mental health?

11     DR. EVANS:  Sure.  I think this comes

12 down to how we're funded.  We're not funded

13 like most other city agencies.  Most of the

14 dollars that we get are state/federal

15 dollars.  Most of those dollars are Medicaid

16 dollars.  And obviously, Medicaid has

17 certain rules around what you can pay for,

18 what you can't pay for.

19     We cannot pay ourselves to provide

20 services, for example.  I think your

21 question was should we just hire people and

22 deploy them.  Not really.  Because what we

23 have to do and what we're required to do is

24 identify providers who are licensed and have
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1 those providers pay their service.  And our

2 role is then to pay for and oversee that

3 system.

4     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Okay.  Understood.

5 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

6     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,

7 Councilman.

8     Chair recognizes Councilman Neilson.

9     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Just a real quick

10 follow up to Councilman Jones.

11     You cannot pay yourselves for those

12 services.  However, are we able to pay the

13 School District?  That's not yourselves.

14     DR. EVANS:  Right.  No, I understand.

15     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Can you register as

16 a provider, kind of on the line what I was

17 talking about earlier, that we could put

18 people full time in those school facilities?

19 I mean, we can -- it's there.

20     DR. EVANS:  We certainly can look at

21 that.  Let me give you an example.  It's a

22 good question.

23     So typically, we contract with two types

24 of providers:  Either license programs, so
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1 community mental health center; a hospital,

2 so Temple, University of Pennsylvania

3 hospital systems.  We contract with them for

4 inpatient services or residential services

5 or outpatient services and then we also

6 contract with individual practitioners at

7 the doctorate level, so psychiatrist and

8 psychologist.  We independently can be a

9 part of our network.

10     Those are the only two types of

11 providers that we reimburse for Medicaid

12 reimbursable services.  So, it could be that

13 a -- the School District, I mean, we can

14 talk through this.  I am sure that somebody

15 back there that wants to kick me at this

16 point.

17     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  I know.

18     DR. EVANS:  They can't reach me yet, so

19 I am going to just tell you what I think.

20     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Every other

21 commissioner had Rebecca to the rescue.  I

22 don't see Rebecca coming up right how.  How

23 about if we just do this, Commissioner,

24 because we know where this is going to go.
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1     Can you make a commitment on the record

2 that you work with us --

3     DR. EVANS:  Absolutely.

4     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  -- Councilmembers

5 to take a hard look at this.  And maybe by

6 the end of the summer period, we have

7 answers that we can report back to the

8 public and say, hey, we're trying to make

9 our schools better.  This way we can have a

10 program in place by September by the time

11 school starts if we have to -- if we come to

12 some creative way to do this.

13     DR. EVANS:  We absolutely can do that.

14 You know, I read Councilman Clarke's, you

15 know, the whole concept.  And, you know,

16 it's a very good concept.  It's a very

17 strong concept.  We are certainly willing to

18 sit down with you and figure out how do we

19 creatively use the funding that we have to

20 both address the needs that you have or that

21 you are identifying but to do it in a way

22 that sort's of consistent with the way

23 you're discussing.

24     We would welcome those conversations.
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1     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  And again, thank

2 you, Commissioner.  And thank you for all

3 the work.

4     I have nothing further, Mr. President.

5     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,

6 Councilman.

7     I just had one question.  How many

8 district schools do not have a full-time

9 behavior or mental health specialist on

10 staff?

11     DR. EVANS:  That we fund or in general?

12 Because the School District, I think, they

13 have lost most of their counselors.

14     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  How many do

15 you fund?

16     DR. EVANS:  We are in 107 schools

17 providing school therapeutic services and

18 then another 30 or so -- 25 schools where we

19 are providing prevention-type services.

20     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  So, we --

21     DR. EVANS:  We are in over half of the

22 schools.

23     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  We have like

24 267 schools?
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1     DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES:  I think

2 there's 218 schools.  Of the 218, we are in

3 132.  About 61 percent.

4     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  All right.

5 So 218?  When the School District

6 representative was here earlier, actually

7 late last year, she said it was 267.

8     DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES:  I think that

9 that 267 includes their preschools, their

10 alternative schools.

11     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Okay.

12     DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES:  When I'm

13 saying 218, I'm referring to specifically K

14 through 12.

15     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Okay.

16     DR. EVANS:  Which is where we have

17 services.

18     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Okay.  All

19 right.  Thank you.

20     Appears to be it for today.  Thank you

21 very much for your testimony.

22     DR. EVANS:  Thank very much.  I want to

23 congratulate and thank Councilwoman Tasco.

24 I know this is your last testimony, so.

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 102

1                 (Applause)

2     DR. EVANS:  Thank you for all your

3 support over the years.

4     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  We talked her

5 out of it.  She's going to hang around.

6                 (Laughter)

7     DR. EVANS:  I don't know.  She's got

8 that retirement look in her eyes.  I don't

9 think.

10     Thank you.

11     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you so

12 much for your testimony.

13     Health Department is next.

14                  -  -  -

15     (Brief break taken as Health Department

16 gathers towards Witness Table.)

17                  -  -  -

18     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  We are going

19 to start now.  Thank you.

20     Good afternoon.  Please proceed.

21     DR. BUEHLER:  Good afternoon, Council

22 President Clarke and Members of City

23 Council.  My name is James Buehler.  I'm the

24 Health Commissioner for the Philadelphia
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1 Department of Public Health.  I'm pleased to

2 be here today with you.  I'm joined by Tara

3 Mohr who is our Deputy Commissioner for

4 Finance and Jane Baker who is the Chief of

5 Staff for the department.  Thank you very

6 much for the opportunity to present the

7 Department of Public Health's operating

8 budget for Fiscal Year 2016.

9     The FY16 Budget will continue to support

10 our mission to protect and promote the

11 health of all Philadelphians and to provide

12 a safety net for the most valuable.  You

13 have my full written testimony, so I will

14 summarize.

15     With the support of council and the

16 collaboration of many partners throughout

17 the City, the department has extended the

18 progress made under the leadership of my

19 predecessor Dr. Donald Schwarz, and we have

20 addressed new challenges, as well.  The

21 department's fiscal year budget request

22 totals $354 million of which 160 million is

23 in the General Fund, 75 million in the

24 Grants Fund and 163 million in the Acute
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1 Hospital Care Assessment Fund.

2     For the General Fund request, this

3 represents an increase of approximately

4 $31,000 over FY15's estimated obligations.

5 This increase is due to anticipated salary

6 increases or to help cover those for DC33

7 and DC47 staff.

8     The budget will support 983 full-time

9 positions.  Among 830 currently filled

10 positions as of last December, nearly

11 three-fourths are held by people of minority

12 race ethnicity.  A proportion that is

13 similar for the 51 new full-time staff hired

14 through December 2014 for the current fiscal

15 year.  Women account for 70 percent and

16 61 percent respectively for all full-time

17 staff and new hires.  People who are

18 bilingual or multilingual represent 29

19 percent of full-time staff and 30 percent of

20 new hires with the predominant language

21 being Spanish, but a list that includes many

22 other languages from around the world.

23 35 percent of our contract dollars spent

24 with for-profit companies are for companies
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1 with MWD status above our target set by OEO

2 of 20 percent.

3     Key highlights from our program include

4 the following.  Our ongoing efforts to

5 discourage smoking and promote smoking

6 cessation and prohibit tobacco sales to

7 minors have been accompanied by declines in

8 tobacco use.  According to the latest survey

9 conducted by the Public Health Management

10 Corporation, smoking rates among

11 Philadelphians are at an all time low.  We

12 are continuing our collaborations with the

13 Philadelphia School District and others to

14 promote health among youth.  And we have

15 seen continuing declines in the rate of teen

16 births, sexually transmitted diseases among

17 teens.  And we have seen continuing declines

18 in the obesity rate among children.

19     We continue to see improvements in air

20 quality in Philadelphia reflecting our work

21 to monitor air quality and to regulate

22 emissions.

23     Regarding our Food Service Inspection

24 Program, we are continuing to upgrade the --
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1 our service to food service owners

2 automating our services.  In addition, we

3 have -- are adding more sanitarians to

4 improve the timeliness of our inspections

5 and we have provided new training to our

6 sanitarians to improve the consistency of

7 their work around the City.

8     Dr. Schwarz has previously spoken to you

9 about our work over the past few years to

10 become accredited by the National Public

11 Health Accreditation Board.  Earlier this

12 year we submitted documentations of our

13 accomplishments and capacities to fulfil

14 approximately 300 criteria that are acquired

15 to become accredited.  We are hoping that

16 following the site visit this summer, that

17 we will achieve full accreditation.  Going

18 forward, this will make us more competitive

19 for federal grants in the future.

20     Dr. Schwarz has also spoken previously

21 about our work to install an electronic

22 health records system in our eight community

23 health centers.  This has been a huge effort

24 requiring upgrades to our information
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1 technology infrastructure, a step by this

2 roll out and successful centers and training

3 of administrative nursing and physician

4 staff in the use of this new tool.  The

5 electronic record system is now up and

6 running in all eight of our clinics.  Over

7 the current year, we will continue to build

8 out the capacity so we will be able to take

9 full advantage of that system.

10     We are also proud to continue our

11 tradition of providing high quality care to

12 people of Philadelphia.  Roughly half our

13 patients are ensured either by Medicaid or

14 Medicare and few by private insurance.

15 Roughly, half of our patients are uninsured.

16 We are very proud to learn that this year

17 among our patients who have been surveyed,

18 91 percent would recommend to their family

19 members to come to our clinic, which is the

20 highest patient satisfaction score for any

21 other organization in Philadelphia that

22 provides community health centers.

23     We also know that the community health

24 survey conducted by BHMC, that the
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1 percentage of Philadelphians 18 to 64 years

2 in age who lack health insurance has dropped

3 from around 18 and a half percent in 2012 to

4 12 percent this year.  This is a trend that

5 does not yet reflect the impact of Medicaid

6 expansion in Pennsylvania.  We have not yet

7 seen the increase in overall percentage of

8 patients at our clinics that are insured.

9 We expect the Medicaid Expansion will make a

10 difference and our benefits counselors

11 continue to work actively with our clients

12 to determine their eligibility and to get

13 them enrolled.

14     The Ebola outbreak in West Africa, which

15 is ongoing, although beginning to decline as

16 well as occurrences of two cases of Ebola of

17 nurses in Dallas last fall shook the nation

18 Headlines screamed about the fear of Ebola.

19 In collaboration, both the state and the

20 federal governments, we work with the

21 healthcare community to assure their

22 readiness.  We provided information to the

23 public and we collaborated with groups that

24 represent our large West African community

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 109

1 in Philadelphia to address their concern and

2 to confront the problem of fear-bola.

3     In addition, we've been in daily contact

4 with travelers who are entering Philadelphia

5 from the three effected countries in West

6 Africa out to 21 days from their departure.

7 On any given day, seven days a week this has

8 involved calls between 30 and 50 people.

9 And altogether, we have now worked with

10 approximately 500 travelers of whom just a

11 very few have required further medical

12 evaluation.  And none have had Ebola.

13     Also in the news this year was the

14 nationwide measles outbreak, but that

15 outbreak bypassed Philadelphia.  That's

16 probably due in some part to luck, but it's

17 also a testament to our immunization

18 program, to the diligence of doctors and

19 nurses throughout Philadelphia, and the fact

20 that our level of measles vaccine coverage,

21 over 95 percent of children in Philadelphia

22 between 1930 and five months of age have had

23 more than one dose of measles vaccine is

24 over 95 percent and is higher than both the
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1 state and the national averages.

2     Lastly, the Pope is coming to

3 Philadelphia in September and working with

4 the City's office of Emergency Management to

5 be prepare to protect the health of

6 Philadelphia and the estimated 2 million

7 visitors who will be coming to our City

8 during this event.

9     I thank you Council President and

10 Members of the Council for your continuing

11 support of public health in Philadelphia.

12 And I will delighted to answer your

13 questions.

14     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you.

15     One quick question and I will defer to

16 my colleagues.  How many health centers do

17 we have?

18     DR. BUEHLER:  We have eight.

19     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  All of them

20 located in publicly owned facilities?

21     DR. BUEHLER:  That's correct.  I

22 believe -- they're either City-owned

23 facilities.  Right now Health Center 2 is

24 operating a temporary space that's rented
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1 because that health center is being

2 renovated in collaboration with the

3 Children's Hospital of Philadelphia, the

4 Parks and Recreation Department and the

5 Library.  There will be a new multi --

6 agency multi-organization center in South

7 Philly that will house Health Center 2.

8     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Okay.

9     If the cost associated, because it's

10 publicly owned, if -- I'm assuming that

11 being able to be a publicly-owned site

12 reduces significantly the cost of operating;

13 am I correct?

14     DR. BUEHLER:  I would assume so, but I'd

15 have to double check to be sure.

16     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  All right.

17 See you smiling at me saying where is this

18 guy going.  As we continue to deal with the

19 challenges of, I think you're going to hear

20 some questions shortly about not having

21 enough health centers -- if we were in a

22 position to utilize other publicly-owned

23 space, essentially be nominal cost in terms

24 of our use of the space for rent purposes,
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1 would that significantly help or help to

2 some degree your ability to expand the

3 health care center?

4     DR. BUEHLER:  Right.  Just to back up a

5 bit.  Our eight centers are also

6 complemented by over 30 other, what are

7 called federally qualified health centers or

8 FQHCs, community health centers.

9     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Do we pay for

10 those?

11     DR. BUEHLER:  No.  They are

12 independently operated.

13     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Okay.

14     DR. BUEHLER:  They serve a clientele

15 somewhat similar to ours.  We tend to see a

16 higher percentage of patients who are

17 uninsured.  We don't turn anybody away.

18     Clearly, if we were going to expand our

19 capacity, then moving into space that the

20 City already owns would be substantial

21 savings.  We know that average square

22 footing of our health centers is about

23 23,000 feet.  We also have some special

24 information technology infrastructure

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 113

1 requirements to support the various

2 technologies that -- that we have.  So, the

3 expense to move into existing space would

4 need to accommodate our footprint as well as

5 IT infrastructure needs.

6     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Okay.  All

7 right.  Thank you.

8     Chair recognizes Councilman Greenlee.

9     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Thank you,

10 Mr. President.  And you're right, I think I

11 want to talk about that same subject, too.

12     First, let me just say it was great

13 working with your department on the

14 regulation of electronic cigarettes.  Has

15 that -- has been any studies done on that to

16 show the effect of that yet as far as people

17 cutting that -- first children not using it

18 and then any other effects?

19     DR. BUEHLER:  We don't have local data

20 for Philadelphia yet.  We know at the

21 national level that, unfortunately -- the

22 good news is that regular tobacco use is

23 declining among young people.  But that's

24 almost made up for -- that is being offset
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1 by increase in use of electronic cigarettes

2 by youth.

3     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Right.  Something

4 we got to keep working on.  On the health

5 center issue --

6     DR. BUEHLER:  Yes.

7     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  I ask this every

8 year as a number of people do.  And I was

9 thinking along the same lines as Council

10 President.  One of the question I bring up

11 all the time is Health Center 10, which is a

12 problem.  I know.

13                 (Applause)

14     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  I did that just to

15 make Allison Rosenthal happy.

16     But obviously, that's got the longest

17 waiting list.  Councilman Neilson and I were

18 talking about how it encompasses such a

19 large area.  I mean, they all encompass an

20 area.  But that, I think, where it, is that

21 area north of it has grown over the years.

22 And I think the need from the people in that

23 area have obviously grown.

24     And I think -- I think you were kind of
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1 talking about this where the Council

2 President was going.  Is there any way to

3 make, for lack of word, satellite offices or

4 something?

5     DR. BUEHLER:  Let me say a little bit

6 more about the health centers and Health

7 Center 10.  Just want thank you for the

8 opportunity to talk about the situation at

9 Health Center 10.

10     So overall, City-wide our average wait

11 time for a new patient visit, median wait

12 time, is about 49 days.  It's substantially

13 longer.  It's four or five months at Health

14 Center 10.  The wait time for an existing

15 patient is considerably shorter.  The wait

16 time for a pediatric patient is much

17 shorter.  The wait time for a new prenatal

18 patient is very short.

19     But Health Center 10 is clearly right

20 now the pressure point.  We are taking

21 several steps to address that.  One is that

22 we are soon to bid out for expanding the

23 number of examination rooms at Health Center

24 10.  We have applied for a new federal grant
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1 that would allow us to expand the

2 operational hours at Health Center 10 as

3 well as to add more behavioral mental health

4 services.  Part of that is tied up with our

5 status of what's called a federally

6 qualified health center lookalike.  We

7 transitioned -- are looking to transition

8 with Health Center 10 to a full fledged

9 federally qualified health center.

10     That will allow us to take advantage not

11 only of federal subsidies to supplement the

12 Medicaid reimbursement rates, but it will

13 also if we are successful in that

14 application, that allows us to apply for

15 federal funding for both capital and

16 operational dollars.  We are hopeful about

17 that.

18     We -- we have looked at a possible

19 space.  I believe I mentioned there in the

20 capital budget hearing that it's great space

21 but a terrible location.  And so, we've met

22 once with PIDC.  We are planning to have a

23 follow-up meeting with them to explore

24 possibilities for expanding that.  And the
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1 options would include either developing a

2 satellite or building an entirely new

3 center.

4     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Okay.  I know

5 money is always an issue and part of our

6 problem, I guess.  Has there been any study

7 done as far as where the people come from

8 that go to Health Center 10?

9     For example, I would expect over the

10 years that the folks that came from the more

11 northern part of that area has increased.

12 Is that a fair statement?

13     DR. BUEHLER:  So in order to apply for

14 that additional federal funding that I

15 mentioned, we did have to do a needs

16 assessment.

17     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Right.

18     DR. BUEHLER:  That clearly validated

19 what we all know that indeed there is an

20 unmet need for care in that part of the

21 City.  I think in part because of the growth

22 and the changing nature of the population.

23 So, that is definitely a part of it.

24     We're also collaborating with a group at
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1 the University of Pennsylvania on a study

2 that they're doing to look at the

3 relationship between population and where

4 access to primary care is located.  We will

5 be looking forward to their results.

6     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Okay.  I

7 appreciate.  And again, I know you don't

8 like those wait times any more than anybody

9 else does.  We're certainly not blaming.

10 But by the same token, seems that every year

11 we talk about the same issue.

12     DR. BUEHLER:  I hope that next year we

13 will be able to have more progress.

14     COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  First off, we hope

15 you're here to ask you those questions.

16     Thank you, Mr. President.

17     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  All right.  I'm

18 going to pick up right where Bill left off.

19 Because unfortunately, if we wait till next

20 year to solve this issue and with people

21 waiting four to five months to see a doctor,

22 they are going to die.  They are not going

23 to be here next year.  I mean, that's real.

24 They are going untreated.
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1     Tomorrow, what is your solution for

2 this?  I mean, we brought up year after

3 year.  I know you're new.  You and I got

4 sworn in probably the same time, so I don't

5 want to put the pressure on you but we need

6 to because these people are in dire need.

7 And it's not -- it's just not fair the way

8 it's laid out.  And we talked it, fairness

9 and equality.  Everything we talk about down

10 here at City Council is this.

11     So, we have people waiting four to five

12 months.  What can we do in the immediate

13 response?  Can we transport them to other

14 health centers?  Can we make them because

15 they can't get around?  Is there something

16 we can provide these people service to cut

17 this time down because this is one of those

18 unacceptable situations.

19     And for us to say, well, maybe next year

20 we'll fix it, I mean, that's what you just

21 said, I couldn't let that go.  That's not

22 acceptable to me or any other Member of

23 Council.

24     DR. BUEHLER:  I appreciate --
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1     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  I know we did a

2 study.  We did the assessment.  We all know

3 what we know.  What are we going to do

4 tomorrow?  Not next year, tomorrow.

5     DR. BUEHLER:  Another point that is

6 important to emphasize is that roughly

7 one-fourth of all of our patient visits you

8 see around 300,000 patient visits a year.

9 Among about 80,000 -- 70, 80, 90,000 people.

10 About a quarter of all our patient visits

11 are walk ins.  We do reserve space on our

12 agenda at every one of our centers for

13 walk-in clients.

14     The second thing that we can do is

15 that -- we'd be happy to get back to you

16 with information about the differences in

17 wait times at different facilities.  It's

18 substantially less at other places.  Any

19 resident of Philadelphia can go to any one

20 of our health centers.  They don't have to

21 wait to get into Health Center 10.

22     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Because that's what

23 we just said -- four, five months wait.

24     DR. BUEHLER:  At Health Center 10 wait
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1 time.

2     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  That's's what at

3 issue here is 10.  If it's that bad there,

4 we have to be able to compensate for the

5 other ones.  Seems just like a shift of

6 services because the population and the

7 demographics and the people who need the

8 help most are moving around the City, and we

9 ought to be able to shift along with them.

10     We just had it from our previous

11 commissioner came in about the mental health

12 services.  Are you teaming up with them to

13 get some of their funding to try and provide

14 some of these services within your centers?

15     DR. BUEHLER:  We have started a pilot at

16 two of our health centers.  The numbers are

17 not -- at the tip of my tongue to on a pilot

18 basis offer mental health services that are

19 really integrating the mental, behavioral

20 and physical healthcare at two of our

21 centers.  If that works, then we will

22 continue to expand that.

23     We are seeking to get -- to be able to

24 seek reimbursement from CBH for those mental
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1 health services.  We are stepping down that

2 path.

3     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Wonderful.  Also in

4 your testimony, you mentioned a percentage

5 of the people that come in to your facility

6 are uninsured.  What was that percentage?

7 Do you remember what you said?

8     DR. BUEHLER:  It's roughly half.  We

9 expect that's going to change with Medicaid

10 expansion.  It's really too early to see

11 that yet.

12     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  So the -- by

13 National Healthcare Reform, still we're

14 going through some transitions and getting

15 treatments first most important.

16     After we treat an individual or person,

17 are we attempting to get them the insurance

18 they need?  Because a lot of people from my

19 experience in my previous office, we got a

20 lot of people that were uninsured come in

21 looking for insurance.  They were qualified

22 but they just didn't know it.

23     DR. BUEHLER:  Right.

24     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  After you provide
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1 their healthcare services, do you provide a

2 counseling mechanism.  Say, hey, look, you

3 need to go get insurance?  Because I am sure

4 probably there has to be a high percentage

5 of people without insurance that do qualify.

6 It's just a matter of getting them to the

7 right spots.

8     DR. BUEHLER:  Absolutely.  So, we have

9 benefits counselors at our clinics.  Right

10 now when we call you to remind you about

11 your appointment, we also remind you that if

12 you're not insured, what documents you would

13 need to bring that would enable us to get

14 you insured.  In the first two quarters of

15 the current fiscal year, we successfully

16 enrolled nearly 2,000 people who would be

17 previously being uninsured in health

18 insurance.  We hope to continue that.

19     We also work with other partners in the

20 community who are doing outreach to improve

21 the awareness about new opportunities to

22 become insured.  So, we are doing everything

23 like we can within our clinics to make sure

24 that our clients are aware of their
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1 eligibility and get signed up.

2     COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Thank you.  Thank

3 you for your testimony.  Doctor, you're

4 doing a great job.  We both are I think.

5 But time will tell and thanks for coming

6 this.

7     No further questions, Mr. President.

8     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,

9 Councilman.

10     Chair recognizes Councilman Jones.

11     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Thank you,

12 Mr. President, and welcome to government.

13     We give a customary free pass first year

14 to every new commissioner because that's

15 what we do.  So these questions, even if you

16 cannot answer them, will be ready for next

17 year, God willing, that you're still with

18 us.

19     Just a couple of quick things because I

20 heard some of the answers to my questions

21 by -- submitted by other people.

22     Just real quick.  What is our obesity --

23 child obesity situation?  Adult and child

24 obesity circumstance in Philly as you see
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1 it?

2     DR. BUEHLER:  So, adult obesity has

3 continued to gradually increase.  The

4 childhood obesity has declined.  Perhaps I

5 can say a little bit more about what we're

6 doing to address childhood obesity.

7     Much of that work is with the School

8 District.  We have worked with the School

9 District to help them meet the guidelines

10 for healthy foods.  We have helped them

11 assure that the school kids have access to

12 water to drink instead of sugar-sweetened

13 beverages.  We have supported them in

14 wellness counsels and different activities

15 to increase opportunities to get up and move

16 around as well as things like fundraisers to

17 sell things that are not going to contribute

18 to obesity.

19     A variety of different things to work

20 with, with the schools to promote healthy

21 eating and active lifestyle.

22     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Do you think

23 Councilwoman Reynolds Brown menu labeling

24 bill has helped out?
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1     DR. BUEHLER:  Well, we know -- we

2 know -- thank you for mentioning that.

3     We know that from the evaluation that

4 had been done, when we look at a chain

5 company that's got one of our restaurants or

6 a chain company that's in Philly and the

7 same company outside, but they have the

8 label on ours, inside Philly we know that

9 the buying patterns are different among

10 clients that coming to the restaurant that

11 have the menu labels.

12     You may also be aware that right now

13 although we are promulgating our regulation

14 and restaurants are adhering to that, our

15 restaurant inspectors when they go out to

16 the restaurants are looking at the menu

17 labels to assure it adheres to that.  That

18 more aggressive implementation is now -- we

19 are preempted by the federal law.  The main

20 difference between the federal law and our

21 law is that our regulation requires labeling

22 of salt content, which is also important.

23 It's a major contributor to high blood

24 pressure and morbidity and premature death.
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1 We've applied to the FDA for a waiver or an

2 exemption so that we can use our labeling

3 bill that adds that requirement.

4     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Between Councilman

5 Greenlee and Councilwoman Reynolds Brown,

6 major contributors which of paid sick leave

7 to getting us healthy in Philadelphia.  I

8 thank both of my colleagues for that.

9     One of the reasons I supported menu

10 labeling, because I come from an economic

11 development background.  Some of the small

12 businesses were really upset with the bill

13 because it cost them like 30,000 to change

14 their menu boards and things like that.  But

15 one of the compelling reasons I went with it

16 was that Councilwoman Reynolds Brown showed

17 me a map where obesity was, where

18 hypertension in the City was, where organ

19 failure, kidney failure, other compelling

20 health reasons and also correlated it with

21 food deserts.  So, she won me over through

22 the mapping and the statistics of it.

23     By way of hypertension, things like that

24 where -- is there a correlation between
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1 poverty, food choices and other things that

2 these illnesses go up?

3     DR. BUEHLER:  So there's a correlation

4 between poverty and many health risks or

5 adverse health outcomes.  The risk of

6 disease or the risk of having a complication

7 of disease is widely recognized to be higher

8 in areas with high rates of poverty.  That's

9 compounded by the lack of opportunities to

10 be healthy.

11     We worked with many other departments

12 around the City to try to expand

13 opportunities to be healthy to get exercise.

14 We also worked with the food trucks to

15 expand access to farmers markets.  We worked

16 with corner stores all around the City to

17 help prove access to fresh fruits and

18 vegetables there.  We have a food bucks

19 program that people can go to a farmers

20 market and amplify the food stamp benefit

21 that they get to buy fresh fruits and

22 vegetables.

23     We have done a number of things to try

24 to improve that situation all around the
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1 City.

2     One other thing I mentioned is not our

3 program but the food trust recently was

4 awarded a $5 million grant from Glaxo

5 Smith -- GSK to partner with youth

6 organizations to promote even greater access

7 to healthy food among young people.  That's

8 not our program, but we worked with them and

9 supported that.  So, our collaboration with

10 the Food Trust is providing them opportunity

11 to amplify our work.

12     COUNCILMAN JONES:  How are we doing by

13 way of infant mortality.  A couple of years

14 back it was a startling statistic that

15 suggested we had a higher,

16 disproportionately so, rate of infant

17 mortality in Philadelphia.  Have we made any

18 headway with that?

19     DR. BUEHLER:  This is an area where

20 we've made some progress, but clearly not

21 enough.  Our infant mortality rates are

22 lower than they were ten years ago, but the

23 overall infant mortality rate in

24 Philadelphia for the last few years have
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1 hovered around ten deaths for every --

2     COUNCILMAN JONES:  How does that compare

3 to other cities?

4     DR. BUEHLER:  It's comparable to other

5 cities with high levels of poverty and

6 comparable demographics.

7     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Once again, the

8 poverty issue.

9     DR. BUEHLER:  Right.  We also see a very

10 sadly, again, this is not just a

11 Philadelphia problem.  It's a national

12 problem that the infant mortality rate among

13 African-American infants is about three

14 times that for whites.  The rate for

15 Hispanic infants is a little higher than

16 whites, but nearly -- not nearly that high.

17 It's a really tragic situation.

18     You know, we work to provide prenatal

19 services.  We, through different funding

20 that we have from the Federal Government

21 either directly or through the state, have

22 different home visiting services.  Other

23 organizations in the communities are doing

24 home visiting to mothers and families to
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1 help them get their kids get the healthiest

2 possible start.

3     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Last year you gave

4 out 37,000 condoms in 12 high schools in

5 order to try to deal with STDs.

6     A, how did you pick the high schools?

7 And, B, was it successful?

8     DR. BUEHLER:  So, our goal is to have

9 free condoms available in every high school.

10 We pick the high schools by targeting every

11 high school.  Right now, free condoms are

12 available to kids in every -- all but one

13 high school here in Philadelphia.  And then

14 dispensing machine that they can go to.  We

15 also do annual STD screening at high

16 schools.  We went to, I think, 50 public

17 schools and seven charters the past school

18 year.  As part of that, we offer voluntary

19 STD screening.  We also make condoms

20 available.  So it becomes available through

21 that screening effort but also through a

22 dispenser that kids can very without having

23 to ask for it, you can just get it.

24     We've also, through social media,
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1 targeted education -- we are seeing the STD

2 rates coming down.  That's -- the two most

3 common STDs are gonorrhea and chlamydia.

4 The rates on chlamydia and gonorrhea among

5 teenagers are coming down.  We had some of

6 the highest rates in the country.  Now for

7 the past several years, we have seen that

8 turn around and it's coming down.

9     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Thank you,

10 Mr. President.

11     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,

12 Councilman.

13     Chair recognizes Councilwoman Reynolds

14 Brown.

15     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Thank you.

16 Good morning, Mr. President.

17     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Good morning.

18     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Did you

19 say all but one high school have condoms?

20     DR. BUEHLER:  Yes.

21     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Are you at

22 liberty to say which school does not and

23 why?

24     DR. BUEHLER:  I'm sorry?
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1     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Which

2 school does not have the availability of

3 condoms and why?

4     DR. BUEHLER:  It's believe it's Girls

5 High School.  I'd have to follow up to get

6 the specifics on why they haven't joined on

7 yet.

8     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  You have

9 to follow up to let us know why they are not

10 in the mix?

11     DR. BUEHLER:  Yeah.  I don't know

12 exactly why they haven't signed on to the

13 program yet.  We know that they are the one

14 high school that has not yet signed up yet

15 to allow us to provide the free condom

16 dispenser.

17     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.  I

18 think it was three years ago I worked

19 closely with HAPCO, Homeowners Association

20 of Philadelphia because evidence suggested,

21 evidence data collected by PCCY, indicated

22 that too many of our children were still

23 being poisoned by lead.  And since then, I

24 know the department has put some
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1 infrastructure in place.

2     Provide an update, please.

3     DR. BUEHLER:  We very aggressively

4 follow up on every child screening that has

5 an elevated blood level.  We go out to the

6 house.  We identify what the needs for

7 remediation of the house are and work to

8 resolve that situation.  We also have a new

9 grant from -- federal grant that's allowing

10 us to be proactive.  It's --

11     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  That's

12 good.

13     DR. BUEHLER:  We identify neighborhood

14 and try to reach out in advance of a child

15 becoming lead poisoned.

16     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  And so, do

17 you have enough data to suggest that there's

18 been an improvement in those numbers?

19     DR. BUEHLER:  We have seen overall rates

20 of lead poisoning in kids come down.

21     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Very good.

22     DR. BUEHLER:  The new effort to prevent

23 is too early in the going to show an impact.

24     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.  I
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1 would ask that you share that information

2 with HAPCO because they were a major

3 partners in trying to find some common

4 ground to address this issue.  And I think

5 they deserve to know that their partnership

6 and us crafting, finding some middle ground,

7 has had great benefits.

8     DR. BUEHLER:  Be delighted to make sure

9 you got that.

10     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  To the

11 leadership and membership of HAPCO.

12     I have a couple other questions linked

13 to Councilman Jones.  Hopefully, they'll

14 come back to me.

15     Currently, what is the wait time to be

16 treated at any one of Philadelphia's health

17 centers?

18     DR. BUEHLER:  It's going to vary by

19 whether you're a new patient, we've never

20 seen you before or whether you're an

21 existing patient and you're coming back.

22 The median wait time overall as of just

23 earlier this month was 49 days.  The range

24 there is anywhere from a little over 31 out
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1 to 127 with 127 being an outlier.  That's

2 Health Center 10.  It's less than that.

3     The median is 25 days if you are an

4 existing patient.  If you are a pediatric

5 patient, the median is 5 days for a new

6 visit.  And if you are a prenatal patient,

7 the middle point of that is 11 days.

8     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Is what?

9     DR. BUEHLER:  Eleven for prenatal.

10     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Is that

11 improvement over past years?  Does that

12 remain the same or no?

13     DR. BUEHLER:  It's gotten a little bit

14 worse over the past year.  Part of that is

15 because coincident with insulation --

16     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Talk

17 deeper into the mic so I can hear you.

18     DR. BUEHLER:  The wait times have

19 stretched out a little longer over the past

20 year in part because of the, you might say,

21 the disruption of installing the electronic

22 health record.

23     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.

24     DR. BUEHLER:  We're not alone there.
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1 The medic -- the whole country, every

2 clinic, every doctor, every hospital is

3 dealing with that transition.  When you

4 install this new system, it takes time to

5 learn it, to accommodate to that.

6     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Sure.

7 Sure.  Let me do a rewind.

8     When you do the update with HAPCO, copy

9 me on that correspondence.

10     DR. BUEHLER:  Sure.

11     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.  So,

12 you are now in the world of electronic

13 records?

14     DR. BUEHLER:  Yes.

15     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Were there

16 multiple bidders on this new system, or is

17 there one electronic record system for the

18 entire city or for the entire country?  Who

19 is the lucky provider?

20     DR. BUEHLER:  The selection of a product

21 was made before I came on board.  I know

22 there was a very extensive and thoughtful

23 consideration.  The particular vendor that

24 we're working with is called the Clinical
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1 Works.  They have a strong track record of

2 working with primary care providers and

3 providers like ours.  I know that they are

4 the provider that New York City used before.

5     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Is that

6 right?

7     DR. BUEHLER:  I'm sorry.  The rest of

8 the question about the --

9     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  We have a

10 new provider.  How old is that contract or

11 what's the span of that contract?

12     DR. BUEHLER:  I believe it's -- Tara,

13 perhaps you can help me.  The length of the

14 existing contract.

15     DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOHR:  It was a

16 multi-year contract.  It was funded by

17 capital funds.  It was a multi-year

18 contract.  I believe that it initiated -- I

19 have the information.

20     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Multi-year

21 means what?  Two?  Three?  Four?

22     DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOHR:  Four years.

23 And we anticipate continuing work with the

24 vendor for several more years due to

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 139

1 maximizing/optimizing some of the other

2 additional features of the system.

3     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.  The

4 bell has rung, so I will continue on the

5 next round.  Thank you.

6     Thank you, Mr. President.

7     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,

8 Councilwoman.

9     Chair recognizes Councilwoman Tasco.

10     COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  I don't have a

11 question.  They answered it.  Thank you.

12     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you.

13 Chair recognizes Councilman Jones.

14     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Real quick,

15 Mr. President.

16     How are you dealing with the pricing of

17 the private sector compared to public sector

18 wages?  Are we holding our own?  How are you

19 addressing that?

20     DR. BUEHLER:  Right.  Our contractors

21 are compliant with the City's minimum wage

22 requirements.

23     COUNCILMAN JONES:  That means?

24     DR. BUEHLER:  Oh.  This is constantly an

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 140

1 issue for us.  There have been some areas

2 where we have been able to improve our

3 salaries and have greater guarantee with the

4 private sectors.  Dr. Schwarz a few years

5 ago made extensive effort to try to improve

6 the salary level for physicians to make them

7 more competitive.  We recently in our

8 medical examiner's office have also work to

9 make those salaries more competitive.

10     The scenario where the supply of people

11 coming into that training pipeline is

12 much -- doesn't meet the demand.  I think

13 we're -- we do pretty well, but we can do

14 better.

15     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Has anybody in the

16 personnel department did a comparable job

17 description to what a nurse's assistant or

18 nurse, a doctor working at Roxborough

19 Memorial Hospital would make compared to one

20 working in the Health Center?

21     Have you done an apples-to-apples

22 comparison on that?

23     DR. BUEHLER:  I don't know that we've

24 done that come kind of comparison.  But we
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1 do know that the nursing area is an area

2 where we have a pretty high turnover because

3 it is a competitive market.  We do tend to

4 lose nursing staff to outside providers.

5     COUNCILMAN JONES:  By your next budget

6 testimony, God willing, can you provide that

7 to us?  Because as we make decisions as to

8 our appropriations, I mean, it's helpful.

9 If there is a turnover problem for

10 registered nurses and it's because there's a

11 15, 17 percent differential in price, we may

12 beat the private market on the benefit side

13 but we're not holding our own on the wage

14 side.  We would like to know that from a low

15 end of the spectrum to the higher end.

16     DR. BUEHLER:  Will do.

17     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Thank you,

18 Mr. Chairman.

19     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you.

20 Chair recognizes Councilman Jones -- did you

21 want to follow Councilwoman Brown?  You have

22 follow up?

23     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Not a

24 follow up.  Just the next round.
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1     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Well, you're

2 the only one.

3     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.  All

4 right.  So, back to this question about the

5 health centers and the operational pieces of

6 that.

7     So, you've spoken about electronic

8 records.  Are they transferable across the

9 system?  A patient moves -- if they are

10 electronic, it's just a matter of plugging

11 in, correct?

12     DR. BUEHLER:  Right.  That's the goal of

13 electronic health record is that, first of

14 all, within our own network, it -- it's the

15 same system.

16     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.

17     DR. BUEHLER:  That the patient can be

18 seen at any one of our clinics and we can

19 access their record at any other clinic.

20 The -- one of the dimensions of our

21 continued work is to make sure that we have

22 the capacity so that if one of our patients

23 is referred to a specialist or if one of our

24 patients is seen at an emergency department
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1 if one of our patients requires

2 hospitalization, that we can have an

3 electronic handshake from their record

4 system to ours to do that.

5     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  That's

6 improvement.

7     DR. BUEHLER:  That's part of where we

8 are headed this coming year.

9     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Does that

10 work the same with Medicaid and Medicare?

11 Are patients -- when patients show up at the

12 health centers, you are able to make a

13 determination quickly because of electronic

14 records whether or not they have Medicare or

15 Medicare?

16     DR. BUEHLER:  There is two parts of the

17 electronic health record system.  One is the

18 administrative side, which the registration

19 would have information on the demographics

20 address, insurance status.  The other piece

21 of the system is really the medical record

22 part.  So, yes, we can look at our medical

23 record to know what we have known about that

24 patient before.  But then in addition, every
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1 time that we look at our list of who is

2 coming today, we double check.  We can go

3 out to the state's system to see if they

4 were enrolled in Medicaid or not.

5     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  How

6 quickly are you reimbursed by Medicaid and

7 Medicare?

8     DR. BUEHLER:  So, we -- there are two

9 steps to our reimbursement.  One is the

10 immediate reimbursement and then there's

11 so-called wraparound payment that Medicaid

12 guarantees to help us break even, basically,

13 for those patients.

14     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.  Can

15 you provide that information to me, please?

16     DR. BUEHLER:  Yeah.  I'd have to come

17 back.

18     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.  I

19 would imagine the budgets for the health

20 centers are driven by what?

21     Complete the sentence.

22     DR. BUEHLER:  They are driven by the

23 needs of our patients.

24     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  No two
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1 health centers budgets are exactly the same?

2     DR. BUEHLER:  I doubt it.

3     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.

4 What is the nature of follow up after a

5 patient leaves the health center?

6     DR. BUEHLER:  It depends on what the

7 plan is that's worked out during the patient

8 encounter.  If there is a plan that I want

9 to see you back in a couple of days, there

10 is room to do that in our scheduling.  There

11 is immediate.  They don't have to wait that

12 longer wait time or there's a follow-up plan

13 to come back at a specified time.

14     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Two final

15 questions.  President Clarke made it clear

16 at the very beginning of this budget hearing

17 process that departments needed to fit in

18 any one or all three of those categories.

19     What is the department's connectedness

20 to the Philadelphia public school system?

21     DR. BUEHLER:  We have a pretty deep

22 connection with the Philadelphia School

23 District.  Our aids program through

24 collaboration with a -- through one of our

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 146

1 community partners provides education and

2 counseling services around sexually

3 transmitted diseases and HIV.

4     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  All right.

5     DR. BUEHLER:  We have a bunch of

6 different services that are in the schools.

7     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  So, could

8 one have a chart of all the schools in

9 Councilwoman Tasco's area and you would be

10 able to show by a chart where you are

11 connected to those schools?

12     DR. BUEHLER:  Right.

13     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Because

14 coordination is a big word.  Means nothing

15 if it's not broken down by health center,

16 for example.

17     DR. BUEHLER:  Right.  So for the

18 different services that we offer, different

19 programs that we offer whether it's through

20 STD and HIV counseling, whether it's STD

21 screening, whether it's condom dispenser,

22 whether it's advise from between child

23 health program or reproductive health

24 issues, we know where those services are
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1 being delivered either by our staff or by

2 partners in the community.  Some of what we

3 do is more the policy level, working with

4 the School District around nutrition

5 standards or we work with their health staff

6 to make sure that they have questions about

7 infectious diseases or vaccinations, so that

8 would be school wide.

9     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.

10 That's not getting to where I want to go.

11     DR. BUEHLER:  Okay.

12     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  That is

13 there are fewer nurses in schools.

14     DR. BUEHLER:  Yeah.

15     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Government

16 has to work smarter in how we complement

17 what the needs are amongst children across

18 the system.  And so, if we know there are

19 fewer nurses and we know that that's the

20 business you're in, I am curious as to where

21 links are being drawn to schools that need

22 the service?  Or is there some engagement of

23 universities where everybody argues they

24 should do more given the tax breaks they
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1 get?  Where are the links?

2     DR. BUEHLER:  We can tell you where our

3 services are and be happy to follow up if

4 there's some concern about that

5 distribution.

6     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Just

7 curious as we prepare for the School

8 District budget hearings.  We know that

9 their needs are great.  We know the struggle

10 that comes with funding every year.  So, we

11 need to look to see what services we have

12 where people do that already for a living.

13 And unfortunately, burden in this case the

14 Health Department further so that we're

15 meeting the needs of these kids.  But we

16 can't get to where we want to go if we don't

17 know what we have.

18     DR. BUEHLER:  We'd be happy to provide

19 that report.

20     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  I would be

21 curious to see that by councilmatic

22 district.

23     DR. BUEHLER:  Sure.

24     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.
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1 Lastly, the Health Department has an ally in

2 Dr. Don Schwarz.

3     DR. BUEHLER:  Yes.

4     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  What

5 opportunities have you seized in terms of

6 grant funding from the Robert Wood Johnson

7 Foundation stacked against needs that you

8 know we need here in Philadelphia?

9     DR. BUEHLER:  Well, I think Dr. Schwarz

10 has to, for some period after joining his

11 new organization RWJ, maintain some

12 separation from his previous employer.

13     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.

14     DR. BUEHLER:  But we do have a

15 relationship with the Robert Wood Johnson

16 Foundation.  They funded much of our initial

17 work to help get accredited.  They have

18 tremendous interest in what we do,

19 particular with our Get Healthy Philly

20 program.  There are some other projects that

21 they funded.

22     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Anything

23 around children and youth?

24     DR. BUEHLER:  I'd have to double check
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1 on that.

2     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Please and

3 forward that to the Chair.

4     DR. BUEHLER:  Sure.

5     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.  Let

6 me close out by -- what Councilman Jones'

7 raised early about the issue of obesity.

8     After the implementation of the menu

9 labeling, I believe the Health Department

10 received a grant from the Centers for

11 Disease Control, is that not so?  Is that

12 grant still in play or no?

13     DR. BUEHLER:  Right.  Much of our

14 Chronic Disease Program, much of our Get

15 Healthy Philly Program is supported by grant

16 dollars from CDC.  Those different grants

17 tend to come and go, but we still have

18 substantial support from CDC for chronic

19 disease prevention activities.

20     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  What's the

21 goal or yield of Get Healthy Philly?

22     DR. BUEHLER:  I think the goal is to

23 continue to provide opportunities for the

24 people of Philadelphia to be -- to be
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1 healthy.  The main focus is on eating,

2 physical activity and smoking.  This coming

3 year there will be a new push around

4 physical activity.  We're currently in the

5 midst of campaign around the education about

6 the hazards of excessive salt consumption.

7     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Where will

8 we see that?  Who are the lucky audiences

9 that are going to benefit from that?

10     DR. BUEHLER:  Most of what we do is

11 really City-wide.  We tend to target our

12 information in ways that reach those parts

13 of the population that are at highest risk

14 in terms of where we might put signs or

15 radio stations that we get on.  We try to be

16 strategic in how we are delivering our

17 messages.

18     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.

19 Okay, then, thank you very much.

20     DR. BUEHLER:  Thank you.

21     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Thank you,

22 Mr. President.

23     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you

24 Councilwoman.
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1     Well, thank you very much for your

2 testimony.

3     DR. BUEHLER:  Thank you for the

4 opportunity to be here.

5     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Hold on one

6 second, please.

7     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  So, safe

8 streets and kids and bikes, one second --

9 the Safe Routes Philly Program, just give us

10 an update on that.  Has it been successful?

11 What's the status of it?

12     DR. BUEHLER:  I'm sorry.  What's the --

13     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Safe

14 Routes Philly.

15     DR. BUEHLER:  I don't know.  But perhaps

16 I can ask our Director of Get Healthy Philly

17 Giridhar Mallya to come up and --

18     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Give us an

19 update.

20     DR. MALLYA:  Good afternoon.  Thank you

21 for the question.  So Safe Routes Philly is

22 a program that is --

23     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Sorry.  State

24 your name for the record, please.

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 153

1     DR. MALLYA:  Sure.  It's Giridhar

2 Mallya, Director of Policy and Planning.

3     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you.

4     DR. MALLYA:  Thank you for the question

5 about Safe Routes to School.  This is a

6 program that the Health Department

7 collaborates with a few organizations on.

8 The Bike Coalition of Greater Philadelphia,

9 the School District of Philadelphia and also

10 the Mayor's Office of Transportation

11 Utilities.

12     We continue to work actively with those

13 organizations.  We are engaging with

14 approximately 25 schools this year with a

15 particular focus on elementary schools.  And

16 we do a couple things.  One through

17 teachers, everything from health classes to

18 English classes.  We focus on promoting safe

19 walking and biking among youth and getting

20 parents involved in that.

21     Two, we also work with the

22 Transportation Office to make sure that

23 inner sections and corridors particularly

24 around schools are as safe as they can be.
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1 Everything from installing countdown timers

2 so people can cross the street before the

3 cars do to even doing re-striping on

4 crosswalks because we know small changes

5 like that can make a big difference in terms

6 of safety.

7     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Who are

8 the lucky 25 schools?  How do you arrive --

9 how do those schools end up in the group?

10     DR. MALLYA:  Sure.  So, we look at a

11 couple different factors.  One, we look at

12 what parts of the City have the highest rate

13 of the bicycle and pedestrian crashes.

14     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.

15     DR. MALLYA:  We want to make sure we

16 focus on areas that are at the highest risk

17 so we can bring that risk down.

18     Two, we try to look for areas of the

19 City where there are multiple schools.  If

20 we make interventions in the set of

21 intersections, we're not just maybe

22 effecting one school directly but multiple

23 schools indirectly.

24     Three, we try to coordinate our Safe
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1 Routes to School interventions with things

2 other City agencies might be doing.  So,

3 some resources from Public Health may go to

4 one set of schools and then another set of

5 resources from the Transportation Office

6 could go to another set really to make sure

7 we're reaching the largest number of schools

8 that we can.

9     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Is it fair

10 to say then that most of that program is

11 concentrated in Center City and Old City?

12     DR. MALLYA:  No.  No.  Really most of

13 our efforts around Safe Routes to School are

14 outside of the Center City area and

15 neighborhoods.

16     COUNCILWOMAN REYNOLDS BROWN:  Okay.  All

17 right then.  I would be curious to know --

18 see the list.  If you can forward that to

19 the Chair, thank you very much.

20     Thank you, Mr. President.

21     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,

22 Councilwoman.  Thank you again for your

23 testimony.

24     DR. BUEHLER:  Thank you.
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1     COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Council will

2 take a break till, like, two o'clock.

3                  -  -  -

4     (The Committee of the Whole recessed at

5 1:01 p.m.)

6                  -  -  -

7                  -  -  -

8     (The Committee of the Whole recommenced at

9 2:19 p.m.)

10                  -  -  -

11     (Councilman Jones sits as Chair.)

12     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Good afternoon,

13 everyone.

14            ("Good afternoon.")

15     This is a -- they answered back.  That's

16 nice.  This is a continuation of the public

17 hearings with regards to the budget.  Would

18 you please read the title and the -- we

19 don't have to do that.

20     Going to dispense with that and ask the

21 next department, which is the Department of

22 Human Services, to approach the witness

23 table.

24     (Witnesses approach witness table.)
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1     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Good afternoon,

2 everyone.

3     COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Good afternoon.

4     COUNCILMAN JONES:  So if you can pull

5 that mic a little closer to you and state

6 your name for the record, and please begin

7 your testimony.

8     COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Good afternoon.

9 My name is Vanessa Garrett Harley,

10 Commission for the Department of Human

11 Services.

12     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Good afternoon.

13     COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Good afternoon,

14 President Clarke in his absences, Councilman

15 Jones, Members of City Council, I'm Vanessa

16 Garrett Harley, Commissioner of the

17 Department of Human Services.  With me today

18 to my left is Kimberly Ali, my Chief

19 Implementation Officer for Improvement

20 Outcomes for Children.  And to my right is

21 the acting Deputy Commissioner for Finance,

22 Chanell Hanns as well as other members of my

23 leadership team.  Thank you for allowing me

24 to testify today.
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1     DHS' Fiscal Year 16 general grants

2 revenue budget request is for $673,558,375.

3 This is $510,929 below the FY15 estimated

4 obligation level of $674,069,345.  DHS'

5 general fund budget request is $102,729,321.

6 I would like to highlight a few of DHS'

7 accomplishments this year as well as share

8 some of the challenges we faced.

9     During Fiscal Year 15, DHS continued on

10 the path of implementation of Improving

11 Outcomes for Children.  As you know,

12 Improving Outcomes for Children, or IOC as

13 we call it, is based on a belief that a

14 community-based delivery of child welfare

15 services will result in a better quality of

16 services for children and families, which

17 will ultimately lead to better outcomes.  I

18 am proud to say that at this point, we have

19 opened all ten community umbrella agencies.

20     They are accepting cases and providing

21 services to the children of families of

22 Philadelphia.  While we are still in the

23 process of transitioning cases from DHS to

24 the community umbrella agencies, we have
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1 reached the point that more cases are with

2 the CUAs.  In fact as of March 31, 2015,

3 3,618 families are being serviced by the

4 CUAs.  One of the core components of the IOC

5 transformation is family team conferencing,

6 a process by which the family is given a

7 voice in their child welfare case.

8     These conferences which occur for the

9 most part in the community, are held

10 throughout the life of the case in key

11 decision making points.  Families are

12 encouraged to attend these conferences with

13 their support system.  Social service

14 professionals from various disciplines such

15 as behavioral health, education and physical

16 health also attend the conferences when

17 appropriate.

18     Since the inception of IOC in

19 January 2013, DHS has facilitated over 6,000

20 conferences.  I'm also proud to say that

21 this year we have expanded our presence in

22 and support for the community and our

23 education system by increasing our

24 collaboration with the School District of
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1 Philadelphia.

2     This year, we co-located ten social work

3 service managers and Philadelphia School

4 District schools and assigned them to work

5 with the community umbrella agencies and

6 their regions.  This staff is responsible

7 for helping to remove educational barriers

8 for children involved with DHS and for

9 assisting school staff with making linkages

10 to DHS services when appropriate.  We also

11 have a social work service manager assigned

12 to the School District's Reengagement Center

13 to consult with youth who have dropped out

14 of high school and seek re-entry as well as

15 those who are currently enrolled but are

16 severely overaged and under-credited.

17 Similarly, we have staff whose work is

18 dedicated to early childhood and early

19 intervention issues.

20     DHS has also made significant progress

21 in reducing the number and percentage of

22 children placed in congregate care settings.

23 DHS firmly believes that children and youth

24 deserve to be with their own families.  And
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1 when that's not possible, we strive to find

2 other permanent family settings for

3 children.  Our goal is to only use

4 congregate care when absolutely necessary

5 and primarily for treatment purposes.

6     Since Fiscal Year 08, the percentage of

7 youth in congregate care that's both group

8 home and institution settings has decreased

9 from approximately 22.5 to approximately

10 14.5 percent.  As we continue with our IOC

11 system transformation, DHS is also working

12 to strengthen and expand our hotline and

13 investigation divisions.  We are currently

14 experiencing a rise in the number of calls

15 in the hotline and a rise in the number of

16 investigations.

17     Specifically, hotline reports are up

18 41 percent when comparing the first quarter

19 of Calendar Year 2014 to the first quarter

20 of Calendar Year 2015.  The total number of

21 investigations for this same time period is

22 also up 32 percent.  We believe that this

23 increase in volume is primarily due to a

24 sweeping overhaul of child welfare laws
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1 after the Jerry Sandusky case, which

2 ultimately resulted in 27 new laws.  Some of

3 the major changes expanded the definition of

4 child abuse, expanded who can be labeled a

5 perpetrator, increased the number of

6 mandated reporters and increased the

7 penalties for mandated reporters who fail to

8 report abuse.

9     Additionally, these laws mandated new

10 electronic reporting and data collection

11 requirements.  In addition and possibly some

12 were related to growth in our hotline and

13 investigation divisions, we are experiencing

14 a steady rise in the number of children in

15 placement.  At the time of budget testimony

16 last year, we had approximately 4,500

17 children in care.  We now have approximately

18 5,300 children in placement.  Similarly, we

19 have seen a rise in the number of families

20 receiving in-home services.  As of

21 March 2015, approximately 4,200 children

22 were receiving in-home services.

23     Finally in closing, I would like to

24 stress that we are committed to completing
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1 the full implementation of IOC.  We are

2 working collaboratively with our staff and

3 the provider community to ensure that

4 quality child focus and family-centered

5 services are delivered to the children and

6 families in Philadelphia.

7     Thank you very much for your

8 consideration.  Our staff and I are

9 available to answer any questions that you

10 may have about my testimony.

11     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Thank you once again.

12 It is always, believe it or not, good to see

13 you.  Sometimes we go at it a little bit,

14 but it -- in both cases, it is my sincere

15 belief it's for the benefit of the kids.

16     COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Absolutely.

17     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Therefore, that

18 respect will always be maintained, and it is

19 good to see you.

20     A couple of quick questions that I would

21 have is on your testimony you mentioned

22 reunifications -- well, no.  You mentioned

23 those in out-of-care services and those who

24 are in foster care.
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1     What were those numbers again?  I know

2 4,200 were in-home, I believe.

3     COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So 4,200 children

4 were receiving in-home services.  We have

5 approximately 5,300 children in placement or

6 out-of-home care.

7     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Okay.  That's what I

8 needed to do.  So, you also talked about

9 your expanded role, I believe it was, in the

10 school system.

11     COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Yes.

12     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Can you describe

13 that?  You said ten schools.  And I would be

14 interested -- we ask this of, I think it

15 might have been Behavioral Health earlier

16 today.

17     How were those schools chosen, and what

18 were the services provided?

19     COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Okay.  So DHS has

20 been expanding this Education Support

21 Center.  We actually have a center that that

22 staff, that is what they're dedicated to do.

23 They work very collaboratively with the

24 School District.  In fact, I'm happy to say
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1 that hopefully on May 20 that we will

2 actually be co-locating the bulk of that

3 staff in the 440 North Broad building so

4 that they are actually there and they can

5 work even closer together.

6     The 10 staff specifically that you

7 referenced are -- each one is assigned to a

8 school.  One school that is in each of the

9 CUA areas, you know our CUAs are

10 geographically determined across the city.

11 We have a total of 10.

12     And so, there was one school selected.

13 And I will give you some examples of those

14 schools, however, that staff is still

15 available to be a resource for other schools

16 in the catchment area of where the Community

17 Umbrella Agency is.

18     So for example, in the district of CUA 1

19 Net, Edison High School was a school that

20 was selected.  CUA 2 is at Kensington CAPA

21 High School.  CUA 3 is Lincoln High School.

22 CUA 4 is Northeast High School.  CUA 5 is

23 Wagner Middle School.  CUA 6 is Martin

24 Luther King High School.  CUA 7 is Robert
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1 Morris Elementary.  CUA 8 is South

2 Philadelphia High School.  CUA 9 is Tilden

3 Middle School.  And CUA 10 is Overbrook High

4 School.

5     And so, there were a number of decisions

6 that were made, many of them at the table

7 with the School District to make a

8 determination as to where we felt the

9 presence was most needed.  We were trying in

10 our rudimentary way to try and sort of

11 support the School District knowing that

12 they had fewer counselors in these schools.

13 So, some of these decisions was about where

14 the need looked like based on the number of

15 students and number of counselor and also

16 sort of what we see where we get a lot of

17 our cases from.

18     COUNCILMAN JONES:  So, I am very pleased

19 that you made those decisions.

20 Particularly, the one dealing with my alma

21 mater, not to be selfish about Overbrook,

22 but I'm glad you're there.

23     But to me, we do a monitoring system.

24 Every 7:00 a.m. we have what is called a

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 167

1 Safe Avenues Meeting.  It's a role call with

2 all of the principals.  And some of the

3 things that we hear by way of what is

4 causing some of the students inability to

5 actually grasp lessons is said that two book

6 bags that they bring to school.  One is full

7 of the lessons of the day; the other is full

8 of the troubles from home the night before.

9 So, we are glad that you are taking this

10 approach.

11     What are the things you are

12 discovering -- it might be too early to say.

13 What are the things you're discovering by

14 way of need for services in those particular

15 schools?

16     COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, I don't know

17 if it's too early to say or that it's

18 particular to those schools.  But in

19 general, I think what you said is very true.

20 Many of our children do come to school with

21 a lot of other things that they have to deal

22 with based on situation in the home.  So,

23 just trying to address them, trying to help

24 school personnel know how to navigate what
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1 is sometime the complicated system of social

2 service world and where the right place is

3 to get help.

4     We are also doing some new things with

5 our truancy.  And we are collaborating now.

6 We have sort of totally revamped the way we

7 are doing truancy.  Issue the truancy RFP

8 and just awarded ten different providers,

9 each one attached to the community

10 umbrella -- not attached but in that

11 community umbrella agency area so that they

12 can get to know those people there.  We are

13 doing the new truancy approach is a very

14 different model than what we used to do.

15 It's more of a prevention model, which is we

16 have a three-tiered approach.  Tiers one,

17 two and three.  Trying to get involved with

18 children before they become chronically

19 truant.

20     So the first tier starts with kids who

21 have missed five to nine days of school, for

22 example, or unexcused absence so the --

23     COUNCILMAN JONES:  Excuse me a second.

24 We have a slight change.  I'll be over
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1   there.

2       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  No problem.

3       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Mr. President.

4 (Council President Clarke retakes Chair seat.)

5       COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,

6   Councilman.  I'm sorry, you have to start

7   from the beginning.  Just kidding.  Just

8   kidding.

9       Thank you.

10       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  You settled?  I

11   can finish?  Okay.

12       Again, I was talking about what we were

13   doing with truancy.  Now we are doing it in

14   a prevention based approach.  It's a tiered

15   program where we try to get involved with

16   the kids before they become chronically

17   truant.  And hopefully, can make a better

18   difference by starting earlier.  And the

19   level of the intervention or intensity of

20   the intervention is different depending on

21   which tier you are on; tier one, tier two,

22   tier three.

23       We are also doing in a collaborative

24   process with the Family Court as well as the
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1   School District of Philadelphia.  So when we

2   issue the RFP this time on the selection

3   committee was representatives from the

4   School District as well as the Court, so

5   that we can make sure that all of those

6   needs are being covered.  There are ten

7   different providers who were selected and

8   will be working within that community

9   umbrella agency area.  And the benefit of

10   that is it helps build those relationship

11   and sort of linkages again between the

12   community umbrella agencies and the schools

13   in their area as well as with the truancy

14   providers who are in those areas and can

15   offer services to them, as well.

16       COUNCILMAN JONES:  So if you note the

17   chart, and now the President can represent

18   it, school-based family service center he's

19   taken a real strong advocacy for.  So, it's

20   good to hear that you, Behavioral Health,

21   all of you guys are in there.

22       One of my schools which won't be named,

23   one of the teachers took it upon themselves

24   to bring in ten pairs of shoes of different
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1   sizes for the kids that would come to

2   school.  And some of them in the rain have

3   holes so bad that their feet were soaked.

4   And so, they just started giving them away.

5       How do you learn, you have to navigate

6   your way to school on keeping your feet dry

7   is just beyond me.  What I will do is I'll

8   yield this portion to allow some of my

9   colleagues to speak.  I will get your

10   questions on the next round.

11       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Thank you.

12       COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,

13   Councilman.  Chair recognizes

14   Councilwoman -- not here.

15       Okay, Councilwoman Tasco.

16       COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Thank you.  Good

17   afternoon.

18       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Good afternoon.

19       COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Have a couple of

20   questions here.

21       How are the CUAs doing in Philadelphia?

22   Are they moving along as planned or as hoped

23   to evolve into the master plan?

24       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So the -- your
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1   question is how are the CUAs doing?  And so,

2   I would like to say the CUAs are evolving.

3   I think that some progress is being made.

4   We see some progress in several areas, in

5   many area.  Obviously, it's a new endeavor.

6   We are in still what many would say are the

7   preliminary or implementation phases.  We

8   are also still realizing some challenges,

9   looking at the model, trying to determine

10   where it may need to be tweaked.

11   Ultimately, trying to ensure that the safety

12   and well being of our children are met.

13       But we are beginning to -- I believe it

14   is beginning to take a foothold in the

15   communities.  People are beginning to

16   recognize the community umbrella agencies.

17   Many of the other changes that we talked

18   about, some of which for example is, the

19   collaboration with the School District.  And

20   the schools in these areas and the CUAs are

21   have become very familiar with all the

22   schools in the area.  We wanted the

23   principals to be able to meet them.  In

24   conjunction with the School District, we've

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 173

1   held some town hall meetings kind of where

2   everybody can meet each other and talk

3   about, you know, where we have services that

4   could be helpful.  There are a number of

5   other things we do in the community.

6       We are beginning to measure and see that

7   more kids are being able to be maintained in

8   their own community than they were before.

9   We -- the Family Team Conferencing Model is

10   a large part of improving outcomes and the

11   community umbrella agency system.  We are

12   beginning to see much stronger participation

13   level of families in the process and

14   families having more voice in the process.

15       We are happy that our numbers in

16   congregate care, which is kids who are in

17   group home or institutions, are continuing

18   to decrease.  We do believe that every child

19   deserves a home.  And we are trying to move

20   forward with that.  There is, I think, the

21   transfer of learning from DHS and DHS staff

22   and DHS technical staff to the community

23   umbrella agencies is continuing to increase

24   and progress.
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1       And also, in the community we are doing

2   a number of things that are kind of strength

3   based such as parent and cafes.  Many of the

4   community umbrella agencies are involved

5   with grass roots agencies and stuff in the

6   community.  That is beginning to develop.

7   Most of the family team conferences we do

8   are in the community.  We hold them in

9   churches, rec centers, other community spots

10   or organizations.  And that helps build some

11   collaboration and support, as well.

12       So, some of -- those are some of the

13   positives that we have seen since we

14   instituted the CUAs.  It is still really

15   very, very early, though, in the process.

16   Half of the community umbrella agencies

17   just -- really, we call it standing or

18   opened up and started taking cases in Fiscal

19   Year 2015.  So, five of them just really

20   started getting their cases in Fiscal Year

21   2015.  So, it's really preliminary in terms

22   of results and outcomes for many of them.

23       COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  I know that you

24   were not the commissioner when this whole
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1   idea came about, and this may put you on the

2   spot.  Do you think that we have engaged the

3   organizations to -- in the training session

4   to understand what they were going to take

5   on to be a CUA might have helped with more

6   in-depth kind of engagement; and once they

7   open as a CUA, may have had less problems?

8       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I think hindsight

9   is 20/20.  And I think certainly maybe we

10   attempted or thought we attempted.  It was a

11   very careful and thought out plan process

12   because the planning went on for about three

13   or four years even before I came to DHS, you

14   know, in terms of the implementation

15   process.  But I do think that -- I'm not

16   sure that the full understanding was there

17   as to the real level of the work and the

18   volume of the work and the intensity of the

19   work, you know, in the beginning.  And

20   again, maybe that is something that we could

21   have done differently and certainly have

22   tried to address as we go along and sort of

23   pick up those challenges.

24       I do think that those CUAs who open
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1   later, though, the ones that open in 2015

2   sort of had the benefit of that.  The

3   earlier CUAs kind of helped us work through

4   the growing pain and the phases.  So, they

5   were able to learn and see some of the

6   things that the earliest CUAs had opened and

7   already gone through and maybe benefitted

8   from the knowledge of other CUAs.  I do

9   think the community umbrella agencies do a

10   good job of interacting with each other and

11   trying to learn from each other and share

12   what works, what doesn't work, so strengths

13   and weaknesses with each other, as well.

14       COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Am I done?  I can

15   go on?  Okay.

16       What is the estimated date for the

17   completion of the IOC transition?  Who will

18   provide services to the cases on the back

19   end?

20       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  The estimated date

21   right now loosely for completion is the end

22   of 2015.  The end of Calendar Year 2015.

23   And at that point, who will be providing

24   services on the back end would be the
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1   community umbrella agencies.  We currently

2   have approximately 3,600 cases already over

3   at the community umbrella agencies.  There

4   is probably about another 2,000 still left

5   at DHS.  We very carefully have to look at

6   each case and each child within each case to

7   make sure that the transition is the right

8   and timely and, you know, no disruption or

9   minimal amount of disruption for the child

10   and the family.

11       So, that's the estimated goal right now

12   is the end of Calendar Year 2015 for all of

13   the cases in the back end to have been moved

14   to community umbrella agencies.

15       COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  If the CUA process

16   is going well, then why are you holding up

17   transfers of staff for case-carrying units

18   to non case-carrying units?

19       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  It's sort of

20   complicated right now.  Because as we are

21   moving staff into non case-carrying units,

22   primary for me always has to be the safety

23   of the children and families.  And we have

24   been experiencing a real increase or rise in
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1   the number of kids that are coming to our

2   system.  Our system is much larger now than

3   it had been before.  I think I testified

4   earlier that last year at this time we had

5   about 4,500 kids in care.  Right now we have

6   about 5,300 kids in care.

7       My hotline reports are up tremendously.

8   Number of calls and number of investigations

9   are up, I will give you some numbers,

10   tremendously.  When I compare the beginning

11   of Calendar Year 2014 January to March of

12   2014, with the beginning of this Calendar

13   Year January to March of 2015, I have a

14   41 percent increase in hotline calls.  So,

15   that's 2,000 more calls into my hotline and

16   a 32 percent increase in investigation.

17   That's 1,200 more investigations.

18       COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  What are you seeing

19   as the cause for the increase?

20       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I believe -- and

21   part of the reason that I am using that

22   calendar year is because the new laws that

23   were as a result of the Jerry Sandusky case,

24   there was a sweeping overhaul of child
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1   welfare laws.  There were about 27 new laws.

2   The majority of them went into effect

3   January 1, and so that's why we're looking

4   at that portion of the calendar year, the

5   difference that's it's made.  And it had

6   some real differences because it did major

7   changes to the definition of abuse.  Major

8   changes to the definition of who was a

9   perpetrator.  Expanded the number of

10   mandated reporters, increased the penalties

11   if you don't report.

12       For example, we're seeing many more

13   calls from our professional reporters as a

14   result and just in general.  And so, it's

15   not just Philadelphia.  When I talk to my

16   counterparts across the state, people are

17   experiencing huge increases in both the

18   hotline calls and their investigations.  So,

19   some of the reason I've not been allowed --

20   able to allow DHS staff to transition is I

21   have to make sure that we have enough staff

22   to be able to cover those investigations and

23   that initial work particularly on our front

24   end.  And the front end needs expanding
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1   right now.

2       So, we have had to hold the transfer of

3   some staff or stagger the transfer of some

4   staff until we can try and get a better

5   handle on this volume increase that we're

6   still experiencing.  Hopefully, it will

7   start to stabilize.

8       COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  What I can conclude

9   that the -- as a result of the Sandusky

10   case, the hotline calls are related to child

11   abuse, around sexual child abuse.

12       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  It's not just

13   sexual child abuse, though.  The Sandusky

14   case was about sex abuse, so yes we have

15   seen some increases obviously in that area,

16   as well.  But in general calls to the

17   hotline about abuse and neglect situations

18   in general, we are seeing an increase.

19       I think some of it is when you have a

20   lot of attention and advertising about child

21   abuse awareness, sometimes people realize

22   some things that they saw that they should

23   have called in about and didn't, they are

24   calling in.  I think another thing that
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1   changed was the structure in how School

2   District personnel call in.  Before many

3   schools had a tiered approach where if a

4   teacher saw something, she had to go through

5   her counselor or her principal and then she

6   made a determination and called.  Now it

7   mandates that the teachers, you know, call

8   straight through.  So, a lot of it is about

9   the changes that came about the law and the

10   change.  The other thing is, a lot of cases

11   that we would have screened out before

12   because they didn't meet the legal

13   definition of abuse are now screened in.

14   You can't screen them out because they have

15   expanded those definitions.

16       COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  And one other

17   question, since nobody else has no

18   questions, with children who are moved from

19   a home, what happens in the home?  What

20   services are provided to the adults or the

21   perpetrator or a situation in the home where

22   the mother just may be afraid of the kid or

23   something like that?

24       What kind of services do you provide to
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1   the person left behind at the home?

2       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So first of all,

3   we only try to move a kid out of a home when

4   it is absolutely necessary.  Removal from a

5   home is the last resort.  We try to provide

6   in-home services, try to work with

7   stabilizing the family.  But if our workers

8   go in, do an investigation, identify safety

9   threats and we feel that those threats can

10   not be mitigated within home services or

11   that is the only way the child will be safe

12   if we are forced to remove.  But absolutely,

13   we work with the family and are required to

14   by law.  We have to offer services to the

15   family.

16       The nature of the services differs.

17   It's a very individualized approach

18   depending on what the need in that family

19   is.  For some families, it's a drug and

20   alcohol treatment.  For some it might be

21   behavioral health services.  For some it

22   might be parenting classes.  For -- you

23   know, for others, it may be that they need

24   appropriate housing or housing things.  And
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1   so, we try to work with them and all those

2   different areas.  And a plan is developed

3   for the family that addresses all of the

4   areas that need to be looked at and in

5   improved before a child might be able to be

6   returned home.

7       COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Now, is all of this

8   done by the CUA that's in charge of the

9   young person or the person taken from the

10   home?  The CUA does that, or what about your

11   department downtown?

12       MS. ALI:  It's actually done.  If the

13   case is with the community umbrella agency,

14   then certainly is done by the CUA case

15   manager and the other teams that are at the

16   CUA.  And we also do it by way of our family

17   team conferences.  With our family team

18   conferencing, we actually have a DHS social

19   worker who is the team coordinator.  They

20   are responsible for engaging that

21   perpetrator, engaging that parent to bring

22   them to the table so that we can hear their

23   voice in terms of what services they need in

24   order to address the needs of their family.

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 184

1       And we also have a DHS practice

2   specialist which is a Master's prepared DHS

3   social worker whose facilitates the

4   conference.  During the conference, we

5   actually outline the goals and objectives of

6   the family.  The DHS social worker will

7   facilitate it.  But the CUA case manager

8   actually carries out the objectives and

9   carry out and put in the interventions

10   that's necessary to return that particular

11   child home.

12       COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  One other question

13   I think I will be done.

14       How many employees are waiting for

15   lateral transfers and opportunities to

16   transfer to other City departments?  And

17   what is the delay and when will they be able

18   to transfer?  And what happens to cases on

19   the back end when staff are transferred to

20   the CUAs?

21       And you answered a little bit.

22       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, I don't have

23   the number with me.  Can get back to you

24   with that of the number of employees who are
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1   waiting for lateral transfers to other

2   departments.  There has been a hold on

3   lateral transfers, to be honest with you,

4   for quite some time just because of the

5   condition that the department is in.  And we

6   have that immediate need to have

7   case-carrying social work staff in the

8   department to make sure that we meet all of

9   the public safety needs of the children and

10   families in Philadelphia.

11       Right now, we just have so many

12   investigations and calls coming in that we

13   don't have the ability or the liberty to let

14   the lateral transfers go through.  I would

15   hope that as soon as we can get stabilized

16   to a point where we feel we can handle

17   adequately what we have, then we might be

18   able to lift that moratorium on letting

19   lateral staff transfer to other departments.

20       I don't have the exact number, though,

21   but I can try to get that for you.

22       COUNCILWOMAN TASCO:  Thank you.  Thank

23   you, Mr. President.

24       COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,
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1   Councilwoman.

2       Chair recognizes Councilman Jones.

3       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Thank you,

4   Mr. President.

5       So again, I'm emphasize the fact that I

6   could not do your job.  And emphasize the

7   fact that thank God you do your job.  And we

8   thank the fact that kids in the City of

9   Philadelphia have some measure of protection

10   from family abuse, external abuse.  And so,

11   I'm grateful for what you do.  All of us

12   from time to time have to take a look in the

13   mirror and see if we can do it better and

14   how are we doing.

15       On Councilwoman Tasco's point, if you

16   were to take a snapshot of last year having

17   the CUA systems all in place, at least the

18   ones that have been around for a year, and

19   overlap a map of those same areas the year

20   before, what things are changed?

21       What type of -- are we making progress?

22   And quantify what that progress is.

23       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, I do think

24   we're making some progress in some of the
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1   areas.  Many of them are things I outline in

2   response to Councilwoman Tasco's question.

3   And that is, we are definitely making

4   progress with a community presence which was

5   something that we did not have at all.  DHS

6   had no presence in the community.

7       And the inception of IOC went back to

8   the Child Welfare Advisory Board after that

9   Danielle Kelly case.  And one of the

10   recommendations, several of the

11   recommendations that they made is that we

12   did not have a community presence and we had

13   not developed any type of relationship with

14   the community.  So, that is definitely in a

15   much better place than it ever was.

16       I think the development of we did not do

17   a good job of giving families voice in the

18   process or making sure the families always

19   truthfully understood the process in terms

20   of what was happening to them when they got

21   involved in the child welfare system.  The

22   Family Team Conferencing Model is making a

23   huge difference in terms of bringing

24   families to the table, allowing them to
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1   understand kind of what's going on to give

2   them some voice in the planning and in the

3   process.

4       And also at that table is a

5   multi-disciplinary approach.  Depending on

6   the need of that individual family, if there

7   are some issues, for example, in the

8   education area that somebody from our

9   education support center staff would be

10   there.  If we need to, we have somebody from

11   the School District there.  If it's a

12   medical problem, one of our DHS nurses or

13   the DHS medical director nurses would be

14   present.  If it's behavioral health,

15   behavioral health might be at the table.

16       It allows the planning and approach to

17   be done in a much more sort of team and

18   multi-disciplinary fashion than we were

19   doing prior to IOC.

20       COUNCILMAN JONES:  So, what would be

21   helpful to me and not in this hearing but to

22   provide a apples-to-apples comparison of the

23   years before CUAs and the years after.  You

24   can measure like, for example, I will ask
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1   this question here.

2       What were the number of child fatalities

3   last year, and how did that compare to the

4   year before?

5       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I can get that for

6   you.

7       COUNCILMAN JONES:  I would ask that you

8   say ones in foster care and -- versus the

9   ones that you just come upon based on a

10   complaint or some unfortunate circumstance.

11       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, the number of

12   fatalities you're asking me as of last year?

13       COUNCILMAN JONES:  If you go from this

14   time last year, fiscal year -- we're in

15   Fiscal Year 15.

16       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Understood.

17       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Fiscal Year 15 to

18   Fiscal Year 14.

19       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Understood.  So,

20   let me go back a little bit.  In 2013, there

21   were 11 child fatalities.  In 2014, there

22   were 5.

23       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Okay.  Is that

24   generally in the City as opposed to in
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1   childcare and foster care?  Is that in

2   general or in both?

3       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, I believe that

4   that is in total.

5       COUNCILMAN JONES:  In total.

6       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  In total.  Those

7   are -- I'm sorry.  I misspoke.  Those are --

8   if I'm looking at which fatalities were

9   reported to the department that over time

10   that it was determined that the reason for

11   the fatality was the result of abuse.

12       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Okay.

13       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  That's what that

14   is.  That's not -- total it was 50 was the

15   total number of deaths that were reported to

16   the hotline in 2014.

17       COUNCILMAN JONES:  So when you say

18   reported, somebody called in and said --

19   finish the sentence.

20       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Ordinary, if I say

21   reported, the call primarily comes from

22   either the law enforcement police, sometimes

23   the medical examiner's office, sometimes the

24   hospital.
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1       COUNCILMAN JONES:  So there were 50

2   deaths.

3       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  In 2014, there

4   were 50 total deaths; whereas in 2016, there

5   was 61 total deaths.  So the number of total

6   deaths has started to decrease some.

7       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Okay.

8       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  And then the stat

9   that I gave you a little bit earlier was out

10   of them how many of those once the

11   investigation took place was it determined

12   that the death was a result of abuse.  So in

13   2013, 11 of them it was determined that the

14   death was a result of abuse or what we call

15   an indicated or, you know, finding in the

16   investigation.  And then 2014, it was only

17   5.

18       COUNCILMAN JONES:  So in the case of

19   Sebastian, the Life of Sebastian, the

20   article written by the Inquirer, can you --

21   can you talk about what went wrong there?

22       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I don't know, to

23   be honest with you, I remember everything

24   that was in that article.
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1       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Just OxyContin.  And

2   what was disturbing that there were five

3   reports before that to that household that

4   there was a problem there.  And then, you

5   know, we find him dead.  So -- I don't know

6   if that was a CUA or a direct supervision

7   but --

8       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, that was not a

9   community umbrella case.  That was direct

10   DHS involvement.  Little bit difficult for

11   me to talk about that case without having

12   reviewed the case file or anything.  But the

13   CUA was not involved in that case.  It had

14   nothing to do with IOC.  And so, some of it

15   would be -- I would have to go back and look

16   at what the reports were, what the nature of

17   the reports were, what the investigation was

18   at the time that those investigations took

19   place and kind of what they found and what

20   the disposition of them was.

21       I don't know, you know, off the top of

22   my head whether or not they were founded,

23   unfounded or what services we put in or did

24   not put in as a result.
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1       COUNCILMAN JONES:  So based on the

2   article, they were five calls.  They were

3   found unfounded.  That's one.  And then

4   there's the Bridesburg case where there were

5   a number of calls.

6       I think -- what was that fatality?  He

7   was -- that's the one where he was allegedly

8   held hostage and then escaped and wind up

9   killing his mother and father.  I say that

10   and what they have in common is that there

11   were calls made before.  That is the part

12   where --

13       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Understood.

14       COUNCILMAN JONES:  -- if somebody cries

15   out for help -- maybe we can't do them now,

16   but we need to figure out what we can do

17   better.

18       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Absolutely.

19       COUNCILMAN JONES:  To make sure that if

20   there are five calls, you know, and they are

21   found unfounded, we need to change the

22   criteria.

23       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I can tell you

24   that some of the things we are looking at
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1   sort of from a -- I understand what you're

2   saying now in terms of a theme.  It is

3   important the prior history.

4       We certainly took some lessons learned

5   from those particular cases as well as other

6   cases.  We have a robust Act 33 team, which

7   is the legislation that requires every death

8   to be looked at.  And there's a

9   multi-disciplinary team.  Our is Chaired by

10   the medical examiner.  On that team is the

11   First Deputy District Attorney Ed McCann as

12   well as the Police Special Victims Unit,

13   representatives from CHOP,

14   St. Christopher's, Behavioral Health, the

15   State.

16       All of the entities that would be --

17   need to be involve.  And so, they do a very

18   careful job of looking through the evidence

19   and making recommendations.  We track those

20   recommendations over time to make sure they

21   are not hollow and are actually implemented.

22   We certainly talked about the very area you

23   are talking about, the need to do additional

24   stuff.
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1       We are doing some additional stuff at

2   DHS in terms of trying to -- it's a little

3   difficult to try and quantify what is the

4   right number, but trying to put some flags

5   in place in terms of when you see X-number

6   of reports come in on a family within

7   X-amount of time, do you take a look at it

8   differently.  And that puts some red flags

9   in the computer system, some other things.

10   Certainly, though, the prior history is

11   really important and trying to make sure

12   that we get that across the staff, the

13   importance of reviewing that prior history.

14   It kind of might tell you a story in terms

15   of what's going on.  And so, some of it also

16   depends on how long ago the reports were.

17       I do think we are doing a lot of things

18   much better than many years ago when some of

19   these reports were called in.  And

20   certainly, our investigation staff is pretty

21   experienced and sophisticated and some of

22   these we handle very difficultly.

23       For example, one of the changes we made

24   in recent years were our fatalities and near
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1   fatalities when they come in are

2   investigated by, we call it MDT, our

3   Multi-Disciplinary Team Unit.  It tends to

4   be your very experienced investigators who

5   handle these cases in a different way.  We

6   didn't always do it that way.  We always

7   changed some other things that was in

8   existence in our intake.

9       For example, used to be if a case came

10   in and then within 60 days another report

11   came in on the same family, it went back to

12   the same worker to do the investigation.

13   Well, I took that requirement away because

14   sometimes a fresh set of eyes may get you a

15   different, you know, set of circumstances.

16   So, we are trying to look at all of those

17   components that would help to make sure that

18   we try and weed in that prior history piece.

19       COUNCILMAN JONES:  So, I don't want you

20   chasing frivolous cases because sometimes

21   one motivation or another, a neighbor calls

22   on somebody that they don't like; an ex

23   calls on somebody that didn't get custody.

24   I don't want you chasing, you know,
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1   windmills and things like that.  But when

2   five calls come in, red light, yellow light,

3   green light kind of system that says that

4   maybe there is -- if there is smoke, there

5   has to be fire.  And we need to figure out

6   what that is because, no, you're not going

7   to play perfect percentages there.  But we

8   have to -- we have to up the percentages.

9   And it needs to be a tipping point that,

10   wow, after the third call, we need to send

11   in that multi-disciplinary team to take a

12   real forensic look.

13       I am going to hold the rest of my

14   questions.

15       COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  You were the

16   only round until just now.

17       Chair recognizes Councilwoman

18   Quinones-Sanchez.

19       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Thank

20   you.  Thank you, Commissioner.

21       Want to first say I know that

22   transitioning in with all of these CUAs has

23   been quite difficult and quite challenging.

24   And I'm glad that as a result of the
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1   hearings and other stuff, there's more

2   increased communication.  So, part of what

3   the challenge was, was CUAs doing all the

4   services, the prevention services.

5       If you had to articulate what your --

6   this budget calls for moving forward around

7   prevention and groups like the stakeholders

8   groups that you funded, how would you

9   articulate what DHS' prevention strategy for

10   the new year is going to be?

11       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, we have not

12   moved.  The bulk of the prevention stuff at

13   DHS is still remaining with DHS.  We have

14   not moved it to the CUA.  And I don't

15   foresee we're going to move it within this

16   fiscal year, FY16.  I think the bulk of the

17   prevention will probably stay at DHS.  All

18   the truancy contracts that still -- that

19   comes under the prevention are maintained at

20   DHS.

21       What we call the family empowerment

22   service, which is another in-home service

23   that is provided in those cases where there

24   has not been an identified safety threat,
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1   but family might be right on the cusp.  You

2   see that they need help.  Those will remain

3   at DHS.  Our parenting programs for right

4   now are still at DHS.

5       So the bulk of our prevention, if I was

6   looking at the prevention landscape, will

7   remain at DHS and remain with the other

8   providers who have been providing those

9   services.

10       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  And what

11   is going to be the decision moving forward

12   around the stakeholders groups?

13       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I'm not sure I

14   understand your question about the

15   stakeholders.

16       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  The

17   community stakeholders groups that we have.

18   I have Kensington stakeholders, Hunting Park

19   stakeholder groups that are funded through

20   DHS.  What is the thinking moving forward?

21   Because at one point it was a discussion

22   that the CUAs were going to manage it and

23   then they weren't going to manage it.  So,

24   where are we with that?
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1       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I'm hoping I

2   understand your question right,

3   Councilwoman.  If we are talking about, for

4   example, the SCOP.  We do a number of -- we

5   call them SCOP, which are basically

6   contracts with smaller providers in the

7   communities that tend to be community

8   groups.  Those are staying with DHS.  I'm

9   not sure if you're talking about EPIC

10   Stakeholder groups, which were community

11   based.

12       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  EPIC

13   Stakeholders.

14       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Those will most

15   likely be phased out if they have not

16   already been phased out eventually.  We have

17   been -- those are going to be taken over by

18   the community umbrella agencies.  Some of

19   which have already taken place.  Some of the

20   community umbrella agencies have worked very

21   well with the group.

22       And then the EPIC groups in their CUA

23   catchment area, some better than others.

24   Some have hired some of the EPIC staff to be
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1   part of their community engagement staff.

2   But the CUAs are required to do community

3   engagement.  And they are all required to

4   have a community advisory board and to have

5   a member of that community advisory board

6   that serves on the board of the community

7   umbrella agency.

8       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  So, it's

9   going to be up to the CUA to determine

10   whether they want to continue to contract

11   with the agency that's providing the

12   services or they want to bring it in house?

13   Again, I am just doing the issue of folks

14   wanting to bring everything in house.

15       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  It is not up to

16   the CUA.  Pretty much the decision was made

17   at DHS that the EPIC groups will be phased

18   out over time because it is part of what the

19   CUA is required to do and part of the IOC

20   plan or the CUA model, if you will, that

21   they do community engagements.  It would

22   have been a duplicity of services to

23   continue to have the EPIC group in some

24   fashion do that under a paid contract.
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1       But we have been trying to make sure

2   that we try and work together because you

3   don't want to lose the traction that those

4   groups were able to develop in the

5   communities.  And so for some of the CUAs

6   that have been working closely with those

7   groups.  It has been transitioning pretty

8   well.  We are trying to the extent we can

9   help facilitate those transitions, as well.

10       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Okay.

11   So three months, six months from now, if the

12   same type of community outreach is not

13   happening, who is going to be monitoring

14   that?

15       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, we monitor

16   community engagement.  There is a community

17   engagement group.  We have a IOC Steering

18   Committee that is sort of the stakeholders

19   from around the City and various areas that

20   are part of that.  One of the subgroups

21   under the IOC Steering Committee is

22   community engagement.  They would definitely

23   be looking at it and trying to develop where

24   it's working, where it's not, what's better

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 203

1   plans, how do we do it.

2       But in addition, it is something that we

3   are very cognizant of on a -- at DHS.  And

4   certainly, we will also be monitoring where

5   it's taking place and not taking place.

6       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  In some

7   communities, you know, I will take for

8   instance my Frankford community, it's very

9   diverse.  It's really been hard to build up

10   the level of confidence to bring certain

11   people around the table.  I want to make

12   sure we don't lose that kind of in this

13   transition because there are a lot of

14   partners, a lot of grass roots partners at

15   the table.  And we want to make sure that

16   they stay engaged at that level.

17       I want to be able to come back here in

18   three months and say what's the plan.  So, I

19   should be able to go to my CUA folks and say

20   what's your community outreach engagement

21   plan.

22       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Yes.  And one of

23   the things I'm also doing, my communications

24   director is working with the sort of
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1   community engagement people.  And we are

2   actually working on developing or revising.

3   There were plans already, but also revising

4   and maybe developing some new community

5   engagement plans and structures.

6       I have to take a little bit more robust

7   look at it myself to be honest with you.

8   Sort of was focusing on some other things as

9   I came in.  But I will be beginning to go to

10   some of the community advisory board

11   meetings so that I can meet the board, so

12   that I can see them and see what's going on.

13       And we're also -- Kim is my

14   implementation officer who takes a real

15   interest in that kind of stuff.  She also

16   does and attends as well as my deputies and

17   some others, some community meetings and

18   some other stuff so we can try and help

19   bridge that gap and to try and make sure

20   that it's actually taking place.

21       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Okay.

22   There's a group -- and I had asked about the

23   group before, but we are getting ready to do

24   a major renovation.  And it will impact.
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1       You have Little Red Boxing Gym at

2   $50,000 at Rivera Recreation Center.  They

3   are never there.  I don't know what their

4   schedule is.  I don't know who they report

5   to.  I don't know who participates.  We are

6   going to do a major renovation at that

7   facility, so I would like to see whatever

8   they are supposed to do for that $50,000 and

9   who they are supposed to serve.

10       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Absolutely.

11       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Because

12   we may need to move them around as we

13   renovate that facility.  They are never

14   there, so I don't --

15       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  And I will take a

16   look at that, too.  I need to take a look at

17   the prevention contract myself to see

18   exactly what the contract entails.  And we

19   will definitely get back to you.  All I know

20   is that it is a boxing --

21       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  It's a

22   boxing gym.  We have been going there a lot

23   because we are getting ready to gut the

24   place out.
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1       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Understood.

2       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  They are

3   never there, so I want to make sure.  So,

4   one of the things that Council President's

5   been talking about is this kind of

6   co-locating similar to what we did with the

7   SUV unit.  How are we doing around trying to

8   get local placements for, you know, programs

9   like the Bridge?

10       How are we doing in terms of planning so

11   that we are not sending kids when we have to

12   place them so far away from their homes?

13       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, we are

14   definitely continuing to plan in that area.

15   And that's one of the outcomes that we are

16   measuring for improving outcomes to make

17   sure that -- we try to keep kids as close to

18   home as possible.  We know that that's the

19   best for them as well as their families.  It

20   helps with reunification in terms of

21   proximity from visits and other things.  We

22   continue to monitor that.

23       We do regularly monitor how many kids

24   are place out of their homes and how far
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1   from their homes in terms of how many miles

2   is a kid placed from their home.  And I

3   believe for those kids who are not in a kin

4   placement, meaning with family, about 52

5   percent of them are placed within five miles

6   of the home that they originally came from.

7   So, we are beginning to monitor that.  That

8   is one of the progresses of IOC that we have

9   seen that we allow kin homes to -- we wave

10   that requirement because we know that it's

11   more important to put a kid with a family

12   member than in the proximity of the

13   community.  Even if family member lives

14   further, we will still let them reside with

15   the family.

16       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Have we

17   talked to any of our partners?  I have two

18   or three close school facilities in the

19   district.  Have we begun to talk to some

20   providers to see if we can build some more

21   slots within the City grounds?

22       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Well, we're always

23   having conversations with providers.  I

24   think some of it is about what is the
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1   service needs that we need and what is the

2   continuum of services.  So, really try to

3   look at the array of services that we have

4   in terms of where the need is.

5       Truthfully, our service need for some of

6   those kinds of slots that you were referring

7   to would be considered more group home or

8   institution.  We are actually shrinking the

9   system in that way because we are trying to

10   get more kids in family-like settings.  So,

11   we are trying to have more kids in foster

12   care or in kinship care if they cannot

13   remain in the home because we believe that

14   they do better and certainly better for them

15   overall to be with a family.

16       I don't know that we've actually started

17   full fledge negotiations with some.  I have

18   talked to some and there are some facilities

19   who are close by who have expanded a little

20   bit that are either within the City arena or

21   whatever.  We are really trying to shrink.

22       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Yeah.

23   There is a group.  I was dealing with a

24   young woman who, unfortunately, had been
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1   raped at home.  She was fostered out.  So,

2   she was 19 years old.  You know, Covenant

3   House does such a great work, job on

4   Kensington Avenue in terms of providing kind

5   of studio, very affordable housing.

6       Are we looking to do any more of that?

7   I just find that there's a group of kids who

8   are like not home and are -- they are

9   technically homeless because they end up

10   living with different people.  I'm just

11   wondering if there is a model as we talk

12   about housing moving forward, if there's a

13   model.  As much as I hate these 450-foot

14   square apartments, I just feel like that's a

15   request we get all the time that we are

16   unable to meet.

17       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  We are very

18   conscious of the need for housing.  It's a

19   huge need for our families in terms of

20   parents often.  But in particular, that

21   population of kids that you're talking

22   about, I would say that 18 to 21 year olds

23   for us that definitely need housing.

24       We do have a number of housing programs
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1   that we are working on and trying to

2   enhance.  We actually started, which was a

3   model one.  I don't believe there are any

4   others in the country.  I program with PHA

5   where they gave us, we call them quads,

6   where there are, like, four apartments in

7   one building they gave us.  Three of our

8   kids reside in all of them.  Then the fourth

9   quad, they put a disabled person and kind of

10   pay or develop a job that our kid helps to

11   do some things in the common areas or for

12   that person.

13       That model has worked well.  We actually

14   have some meetings coming up to talk about

15   expansion of that model with PHA.  We are

16   also looking at some other things with PHA

17   around some scattered sites.  It goes to

18   that particular population that you are

19   referring to, that 18 to 21 year old.  Yes,

20   we are trying to expand.

21       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  It would

22   be important, and I will mention this to

23   you.  I have about 200 folks who are

24   over-house or what PHA consider over-housed.
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1   They are in big homes that, you know, at one

2   point, you know, there were more people

3   living in the house.  And PHA has to over

4   the next couple of years transition those

5   folks out.

6       For me, the thought of having someone

7   who has lived in a house for 47 years and

8   remove that senior from that house, that

9   model that you talked about might be one

10   where we can keep some of those seniors

11   particularly scattered sites.  In my case, I

12   have a lot of Latinos who are in scattered

13   sites -- well, not a lot because PHA's

14   numbers is, like, 2 percent.  In those

15   situations, I like to entertain that kind of

16   kinmanship relationship where maybe that's a

17   place where we can put some of these

18   fostered-out overaged kids with a senior in

19   a home but keep that senior in their home.

20       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Right.

21       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Just to

22   introduce that to you.  That is something I

23   am very concerned about.  Because

24   neighborhoods where I live in Norris Square
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1   where I live, I have 40, 50 people that are

2   going to be impacted in this, what they are

3   calling, over-housed situation.

4       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Yes.  Understood.

5       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Okay.

6   Thank you.

7       COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,

8   Councilwoman.

9       Chair recognizes Councilman Jones.

10       COUNCILMAN JONES:  He said Jones?  I

11   thought he said Johnson.  All right.  Thank

12   you, sir.

13       Couple of quick questions.

14       Number one, on special ed programs in

15   the school that you're administering and

16   you're trying to come up with a truancy

17   plan, are you taking into account school

18   refusal versus school truancy?  Because that

19   is a subtle difference by way of some young

20   people who feel bullied or intimidated

21   because of their special needs just aren't

22   going to school.  That kind of counts

23   against their attendance record.

24       Are you making a delineation between
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1   those two different things?

2       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I don't know about

3   delineation in terms of the numbers, but

4   very cognizant of the issues that -- my rate

5   of issues, why kids are saying that they're

6   not going to school.  Often safety and

7   bullying is one of them.  That's why we were

8   trying to work and redesign the model so

9   that we work so closely with the School

10   District so that they're staff is at the

11   table.  The climate in the school would be

12   something that they control as opposed to

13   us.  Our truancy providers are very aware of

14   that and will try to assist the family in

15   working through those issues and try to

16   determine how we can find out what's best

17   for that particular child.

18       And then our education support center is

19   there at the table to help make sure we have

20   the child in the best school.  Or if for

21   some reason it needs to be navigated that

22   the child is moved or something, that they

23   help navigate through the School District

24   sort of red tape, so to speak, to make sure
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1   we get them where the are.  They are working

2   on those kind of what are the underlying

3   issues contributing to the truancy.

4       COUNCILMAN JONES:  In a case where a

5   kid, a child or a parent, identifies the

6   fact that their child doesn't feel

7   comfortable and they feel intimidated and/or

8   bullied, do you make an adjustment -- work

9   with the School District to move them?

10       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Well, we would

11   work with the School District to see what

12   goes on.  In terms of whether or not it's

13   truancy, if the child is not going to

14   school, they are still counted as not going

15   to school.  If their unexcused absences, it

16   might still be counted that way.  But we

17   would be willing, yes, to work with the

18   family and assist them in working with the

19   School District to try and come up with a

20   resolution to that problem.

21       COUNCILMAN JONES:  That was brought to

22   my attention by a parent, so I just wanted

23   to put that in your hands.

24       Last year -- we have asked this question
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1   before and it's an uncomfortable question

2   for me, but I'm going to ask it anyway.

3       How many children have registered abuse

4   cases while in custody of foster parents

5   last year?

6       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I will try to find

7   that answer for you.

8       COUNCILMAN JONES:  And has it gone down

9   from fol -- from previous years?

10       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  In Fiscal Year 14,

11   13 children were abused while in DHS care.

12   That's approximately about 3.6 percent of

13   all of the reports that we get of kids in

14   care.  And it actually has gone down.

15   Because in FY13, 14 kids was abused.  That

16   was 4.5 percent of all reports.  The reason

17   the percentage is lower is we have more kids

18   in care.  Even though we have more kids in

19   care, it went down a little bit in terms of

20   the number of kids who were abused while in

21   care.

22       COUNCILMAN JONES:  So in those cases,

23   what have -- are the -- what has been the

24   disposition of those cases?  Meaning, was it
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1   founded?  Unfounded?  Prosecuted?  Not

2   prosecuted?

3       What was the disposition?

4       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So the 13 I'm

5   giving your were all cases either founded or

6   indicated.  Because what happens is if an

7   allegation is made that a kid is being

8   injured while they're in care, then the

9   State does the investigation.  And then the

10   State makes a determination as to whether

11   they are going to found or indicate.  So,

12   those 13 kids were indicated or found.  I

13   cannot tell you whether or not the

14   perpetrators were -- law enforcement

15   proceeded against the perpetrators.  That, I

16   don't have with me.

17       COUNCILMAN JONES:  So in a case where

18   there's an allegation, is the foster

19   provider, foster care provider immediately

20   taken out of the system so that, you know,

21   no other child will wind up in that similar

22   circumstance?

23       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So what happens is

24   the State is actually the one, Pennsylvania
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1   Department of Human Services, who licenses

2   foster homes and facilities.  We don't do

3   the licensing.

4       However, if I find out that there's an

5   allegation against a foster parent, we do

6   obviously and immediately remove all

7   children who are in their care that aer

8   foster children for us.  I don't have the

9   ability to shut a home down, meaning they

10   can never get kids.  But I do have the

11   ability to control which Philadelphia kids

12   go.  And what we do is we flag it in our

13   system so that we don't send any other

14   Philadelphia kids once we get the notice

15   from the State.

16       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Share that

17   information with other providers?

18       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Once we flag it in

19   our system, there's something like a

20   provider code.  So, the home can't get a

21   code.  It can't operate if it does not have

22   a code in it.

23       COUNCILMAN JONES:  What I'm -- maybe I

24   didn't say it right.  I understand you cease
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1   and desist placing kids there.  Do you share

2   that with other agencies that may have

3   different sources of young people?

4       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I'm not -- we

5   don't go to other counties, for example, and

6   share it.  But certainly, if we don't

7   place -- one of our providers can't place a

8   kid there if we already closed the home to

9   that.

10       COUNCILMAN JONES:  There is no

11   reciprocity.

12       So for example, suppose somebody outside

13   of your system uses the same foster care

14   people and they have a allegation.  Do they

15   let you know that there might be an open

16   investigation in that facility or site?

17       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  There is registry,

18   a foster parent registry that they would go

19   on that is maintained by the State that they

20   would put on.  And all of us in whatever

21   county across the state would have access to

22   it, would be able to look at it.  There is a

23   registry that is maintained.

24       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Okay.  And in cases
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1   of alleged abuse, are -- I think there was

2   an article that talked about allowing them

3   to use pseudo names because they didn't -- a

4   lot of kids feel the stigma, oh, I was

5   abused, I was attacked or I was bothered.

6   Are they given anonymity so they don't wind

7   up ostracized or picked on or any of those

8   things?

9       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I don't know

10   anything about allowing kids to use pseudo

11   names.  However, certainly whenever a

12   investigation is conducted, the child is

13   talked to privately as part of the

14   investigation.  And when we remove a child,

15   we would remove a child.  Often where they

16   are moved to, depending upon what's going

17   on, may not have any information as to what

18   happened before.

19       I don't know of too many instance where

20   a child has been abused that it follows them

21   or it becomes, you know, another problem or

22   pattern for them.  Because everything is

23   done confidentially surrounding the

24   investigation into the initial home.
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1       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Finally, by way of

2   selection of foster care parents' homes, I

3   know it's difficult to recruit good foster

4   care parents.  How are we doing in that

5   particular area by way of service providing

6   for children?

7       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, it is very

8   difficult to recruit good foster care homes.

9   We call them resource homes sometimes.  We

10   are trying very hard to recruit more

11   resource homes.  We are beginning to do some

12   work and trying to do some work within, say,

13   the faith-based community hoping that maybe

14   we can recruit some homes because other

15   jurisdiction have had success recruiting out

16   of that, out of the faith-based community or

17   congregations of various type.

18       It is difficult.  It is also difficult

19   to make sure that you have the children in

20   the right home when you put them in the

21   home.  And so, we are doing okay.  But we

22   have a lot more work to do in terms of

23   needing to develop foster care and

24   resources.
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1       COUNCILMAN JONES:  I don't know what we

2   can do as a legislative body budget

3   appropriating body.  But whatever we can do

4   to help you up the level of recruitment and

5   then quality, please let us know.  Because

6   the outcomes are real clear that when you

7   get it right, you can save a life.  When you

8   get it wrong, you set them on a track of

9   problems throughout their life.  We are

10   watching -- which leads me to my final,

11   final point.

12       How are we doing with those that age out

13   of the system?  And are we improving on

14   those outcomes as opposed to the past?

15       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, kids who age

16   out of the system continue to be a challenge

17   in making sure that when they age out, they

18   get the services that they need.  It happens

19   to be an area that I'm very interested in.

20   And we are trying to do better in a number

21   of ways.  I think in some ways we are doing

22   better and some ways we still have a long

23   way to go, quite honestly.

24       We are trying to improve our IL
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1   services, which are independent living

2   services, to try and make them be able to be

3   self sufficient when they leave.  We have

4   made a lot of progress with our Achieving

5   Independence Center.  Now we are housed at

6   Broad and Master in the Old Leon Sullivan

7   building.  It's sort of the one-stop shop

8   for independent living services for our

9   kids.  It's kind of a model.

10       And they have everything there from

11   assisting them with tutoring or issues that

12   they may be having academically or school,

13   to helping them to fill out college

14   applications, financial aid applications,

15   employment applications.  They do employment

16   readiness with them.  They do mock

17   interviews.  We have a little boutique where

18   they can go and get clothes so they have

19   appropriate clothing for job interviews,

20   things of that nature.

21       But they also teach them basic, what

22   some people would consider, basic skills.

23   What might not be as basically taught for

24   our kids, things such as budgeting and
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1   planning and how to balance a checkbook and

2   banking and, you know, just other

3   skill-building type of things.  We are

4   trying to work on that.  Very difficult.

5       Philadelphia, of many of the counties

6   across the state, we actually have a large

7   number of kids who are age 18 to 21 because

8   we believe in trying to help our kids as

9   long as we can help them and help them to

10   transition out.  We have been doing that for

11   a long time.  We actually try to put as many

12   services in place as we can for our kids

13   that are 18 to 21.

14       I talked a little bit earlier in

15   response to Councilwoman Sanchez' question

16   in terms of us having a concern about that

17   population and the housing need also.

18   Within that population are kids who age out.

19   Sort of creative model programs we are

20   trying to work out with PHA and others to

21   try and assist them with housing needs and

22   other needs that they have.

23       We also do, in response to law, Act 91

24   came out which is a reentry program.  What
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1   we find is sometimes you have a young

2   person, they turn 18 and they say, I want

3   out of the system.  Because legally they are

4   an adult, although I might not think they

5   are ready to go out there on our own like

6   most of our kids who are not ready at 18 to

7   go out into the world on their own.

8   Sometimes they want to and they do, and then

9   they realize they made a mistake.  And so,

10   years ago it was nothing I could do.  If you

11   left at 18, we cannot use our money or

12   anything else to bring you back.

13       But recent law changes allow us now.

14   They can apply for reentry into the system.

15   We can bring them back in up until age 21 to

16   help them get whatever the services are that

17   they need.  It allows us to be able to help

18   them connect with everything from, you know,

19   they need housing or their behavioral health

20   services or whatever else that they need.

21       Also under the Obama legislation, we've

22   been trying to help them connect and know

23   that they can still get medical benefits up

24   until age 26.  And so, just getting that
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1   word out there and trying to help them

2   navigate the services that are available to

3   them.

4       COUNCILMAN JONES:  I see you have Former

5   Mayor Wilson Goode with you.  And, you know,

6   you brought your big gun today.  And I

7   understand he deals with issues related to

8   families that are incarcerated and provided.

9   Could you talk about that for a moment.  And

10   I'm really, really proud that he's still

11   giving of himself to public service in that

12   regard.

13       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, Mayor Goode's

14   Program, obviously, he would be able to talk

15   about it much better than this.  I do know

16   that it is a program that provides

17   mentoring.  It's a model mentoring program

18   for incarcerated people.  Mentoring is

19   something that we are trying to work on and

20   develop more.  We need it for our older

21   youth and we are in need of mentors.

22       If you know of anybody who is willing,

23   have them contact us.  We are definitely in

24   need of mentors for our teenage kids in
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1   particular.  They are developing mentoring

2   programs at our Achieving Independence

3   Center.  We are now embarking on what's

4   called sort of natural mentoring.  Which

5   means we have our kids sometimes identify

6   who they might want to mentor them.

7       Sometimes they now found a teacher or

8   coach or somebody else who wants to mentor

9   them.  One of the things we have done,

10   though, in recent years is try and increase

11   our outreach to incarcerated parents.

12   Because while they are incarcerated, they

13   still have a right to see their children,

14   still have a right to participate in the

15   planning for their children in DHS care.

16       And so, we now started doing some video

17   conferencing with them.  We now have, you

18   know, some equipment at the department in

19   the room where they can be involved

20   sometimes in the team meeting that might be

21   taking place through conferencing.  We've

22   some visitation through that.  Also, we

23   tried to emphasize more and have done much

24   better with our workers in terms of working
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1   around taking kids to visit their parents

2   and trying to -- we've done, I call it

3   commercial.  I think they called it

4   infomercial -- that runs at the prisons at

5   the City of Philadelphia prisons, which

6   tells incarcerated people what their rights

7   are kind of but also what their obligations

8   are.  Because the clock doesn't stop ticking

9   on you because you're incarcerated because

10   of what you are supposed to do on behalf of

11   your child.  We have that running in English

12   and Spanish, which runs throughout on the --

13   in the common areas of the prison and on the

14   TVs there that gives them other information.

15       And we've also in recent years sort of

16   expanded working with prison social workers

17   around trying to make sure that certain

18   programs are offered or that the parents who

19   are incarcerated have access to those

20   programs, as well.

21       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Mr. President, I

22   just -- it's incredible to me that sometimes

23   we have generational attendance in some of

24   our prison facilities where father and a son
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1   and a grandfather all in the same

2   institution.  So, this is God's work working

3   to prevent some of those negative outcomes

4   and provide those services.  Because it is a

5   victim, but there are other victims by the

6   actual perpetrators.  Because if he has

7   children, that's a household that doesn't

8   have a father, a mother and another parent

9   to be a helping hand to help with homework

10   and stuff like that.  So, there are number

11   of victims once something happens like that.

12       Thank you for what you're doing.

13       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  You're welcome.

14       COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,

15   Councilman.

16       Chair recognizes Councilwoman

17   Quinones-Sanchez.

18       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  I have

19   just one last question.

20       We -- one of the things I had asked

21   Dr. Evans that I'm going to ask for your

22   department is if you can map out by district

23   what are your service providers both on the

24   prevention and then the CUA.  One of the
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1   things we have to get a hold of, and I

2   wasn't here for the Health Department, is

3   for people in the community, service is

4   service.  I think it's important for us to

5   get a good visual of what kind of services

6   we have in every single neighborhood.  And

7   now that you have the CUAs that have given

8   you a foothold in the community, I would

9   like to see what all of those things like

10   look.

11       I notice you have a robust list of

12   prevention services and other things, I

13   think that would be beneficial.  If you can

14   forward that with like phone numbers and

15   contacts, sometimes we get tons of calls

16   from some of these agencies.  I just want to

17   be clear, like, what is your role.  It's

18   easy for you to give us constituent

19   services.  Sort of like where are you

20   located in all of this and how we can be

21   more proactively helpful, so that would be

22   helpful if you can forward that.

23       And I have a question.  You know, we are

24   starting this police oversight.  We see
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1   what's going on in Baltimore, clearly the

2   scenes are graphic.  The mother hitting her

3   son.

4       If we were to be in a similar situation,

5   what would be DHS protocols in helping us?

6   I would hate to see -- I know you have some

7   really good model programs about first

8   offenders.  What could we be doing or what

9   could DHS be doing to help us?  You know,

10   you see these scenes, kids beating up kids

11   underneath SEPTA.

12       How many of those kids are in your

13   system, and what else could we be doing?

14       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I don't know

15   exactly how many of the kids you are

16   referring to are in our system.  I do have

17   my deputy sitting out here for Timene Farlow

18   for Juvenile Justice who probably can answer

19   some of these questions a little bit better

20   than I could and is very committed to trying

21   to come up with diversionary programs and

22   programs that will decrease recidivism for

23   those kids who do come into our system, so

24   that hopefully we help them successfully
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1   reintegrate back into their communities and

2   we no longer need to come back in.

3       I think we do have the school diversion

4   program that we sort of support with the

5   Police Department, which is I think the

6   program that you might have been referring

7   to.  Where at this point over 400 kids have

8   been diverted that are first-time offenders.

9   We are excited about that program because

10   that's 400 kids that would have been

11   incarcerated somewhere or in our detention

12   center.  Many of them were DHS children on

13   the dependent side.  Okay.  So, it gave them

14   the opportunity to have another children for

15   sometimes what is seemingly a small

16   infraction and then you put a kid on that

17   trajectory and that's the road that they

18   sort of go on.

19       Definitely looking at that.  We have a

20   delinquency leadership meeting coming up,

21   which are the stakeholders in the

22   delinquency around the City.  The DAs, the

23   Police, ourselves and Family Court, being

24   housed at Family Court soon so we can talk
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1   about kind of where we are.  Actually, our

2   numbers are going down in terms of number of

3   arrests our City for youth have gone down

4   some to the extent that some of our

5   facilities are experiencing shrinking in

6   terms of placing there.

7       There are a number of -- we have evening

8   reporting centers.  There are number of

9   other centers that we are trying to use.

10   And that has been going so well.  That is

11   sort of pre-adjudication that we are now

12   trying to --

13       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  I saw

14   the reporting centers.  Again, where are

15   they located?  Kind of how do they work?

16       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I'm going to ask

17   Timene if she can come up.  She probably can

18   provide these answers a little bit better

19   than I can.

20       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  I don't

21   know if that was kind of taking place for

22   our truancy centers that we had, our evening

23   centers.

24       DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FARLOW:  Good
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1   afternoon.

2       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  It's

3   evolution of our centers.

4       DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FARLOW:  Good

5   afternoon.  I'm Timene Farlow.  I'm Deputy

6   Commissioner for Juvenile Justice Services.

7   There are two evening reporting centers.

8   One of which is run by Northeast Treatment

9   Centers located at about 2nd and Berks.  And

10   the other is Philadelphia Youth Advocacy

11   Programs.  That is --

12       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  That's a

13   perfect example.  I live around the corner.

14   I talked to -- I didn't know that was

15   considered one of the drop off centers.

16   That is right around the corner from my

17   house.

18       DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FARLOW:  Okay.

19       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  I didn't

20   know that.

21       DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FARLOW:  Well, the

22   evening reporting centers are actually

23   alternatives to secure confinement.  They

24   are not for your run-of-the-mill young
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1   person.  It is really a diversion, an

2   opportunity for a young person to experience

3   being at home with his own -- his or her own

4   family instead of being locked in a secure

5   facility.  Both of those programs are --

6       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Who

7   takes the kid there?  An incident happens --

8       DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FARLOW:  So, it's at

9   judicial discretion.  The judges make the

10   decisions as to which young people will get

11   that as an opportunity and which won't.  So,

12   judges make those decisions based on a

13   number of risk factors.  They are using now

14   the Detective Risk Assessment Instrument.

15   And provided a young person scores within a

16   range that suggests that he or she can be

17   safely managed in the community without

18   creating new victims, then the child is

19   referred.

20       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Okay.

21   Thank you.  And one last thing.

22       One of the things that came out at the

23   last hearing was the issue of when CUA

24   members and folks have to go to court.  And
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1   we heard some complaints for more advocates

2   in the court system.  Has that process

3   gotten better in terms of training staff to

4   be able to go in front of the Court and be

5   prepared?

6       In our hearings last time, that was one

7   of the items that came up.  Have we improved

8   that?

9       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I'm sorry,

10   Councilwoman.  I think I missed the

11   beginning.  You're asking me about CUA

12   performance in court?

13       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  Yeah.

14   She mentioned the court in terms of court

15   ordered stuff.  One of the complaints or the

16   criticism we got was that some staff is

17   unprepared to go into court with some of the

18   children.  And so, she's saying about a

19   referral.

20       Have we strengthened that?  What have we

21   done since the last hearing around the

22   communication?

23       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, what we have

24   done since the last hearing around that is a
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1   number of things to try and help to improve

2   the quality of preparation and the quality

3   of performance before the courts with the

4   community umbrella agency staff.

5       One of the things that we have done

6   since the last hearing is we have developed

7   a Department of Technical Assistance, which

8   comes under my DHS university which is

9   typically our training arm that provides

10   coaching and other things for the CUA and

11   CUA staff.  They have started doing what we

12   call DRO, which means Disposition or Review

13   Order.  In other words, court-ordered

14   clinics.

15       Which means that CUA staff can come,

16   bring a court order that they have.  They

17   can help explain that court order, help them

18   understand if there's some language on there

19   or other things that they don't know how to

20   navigate or what the judge wants, what the

21   time requirements are.  So, we put that in

22   place.  There has been some work done with

23   our law department has been going out to

24   different CUAs, talking to them, trying to
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1   develop some things in terms of training and

2   other things.

3       So, we are also developing some booster

4   trainings, if you will, around how to

5   prepare for court.  I have personally, along

6   with Kimberly Ali, been going out and

7   meeting with the line level staff in each of

8   the CUAs.  I've been to eight so far.  I

9   think I have two more coming up.

10       One of the things that I found as I'm

11   talking to staff and trying to see, is we do

12   ask the staff to do a lot.  Sometimes it's

13   about how do you prioritize.  I talk to them

14   a little bit about the prioritization of

15   what it is we ask them to do.  Also, I talk

16   to them about court preparation and having,

17   you know, practice in family court.  You

18   know, kind of what it is the judges are

19   looking for.  How you, you know, address

20   that.

21       I do think that court performance is

22   getting better.  I have regular meetings

23   with Family Court Administration.  And we do

24   talk about some of these things.  We are
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1   also beginning to track different things.

2   In terms of, I have a DHS court

3   representative, we call them, in each

4   courtroom.  They are also there in trying to

5   assist and help bring some closure.  We have

6   some of those DHS representatives sit in our

7   law department and sort of facilitate

8   getting information between the City

9   solicitors and the dependents.

10       And then I've also done some going to

11   some staff meetings and talking to our

12   lawyers around, you know, how they can be

13   useful in prepping and helping particularly

14   staff who may not be as useful in going to

15   court as much.

16       MS. ALI:  In addition to the stuff that

17   the department has done to help the CUAs

18   enhance their preparation, presentation at

19   court, we also talk to CUA leadership and

20   their administrators.  Their case management

21   directors on up will actually go to court

22   every other month so they can observe the

23   presentation of their staff so that they can

24   also provide constructive feedback to the
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1   staff to help enhance their preparation and

2   their presentation at court.

3       So, we look at a two-prong process.

4   Both the department helping to enhance as

5   well as CUA leadership helping to enhance

6   the practice at court, as well.

7       COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:  That's

8   so important.  Because that interaction with

9   the courts and whether this child ends up in

10   a situation that, you know, potentially

11   could be permanently damaging to their

12   record versus diverting them because we know

13   the problems.

14       I had an opportunity to visit a couple

15   of centers.  And I will tell the story

16   because it's really, really telling.  At one

17   of the centers, you know, you have a child

18   who gets in trouble in school.  If people

19   don't ask the right questions, this child

20   ends up in the situation within our judicial

21   system when they could have had a death or

22   you know, the trauma situation that we have

23   seen.

24       So, that is important about what
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1   happened in what context, what was going on

2   in the child's life to make sure that

3   whatever the decisions happen in the court

4   are in the best interest of the child not

5   only short term but long term.

6       Thank you.  Thank you very much,

7   Mr. Chair.

8       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Thank you.

9       COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,

10   Councilwoman.

11       Chair recognizes Councilwoman Blackwell.

12       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you,

13   Mr. President.  Thank you, Commissioner.  I

14   want to thank your deputy with whom I met at

15   Youth Study Center.  And it's such a special

16   place.  And they really, really care about

17   the kids there.  So, I hope she will maybe

18   privately we can talk about a young lady who

19   is there that we were so worried about.

20       It's so sad that these children when

21   they're ready to finish school get

22   transferred since they don't stay there.

23   It's a big issue.  In fact, I talked to

24   Kevin Dougherty on one of the campaign stops
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1   about that issue of us losing kids who are

2   doing so well in the environment when people

3   care about them.  And then about 19 days

4   later, they are sent to the suburbs

5   someplace and they fall down and don't

6   finish school because it's not local.  We

7   really have to do something about allowing

8   our children to stay here.

9       But thank you for your efforts.  And

10   really would like to explore that any way

11   you can.

12       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  So, thank you for

13   recognizing those efforts.  We are blessed

14   that we have a very good education program

15   at the Philadelphia Juvenile Justice

16   Services Center, our new name for Youth

17   Study Center.  And it is actually a School

18   District principal who is very dedicated and

19   committed to these young people.  The

20   educational opportunities there are really,

21   really good.

22       I do definitely understand what you're

23   saying in terms of some of the kids do well

24   there.  I am sure that I or Timene would be
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1   happy to talk to you about this young lady.

2   Timene certainly knows them all much better

3   than I do because she is very into the

4   trajectory for all of these kids.  But thank

5   you for recognizing the center and Timene.

6       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.

7   Thank you, Mr. President.

8       COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you,

9   Councilwoman.  Commissioner, thank you so

10   much for your very thoughtful and in-depth

11   testimony and you responses.  Most

12   definitely going to have a follow up with

13   you.

14       I'm not sure have you gotten -- have you

15   had a chance to look at this family-based

16   services?

17       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  I don't think I

18   have.  I think I might be familiar with

19   parts of it.  I haven't seen the document.

20       COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  I would like

21   to give you a copy of it and ask for you to

22   just kind of look through it and just give

23   us some suggestions.  You know, the theme as

24   we go through some of the department's
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1   testimony today, it's clear that there are a

2   number of certain levels of resources that

3   address these concerns and a significant

4   number of cases you all are already doing

5   this, the approach to some degree kind of

6   consolidating some of those services in a

7   particular location.

8       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Yes.

9       COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  I think we

10   all understand the proximity of services

11   makes a whole lot of sense.  And we've been

12   working with a number of stakeholders that

13   had a really great presentation.  All the

14   presenters were from outside the City.  It

15   gave us a different perspective.

16       Baltimore, we talked about the

17   Cincinnati model.  We really would like to

18   be in a position to follow up with you so

19   you can give us some recommendations and

20   suggestions.  The universities are involved.

21   They are excited about possibilities in some

22   of the hospitals.  So we really would look

23   for your very, very critical --

24       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Absolutely.
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1       COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  -- solutions

2   to some of these activity that we'd like to

3   embark on.  Thank you so much for your

4   testimony.

5       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Thank you.

6       COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  We will

7   follow up.

8       COMMISSIONER HARLEY:  Thank you all.

9       COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:  Thank you.

10       Next up we will have Office of

11   Supportive Housing.

12       (Witnesses approach witness table.)

13                    -  -  -

14       (Councilman Greenlee sitting as Chair.)

15       COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Good afternoon,

16   everyone.  We have your -- obviously, we

17   have your -- what you sent us already,

18   written testimony.  If you could briefly

19   state your position and then we can have

20   some questions.

21       MS. NAHIKIAN:  Good afternoon, Members

22   of the City Council.

23       COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Pull the

24   microphone just a little closer.  Yeah.
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1   There you go.  Thank you.

2       MS. NAHIKIAN:  I am Marie Nahikian.  I'm

3   the Director of the Office of Supportive

4   Housing.

5       How might Philadelphia end homelessness?

6   We know how.  On April 10 the Office of

7   Supportive Housing joined in announcing that

8   Philadelphia will end homelessness for our

9   Veterans by November 11, 2015.  When that

10   happens, Philadelphia will be the largest

11   city in our nation to accomplish this.

12       How did it happen?  And it's a critical

13   lesson for how we might look at homelessness

14   in the City today.  Three critical factors:

15       Leadership.  The efforts for Vets began

16   in 2013 with a commitment from top leaders

17   from our City, from the Federal Government

18   and the local community that provides

19   services.

20       Collaboration and partnership.  There is

21   an unprecedented system designed by multiple

22   parters with one point of entry for persons

23   who are Vets and who are homeless.

24       And finally, resources.  The Federal
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1   Government has provided sufficient types of

2   resources that with effective local

3   stewardship ensures that a Veteran no longer

4   has to be homeless.  The mission of the

5   Office of Supportive Housing is to help

6   individuals and families do the same thing,

7   moving toward independent living and self

8   sufficiency and stable housing.

9       OSH fulfills this mission by

10   incorporating leadership, working closely

11   with national and regional leaders and the

12   many public and private partnerships that

13   support our system.  We balance diverse

14   needs capturing as many resources as

15   possible through multiple sub-populations.

16       For example, we have the federally

17   funded homeless continuum of care where OSH

18   plans the development of new initiatives and

19   is provided over 5,500 units of permanent

20   supportive housing since the beginning of

21   the continuum.  The continuum includes over

22   50 local nonprofit organizations.  OSH

23   manages the Riverview Home, where up to a

24   hundred low income persons in needs of
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1   personal care now can reside.

2       In 2014, OSH provided food for

3   1.6 million meals served in Philadelphia's

4   soup kitchens and 4.2 million onsite meals

5   and emergency shelter.  We provide support

6   to many City agencies including L&I where

7   our trained emergency assistant staff carry

8   out cease and desist orders.  OSH provides

9   emergency housing to individuals and

10   families.  And since the beginning of

11   FY2014 -- 2015, excuse me, OSH has placed

12   632 persons in permanent housing and 408

13   persons in transitional housing.  These

14   resources largely coming from the

15   Philadelphia Housing Authority.

16       The Homeless Prevention Program has

17   assisted over 600 persons in FY2015

18   preventing evictions, mortgage foreclosures

19   and providing relocation security deposit

20   assistance.  I'm pleased to tell you

21   something about the OSH budget request for

22   Fiscal Year 2016.

23       The proposed FY16 budget is $91 million.

24   It includes an allocation of $45.2 million
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1   in general funds representing 49 percent,

2   and 46.5 percent in grant funds, about 51

3   percent.  The general fund proposed

4   allocations is a bit higher than FY15

5   currently because of employee salary

6   increases as a result of union contracts.

7   The title FY16 proposed operating budget to

8   OSH is, however, on par with our FY current

9   projections for FY15.

10       FY16 challenges include a growing demand

11   for emergency housing.  Although

12   Philadelphia's nationally recognized for our

13   homeless programs and our homeless

14   prevention programs, the need for affordable

15   housing, the high levels of poverty and

16   unemployment continue to increase the number

17   of the persons at OSH front door.  A growing

18   number of low income and poor citizens, many

19   with full-time jobs, 30 percent of our

20   single men are in shelter have jobs.

21       They turn to the homeless system for

22   affordable housing.  On any given day, OSH

23   is operating at full capacity.  On average,

24   about 30 families come daily to our
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1   Appletree Family Intake Center.  The OSH

2   front door is a safety net for these

3   families.  Our No Vacancy signs leaves

4   family with the reality of not being

5   assisted and the painful job for OSH staff

6   who must say no.  OSH continues to assist

7   with prevention strategy and seeking

8   resources from family, friends or other

9   relatives whenever it's possible and safe to

10   do so when we have to say no.

11       In FY16, OSH will join the federal goals

12   of ending chronic homelessness in 2016,

13   family homelessness in 2017.  And with any

14   good luck, youth homelessness in 2020.

15       Since August 2013 through March 2015,

16   the City and partners including the Vets

17   Administration, Public Housing Authority,

18   HUD and nonprofits have ended homelessness

19   for 905 Veterans.  OSH wishes -- is planning

20   to extend the Philly Vets team home goal for

21   Vets to all Philadelphia residents so that

22   future homelessness will be rare, brief and

23   non-reoccurring.

24       We're happy to answer questions.  With
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1   me is Rodney Cherry, our fiscal officer; Joy

2   Presson, our -- my Chief of Staff as well

3   our deputies in the various program areas.

4       COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Okay.  Thank you

5   very much.  Thank you for all the work you

6   do.  I have just a couple questions

7   regarding the work you do with domestic

8   violence -- domestic violence issue.

9       First, I know there has been money

10   consistently in the budget last couple years

11   for the second domestic violence shelter.

12   And I wasn't real clear because I know money

13   in the budget is kind of in a lump sum.  I

14   believe there should be $2.7 million

15   directed towards women against abuse for

16   that second shelter.  Is that part --

17       MS. NAHIKIAN:  2.5 million.  And then

18   they got an additional transfer ordinance

19   for another 200,000.

20       COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Okay.

21       MS. NAHIKIAN:  It's a total of 2.7.

22       COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  It's a total of

23   2.7.  Good.  Good.  And then you talk about

24   in the written testimony about the issue of
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1   the Citywide coordinated response to

2   domestic violence.  Could you just go in a

3   little bit on what exactly OSH does in that

4   effort.

5       MS. NAHIKIAN:  We are participant as are

6   many organizations.  I think that are staff

7   participating on a regular basis has

8   provided leadership.  And we will continue

9   to participate.

10       COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  And I think you --

11   who else is involved in that; do you know?

12       MS. NAHIKIAN:  You mean in terms of OSH

13   or in terms of the City?

14       COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Well, both in this

15   case?  How about with the City?

16       MS. NAHIKIAN:  Department of Behavioral

17   Health.  I know the Deputy Mayor for Health

18   and Opportunity has been involved.  I'm

19   trying to think what other.  I know DHS has

20   been involved.

21       COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Okay.

22       MS. NAHIKIAN:  It's been a pretty broad

23   group from the City.

24       COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Okay.  All right.
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1   Appreciate that.  Thank you.

2       MS. NAHIKIAN:  You know, the largest

3   number of women in our system has been

4   domestically abused.  And we keep a

5   full-time person in our intake center that

6   can screen for domestic abuse.  We're

7   getting ready to do special training with

8   all of our workers in shelters and our

9   housing facilities to help them more readily

10   spot issues of domestic abuse which are --

11   sometimes people can't talk about it.

12       COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Yeah.  They won't

13   talk about it.  I know that often.  I

14   remember years ago there was a concern with

15   a bill we did to give people some -- victims

16   time off to deal with the issues around

17   domestic violence.  And some concern was

18   raised that people would lie about that they

19   were victims of domestic violence.  I said,

20   that's not the problem that they lie about

21   that.  The problem is they don't tell you

22   when they really are victims.

23       But again, I appreciate all you do in

24   that effort, too.
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1       Councilman Jones.

2       COUNCILMAN JONES:  I just want to thank

3   you, Mr. Chairman, for all your work in

4   lobbying you and Kenyatta and Councilwoman

5   Blackwell do to deal with domestic violence

6   and also homelessness in general.  Thank you

7   guys for what you do.  Seven years I've been

8   here, I been able -- my first constituent

9   service case after all of the confetti had

10   fallen to the ground and sworn me in, the

11   people were sitting at the little party we

12   had outside my office.  Little family.

13   First case I got was a homeless case.  They

14   told me, yeah, party was nice, but we don't

15   have anywhere to go.

16       I'll never forget that.  And I thank you

17   for being responsive.  They sent over a team

18   and we got them -- it was almost like a

19   salesman at a store.  I wanted to solve my

20   first case.  And thanks to you guys, I've

21   been able to do that.  So, thank you for

22   what you do.

23       Let me ask a few questions.  How many

24   homeless people are there in the City of
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1   Philadelphia?

2       MS. NAHIKIAN:  There a couple of ways to

3   answer the question.  But if you count

4   everybody that is in shelter and everybody

5   that is privately placed in shelter or

6   supportive housing, about 15,000.

7       COUNCILMAN JONES:  15,000.  Of that

8   15,000, how many then wind up recurring

9   recipients of shelter service, or how many

10   matriculate out into some form of permanent

11   housing?

12       MS. NAHIKIAN:  The majority once they're

13   in the system do move out.  The repeats, I

14   don't really have -- I'll have to get back

15   to you on that.

16       COUNCILMAN JONES:  It's an interesting

17   statistic.  We are successfully

18   transitioning them into permanent housing,

19   that's one thing.  If they are coming back

20   because of circumstances, we need to address

21   it differently.

22       MS. NAHIKIAN:  And we know that happens.

23       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Okay.  What I'm

24   intrigued about is some of the foresight
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1   that you had on preventing homelessness.  I

2   understand there's a program.  And we've

3   used it actually where if you find out

4   someone's in imminent circumstances where

5   they are going to be evicted or things like

6   that, you step up to try to prevent that

7   because it's cheaper to keep them in place

8   then to actually shelter them through the

9   system.  Is that close to correct?

10       MS. NAHIKIAN:  That's absolutely --

11       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Can you describe that

12   program, please?

13       MS. NAHIKIAN:  That's absolutely

14   correct.  Our Housing Prevention Program can

15   step in when a family is facing eviction.

16   For the most part, it's very low income

17   families.  In fact, it's always very low

18   income families.

19       And the events that trigger eviction are

20   interestingly enough reduction of hours of

21   work.  Someone who suddenly gets reduced to

22   20 hours a week from 40, a family event like

23   needing to provide money for a burial or a

24   catastrophic event.  And sometimes we just
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1   have families who spend badly, and they may

2   have not budgeted correctly.

3       We do step in to prevent them from being

4   evicted with funds generally not more than a

5   thousand dollars per family.  And the

6   families generally have to pay down some of

7   their arrears to match that.

8       In FY15, we have assisted I think 400 --

9   a total of 689 families to date with either

10   security deposits because they're moving

11   into a new unit, rent to forestall evictions

12   or funds to assist with mortgage to stop a

13   mortgage foreclosure.

14       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Generally, how much

15   money out of your budget goes towards those

16   efforts?

17       MS. NAHIKIAN:  I'm not sure about the

18   exact percentage, but I think the funding --

19   what's about 3 million percentage of 90

20   something.  It's a small percentage of the

21   budget.  And we know -- we know that it's

22   effective.

23       COUNCILMAN JONES:  My point in asking

24   the question is that find out that
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1   percentage and provide it to the Chair.  I'm

2   of the opinion that if you do the cost

3   analysis, it's cheaper to keep them.  And if

4   we can be penny wise and pound foolish, I

5   think we should appropriate more money

6   towards that end as opposed to catching them

7   on the back end and taking them through the

8   entire system, which is more financially

9   burdensome to the taxpayer.  I mean, even my

10   most conservative colleagues would argue and

11   be able to agree, actually, that if we can

12   do a thousand dollars here versus five

13   thousand, ten thousand dollars on the other

14   end makes sense.

15       And I realize this because at the middle

16   of the year, it's probably a lot of demand

17   for that.  And it's gone by the middle of

18   the year.  We are winding up spending even

19   more at the tail end.

20       If you can justify that in a

21   quantitative manner, there might be some

22   support for that.  That guy right up there

23   is a soft touch for helping people.  Maybe

24   we can convince him and eight others.
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1       MS. NAHIKIAN:  We will be glad to

2   provide that information.

3       COUNCILMAN JONES:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

4       COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Thank you,

5   Councilman.

6       Councilwoman Blackwell.

7       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.  Let

8   me say thank you and thank the whole team

9   whom I have known forever for the great job

10   you are doing.  Let me ask you again.  Can

11   you repeat those numbers.

12       We know we're saying we're going to get

13   rid of homeless Vets.  When?

14       MS. NAHIKIAN:  November 11, 2015.  There

15   about 1,538 identified homeless Vets.  We

16   have housed a few over 900.  We know where

17   about 400 of the 600 left are because they

18   are in shelter and ready to move into

19   permanent supportive housing.  So, we have a

20   little over 200 that we are looking for.

21       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  That's great.

22   Give me the other statistics you mentioned

23   for me.  16?  17?

24       MS. NAHIKIAN:  Oh, ending family
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1   homelessness in 20 -- wait a minute.  Let me

2   make sure.

3       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  I didn't know

4   if I live long enough for this day.  I'm

5   writing these statistics down.

6       MS. NAHIKIAN:  The federal goals are to

7   end chronic homelessness in 2017, family

8   homelessness, excuse me, in 2016 -- family

9   homelessness in 2017 and youth homelessness

10   in 2020.  I'll be glad to forward some

11   information about those goals.

12       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.  I

13   would appreciate that.

14       Again, thank you.  And thanks to the

15   whole team.  All the folks who you worked

16   with over the years.  Thank you.

17       MS. NAHIKIAN:  Thank you, Councilwoman.

18       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thanks.

19       COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:  Thank you,

20   Councilwoman.

21       Again, thank you for all the work you

22   do.  It's obviously very important part of

23   the City.

24       No further questions, that concludes our
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1   hearing for today.  Again, thank you all

2   very much.  This Committee will be continued

3   until next Tuesday, May 5, 2015 at

4   10:00 a.m.

5       Correction everybody.  This Committee

6   will stand in recess until five o'clock

7   today, at which time we will have Public

8   Testimony here in Room 400, City Hall.

9   Thank you.

10 (Committee of the Whole recessed at 4:00 p.m.)

11                    -  -  -

12   (Public Testimony commences at 5:00 p.m.)

13       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Good evening.

14   We thank all of you for coming and we are

15   very, very happy to have you here tonight to

16   testify.  This is a continuation of the

17   Public Hearing of the Committee of the

18   Whole.

19       Public testimony ground rules.  We are

20   here this evening to hear from you about the

21   Proposed 2016 Operating and Capital Budgets

22   and where you believe the City should focus

23   it's spending priorities.  To ensure that

24   there's an opportunity for all here this
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1   evening to be heard, certain ground rules

2   have been established as follows.

3       Number one, your testimony should be

4   about the budget and proposed spending

5   priorities.  Copies are available on the

6   table where you signed in.

7       Two, all speakers must sign up in order

8   to testify.  If you have not already signed

9   up, please do so now by signing your name on

10   the list at the same table to my left.  Your

11   name will be called in the order in which

12   you signed up.  You will have up to three

13   minutes to speak.  In order to be fair and

14   give the public an opportunity to speak, we

15   intend to hold to the three-minute limit.

16       Finally, we have a timer that will be

17   set to three minutes.  When the timer

18   buzzes, please complete your sentence and

19   allow the next speaker to approach the

20   microphone.

21       Ms. Lewis, please read the name of our

22   first speaker.

23       MS. LEWIS:  I will call them in groups

24   of three.
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1       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.

2       MS. LEWIS:  Bob Previdi; Waffiyyah

3   Murray and Sarah Stuart.

4       MR. PREVIDI:  Can we have Cindy go in

5   the place of Sarah Stuart?

6       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  We can't hear

7   you, Bob.

8       MR. PREVIDI:  Can we have somebody else

9   go in the place of Sarah?

10       Hi.  It's Bob Previdi from the Bicycle

11   Coalition.  Sarah Stuart is not able to

12   attend.  We'd like to have Principal Cindy

13   join us.

14       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Yes.  Just

15   identify yourself for the record before you

16   speak.  Thank you.

17       MR. PREVIDI:  Why don't you go ahead.

18       MS. FARLINO:  Good afternoon and thank

19   you for the opportunity to speak.  I'm here

20   today to really urge you -- louder?

21       Oh, my name is Cindy Farlino.  I'm the

22   principal of --

23       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Say that again.

24       MS. FARLINO:  Cindy Farlino, Farlino.  I
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1   am the principal of Meredith Elementary

2   School in Queen Village.  I'm here today to

3   urge you to consider restoring the funding

4   to the Safe Routes Philly.  We have been

5   working with Safe Routes Philly since 2012

6   as a school.  We are one of six schools that

7   received a grant to support a biking

8   program.  And I just want to tell you from

9   our point of view, it has changed our school

10   in immeasurable ways as I know it has the

11   other five schools.

12       We have bike to school days once a week.

13   Well over 100 people take place,

14   kindergarten through eighth graders.  We are

15   able to do an entire science curriculum that

16   has to do with environmental impact, that

17   has to do with science fair project, energy

18   conservation.  And all of that happened

19   because of the grant we got from Safe

20   Philly -- from Safe Routes Philly.

21       I also want to say that I think because

22   it's really important that our City, and I'm

23   looking at the signs behind you, have a

24   clear sustainability both policy and
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1   problematic approach, that this is very much

2   in keeping with who are the future citizens.

3   Do they decide to ride a bike instead of

4   getting in the car?  Do they decide to walk

5   instead of using transportation that would

6   use up energy?

7       For us and Meredith Elementary School

8   this has been an inspirational journey.  The

9   money was incredible.  We were able to

10   outfit kids who could not afford a helmets,

11   safety vests, bells on their bikes, all

12   kinds of things that make this an amazing

13   and engaging youth program that I think has

14   changed our schools and the other schools

15   that are involved.

16       So, I urge you again to restore the cuts

17   in this program.  Thank you.

18       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.

19       MS. MURRAY:  Hello.  My name is

20   Waffiyyah Murray, and I coordinate the Safe

21   Routes Philly Program for the Bicycle

22   Coalition for Greater Philadelphia.  If

23   you're not familiar, Safe Routes Philly is a

24   program.  And we promote walking and biking
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1   as a fun and healthy form of transportation

2   from Philadelphia Elementary Schools.  We

3   really promote safety, making sure that

4   students are safe when they're going to and

5   from school.

6       We are here today because last month we

7   learned that the Health Department zeroed

8   out it's $50,000 contribution to our Safe

9   Routes Philly Program.  And that cut would

10   take place in their 2016 budget, which goes

11   into effect July 1.  With the elimination of

12   that $50,000, that's half of our Safe Routes

13   Philly budget, which is $100,000.  And

14   without that money from the Health

15   Department, we would be unable to continue

16   funding our Safe Routes Philly program.  It

17   would have to be eliminated completely.

18       Just to give you a few things about Safe

19   Routes Philly.  Since 2010, we have worked

20   with over 75,000 students in 133 schools.

21   And we have trained over 150 PE teachers on

22   our Safe Routes Philly bike and pedestrian

23   safety curriculum.  We worked with schools

24   to provide one-on-one training with teachers
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1   and school officials on our curriculum and

2   other programs.

3       We have assisted 22 schools with

4   walkability audits.  That's where we work

5   with the City and the school to check,

6   identify physical changes that can increase

7   safety for students going to and from

8   schools.  We work with schools to create

9   safe routes map so that students know the

10   safest routes to take when going to and from

11   school.  We work with schools to implement

12   walking clubs and biking clubs.

13       We promote district-wide Walk and Bike

14   To School Day.  This year we have 15 schools

15   sign up for Walk To School Day in October.

16   And we had nine schools register for Walk to

17   School Day next month.  And that's the most

18   that Philadelphia has ever had, so we are

19   really excited about that.  And we just work

20   with schools to encourage anything around

21   walking and biking and physical activity.

22       As we all know, it's important to

23   promote that among students with the rates

24   of obesity and childhood diabetes.  It's
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1   important that they get around and are

2   physically active.  And it's important that

3   they are being safe when going to and from

4   school and just in their community.  So,

5   Safe Routes Philly is a very important

6   program.  So, I hope that you guys would

7   consider putting that money back into the

8   budget.

9       Thank you.

10       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.

11   Bob.

12       MR. PREVIDI:  Hi.  I'm Bob Previdi from

13   the Bicycle Coalition.  I'm not going to

14   reiterate the things that were said here,

15   but I just want to focus on a couple of key

16   points.

17       One is that the program is relatively

18   cheap given the outcomes, impacting 75,000

19   kids and 133 schools, public schools,

20   throughout the City I think is outstanding.

21   And when you think about that horrible case

22   where the four-year-old in Southwest was run

23   over because she happened to be running

24   between two cars, it's important that we
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1   teach our young people how to walk and bike

2   to school safely.

3       There was actually a story in -- on the

4   NPR Philly and in New York last year where

5   in just one year, 1,800 students were hit by

6   cars at dropoff and pickup time going to

7   school.  We all -- many of us know the chaos

8   that goes on around our public schools.  I

9   think it's a good idea that we train the

10   students to be aware about what they need to

11   be doing because clearly some of -- they're

12   not learning it from anywhere.

13       And this is one of those programs we all

14   know the problems that the School District

15   is under right now.  This is one of those

16   programs that if we can pull the money out

17   of transportation budget to help our

18   schools, we can.  So, we are looking for you

19   to put the $50,000 back into the Health

20   Department's budget so we can take advantage

21   of the other 50,000 that's provided by

22   NITSA, which is National Safety Program

23   coming out of the Federal Government.

24       We hope you'll reconsider and get that
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1   money back in.  Thank you very much.

2       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you very

3   much.  Any questions?

4                 (No questions.)

5       Thank you.  Thank you very much.

6       MS. LEWIS:  The next three speakers:

7   Hans Kersten, Judith Robinson and Jeannine

8   Lisitski.  Hans Kersten, Judith Robinson and

9   Jeannine Lisitski.

10       How about Beth McConnell and Margaret

11   Lukoski?

12      (Witnesses approach witness table.)

13       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Good evening.

14   Please give us your name for the record and

15   begin your testimony.

16       MS. LISITSKI:  Jeannine Lisitski,

17   Executive Director, Women Against Abuse.

18       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Go ahead.

19       MS. LISITSKI:  Good evening.  We

20   appreciate the ongoing support of City

21   Council in addressing issues concerning

22   family violence.  As many of you are aware,

23   Women Against Abuse is the largest domestic

24   violence service provider and advocate in
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1   Pennsylvania serving approximately 15,000

2   individuals each year.  And in addition to

3   those we're able to serve, last year we had

4   to turn away 12,000 who were in need of safe

5   shelter due to our 100-bed safe haven

6   operating consistently at full capacity.

7       Thanks to you, we did open our second

8   safe haven this fiscal year.  But given that

9   we will still not be able to serve all the

10   victims of domestic violence that come

11   forward in need of a myriad of services, we

12   are constantly working to intervene earlier

13   in the cycle of violence.  Understanding

14   that there is up to a 75 percent overlap

15   between domestic violence and child

16   maltreatment, creating safe family, safe

17   children and safe communities will require

18   us to work collaboratively to address the

19   ways in which domestic violence interacts

20   with all systems.

21       For over a year, we have been working

22   attentively with the Department of Human

23   Services to infuse domestic violence inform

24   care into their practice in a way that would

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

http://www.novapdf.com/


Committee of the  Whole 
April 29, 2015

(215) 504-4622
STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 271

1   be sustainable.  DHS has been a supportive

2   and open partner.  To that end, we want to

3   emphasize four interventions that we've

4   created in collaboration with DHS that we

5   hope to be able to identify funding for in

6   Fiscal Year 16.

7       One is continued funding for the Safe

8   Families Legal Project.  This provides legal

9   expertise to support DHS through direct

10   intervention with families in their care and

11   consultation for DHS staff.

12       Second, implementing a comprehensive

13   domestic violence training and evaluation

14   plan for child welfare workers that includes

15   all CUA staff.

16       Third, preventing teen dating violence

17   among the highest risk population through an

18   expansion of our school-based healthy

19   relationships curriculum to the highest risk

20   children.

21       And lastly, the largest of these

22   initiatives, implementing our Safe Families

23   Equals Safe Children Project that would

24   expand the capacity of both DHS and the CUAs
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1   to protect children by embedding a part-time

2   domestic violence specialist into each CUA

3   to serve as a resident expert on the

4   intersection between domestic violence and

5   child welfare.

6       I just want to thank you again for all

7   of your support.

8       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.  We

9   thank you for all the work that you do.

10   Thank you.

11       MS. ZUKOSKI:  Good evening, Members of

12   City Council.  My name is Margaret Zukoksi.

13   And I'm the Associate Director of the

14   Pennsylvania Council of Children Youth and

15   Family Services, a statewide provider

16   association that represents private agencies

17   that deliver a vast array of services to

18   Philadelphia's children and youth including

19   prevention services such as out of school

20   time, family intervention services, in-home

21   services to families and an array of foster

22   care services.

23       Today you heard from Commissioner -- DHS

24   Commissioner Vanessa Garrett Harley much
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1   about Improving Outcomes of Children

2   initiative.  I want to follow up on the

3   Commissioner's testimony and talk to you

4   about the providers perspective about the

5   IOC initiative in Philadelphia.  I'd also

6   like to take this opportunity to remind

7   everyone that private providers in

8   Philadelphia have been delivering services

9   through DHS contracts for many decades to

10   citizens of Philadelphia.

11       At this moment, DHS private providers

12   and those we serve are experiencing some

13   very serious challenges.  And you heard

14   earlier today from our commissioner that the

15   number of active cases in DHS has exploded

16   over the past two years.  Currently, over

17   two years the number of cases -- active

18   cases has risen 46 percent.  Two years ago

19   there were approximately 4,000 children in

20   placement.  And currently, there are 5,400

21   children in the foster care system.

22   Simultaneously, the number of children

23   receiving in-home services has grown almost

24   50 percent.
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1       Why are we seeing these increase in

2   numbers?  Well, there are a number of

3   reasons that we can look at right now to see

4   why our numbers going up so dramatically.

5   First of all, as Commissioner Garrett Harley

6   addressed, there were significant changes in

7   Pennsylvania Child Protective Service Law

8   this year.  In fact, 27 separate pieces of

9   legislation were interacted.  What this did

10   is it changed and expanded the definition of

11   child abuse, the definition of perpetrator

12   and who is required to be a mandated

13   reporter.  As a result of these changes, we

14   have seen and I -- Commissioner again spoke

15   to this -- a dramatic increase in the number

16   of reports coming into the DHS hotline.

17       Additionally, along with the number of

18   reports, when we compare the first two

19   quarters of last fiscal year to this fiscal

20   year, we have seen a 13 percent increase in

21   the spike of cases.  That's not the only

22   reason that we are seeing an increase in the

23   number of kids/children in placement.  Along

24   with the increase in numbers coming in,
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1   there has been a decrease in the number of

2   children exiting the system.

3       This is not a new phenomena.  Several

4   years now providers, DHS, advocates and the

5   court have been addressing issues of delays

6   in court hearing.  This is a result in

7   several years ago there was a effort to

8   increase the number of hearings that each

9   child and family would have in a year.  We

10   went from six-month hearings to 90-day

11   hearings.  The 90-day hearing along with the

12   increase and the numbers of care have backed

13   up our court system.

14       I also want to reference that other

15   systems, other jurisdictions around the

16   country have implemented lead case

17   management models like Philadelphia's IOC

18   model.  When these are implemented, it's

19   very natural and expected that systems will

20   go through an adjustment period.  And we

21   have gone through an adjustment period and

22   we're still going through that adjustment

23   period as the last five CUAs under IOC have

24   been on board for less than a year.
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1       As the number of kids in the system has

2   increased, we know DHS is faced with some

3   very hard choices.  How do they meet the

4   needs of all the children in the system?

5   How do they provide mandated services like

6   foster care and non-mandated prevention

7   services?  We feel very strongly that we

8   need to keep both levels of service,

9   mandated and non-mandated services, as we

10   move through with this system

11   transformation.

12       Already we have heard that DHS might be

13   contemplating cutting prevention services

14   this upcoming fiscal year.  We saw some out

15   of school time slots cut already.  This is a

16   very shortsighted view and we would really

17   strongly advocate against any system

18   changes.  And I'm going to finish up.

19       We have some suggestions from the

20   provider community.  We must bring all

21   stakeholders together to address this

22   increase of children in the system.

23   Providers who are delivering services under

24   the IOC system have several recommendations.
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1       First of all, again, do not cut

2   prevention services.  They will be the first

3   line of keeping children out of the system.

4       Secondly, we must reduce IOC CUA case

5   manager case loads.  Recently, DHS raised

6   the case loads for the case managers from 10

7   to 13 families.  That's about 30 children

8   now in each case manager's case load.

9   That's double what national recommendations

10   suggest.  Fifteen children is recommended by

11   the Child Welfare League of America Council

12   on Accreditation.  We also believe that CUAs

13   need to have the opportunity and flexibility

14   to implement some innovative programming

15   such as supporting foster care parents and

16   foster children in the home.

17       These are not budget neutral

18   recommendations.  And at this point in the

19   state funding cycle, we know that the state

20   has already allocated dollars from DHS.

21   It's a complicated funding stream.  They're

22   federal dollars, state dollars and you're

23   providing $102 of local match.  We are here

24   today to say we hope that the City considers
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1   contributing more dollars to support the IOC

2   and CUA agencies as we go through this

3   period of growth in Philadelphia.  This

4   is -- your budget reflects your values.  And

5   what is more valuable than the children in

6   our City.

7       This is a critical juncture.  And again,

8   we recommend that we look at how we are

9   allocating dollars in DHS so that more can

10   reach the folks that need the services and

11   that, again, we might have to consider

12   raising the City's share to meet the need.

13       Thank you very much.

14       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  You're welcome.

15       MS. McCONNELL:  Good evening.  My name

16   is Beth McConnell, Policy Director at the

17   Philadelphia Association Community

18   Development Corporations, PACDC.  Thank you

19   for the opportunity to testify, Councilwoman

20   Blackwell, Councilman Goode, Councilman

21   Neilson.

22       I am going to submit some longer written

23   testimony, so I will abbreviate.  I just

24   want to note some of the materials that I'm
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1   handing out focus on our neighborhood

2   commercial corridor programs, a map of our

3   corridor programs, a map of our neighborhood

4   advisory committee.  I'm going to talk

5   about, as well.

6       In general, PACDC is urging that the

7   City provide a million dollars in new

8   general fund revenue for our commercial

9   corridor programs, but I am going to focus

10   my three minutes on the Store Front

11   Improvement Program tonight as well as the

12   Neighborhood Advisory Committee Program.

13       SIP, store front improvement program,

14   has been a dramatically powerful tool to

15   transform our neighborhood commercial

16   corridors, but the program is at risk right

17   now.  SIP provides grants to small

18   neighborhood-based businesses to fix up

19   their facades.  It is leading to an increase

20   in sales revenue that the businesses are

21   seeing as well as leveraging other private

22   investment on our corridors.  But the

23   program is in danger.

24       The Commerce Department was forced to
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1   revise the guidelines in December in order

2   to comply with federal rules that require

3   paying contractors prevailing wage if more

4   than $2,000 in federal funds are involved.

5   And then also submit very complex and time

6   consuming paperwork to provide approved

7   compliance.  And since these new guidelines

8   were put in place, applications to SIP have

9   dropped by more than half.  In fact, just

10   last -- just two weeks ago, the Tacony CDC

11   had to cancel plans to do 11 store fronts on

12   Torresdale Avenue because the prevailing

13   wage bids were just too high for the

14   businesses to comply with.

15       Some neighborhood-based contractors are

16   simply declining to even bid on the projects

17   because of the complex paperwork for just a

18   few thousand dollars worth of work.  We do

19   believe that contractors should be paid a

20   fair wage for their work.  But the federal

21   rules are leading to fewer jobs and are

22   overly burdensome for small projects that

23   are valued at just a few thousand dollars.

24       The only way to avoid the federal rules
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1   and design a storefront improvement program

2   that works for Philadelphia small businesses

3   is to use a different source of funding.

4   So, we're calling on the Council and Mayor

5   Nutter to put 531,000 in general funds to

6   the SIP program.  That would free up federal

7   funds for the Neighborhood Advisory

8   Committee program.  So, we're urging that

9   the freed up federal funds go to help

10   strengthen and expand the NAC program that

11   has suffered more than $700,000 in federal

12   cuts just over the last few years.

13       And in closing, this is a program that

14   is literally helping people save their homes

15   from foreclosures, distributing turkeys on

16   Thanksgiving, helping people find jobs and

17   affordable homes.  We really need to bolster

18   that program or restore some of the cuts

19   that have decimated it.

20       Thank you for the opportunity to

21   testify.

22       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Do we have any

23   questions?

24       Councilman Goode.  I'm sorry, Councilman
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1   Goode.

2       COUNCILMAN GOODE:  Thank you, Madam

3   Chair.  Just one question for Ms. McConnell

4   just for clarity of the record.  I'm

5   supportive of the request.  I just wanted to

6   say for the record that I think the request

7   assumes that we are and will be at least

8   half a million dollars above the mandate

9   that 5 percent of CDBG money go toward CDC

10   development.  I don't want to see us fall

11   below that.  We are above that, have been

12   above that, I mean, at 5 percent threshold.

13   But I don't want us to get into a pull where

14   on an annual basis where are pulling between

15   economic development needs and housing needs

16   where we set aside at least 5 percent of

17   that money for CDC economic development.

18       If this assumes that we are at least a

19   half a million dollars above, I'm definitely

20   supportive of the proposal.

21       MS. McCONNELL:  Thank you, Councilman.

22       COUNCILMAN GOODE:  Thank you, Madam

23   Chair.

24       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you very
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1   much.  Any other questions?

2            (No further questions.)

3       Thank you very much.

4       MS. LEWIS:  The next presenter is

5   Charles Younger, David Fare and Angel

6   Rodriguez.  Charles Younger, David Fair and

7   Angel Rodriguez.

8       Is Kelly Davis here?

9       MS. DAVIS:  Yes.

10      (Witnesses approach witness table.)

11       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Good evening.

12   Thank you very much.  Identify yourself for

13   the record and begin your testimony.  It's

14   nice to see you.

15       MS. DAVIS:  Kelly Davis, Executive

16   Director of Lutheran Settlement House.

17       Hi, Councilmembers.  Thank you so much

18   for having me.  This is actually my first

19   time testifying in front of the City

20   Council, so I'm excited to be here.  I'm the

21   Executive Director of Lutheran Settlement

22   House.  We are a multi-services citywide

23   agency.

24       In Fishtown we run domestic violence
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1   program, which includes medical advocacy in

2   the main hospitals in Philadelphia.  And a

3   STAR Program and afterschool program and

4   summer Work Ready Program.  We also have an

5   adult literacy program, an urban farm that

6   links our teens with our senior center.  And

7   what I'm here to talk about, though, today

8   is our family shelter in West Philadelphia

9   that Councilwoman Blackwell is very familiar

10   with, Jane Adams place.

11       We need more money.  We have not had any

12   increase in our budget since we've opened.

13   That's a little bit of an exaggeration.  A

14   few years ago, we had $9,000 more to run our

15   family shelter.  What that has meant is that

16   we have had to cut positions.  We no longer

17   have a maintenance -- full-time maintenance

18   person.  We no longer have an assistant

19   director.  We have not really given raises.

20   But any raises that we have had to do, has

21   meant collapsing positions.

22       We run a shelter for 100 people for 365

23   days a year on less than $1.1 million, so

24   that's $1.09 million for 25 staff, all of
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1   the food, all of the maintenance,

2   everything.  So, it's really not enough.  We

3   need some money to meet the $12 an hour.  We

4   need about $24,000.  We went a couple years

5   ago to 10.88.  Please help us.

6       Our courtyard is closed because of

7   leaks.  We're begging for any small amount

8   of money.

9       Thank you very much.

10       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.  Mr.

11   Fair, good to see you.

12       MR. FAIR:  Good afternoon.  My name is

13   David Fair, F-a-i-r.  I'm Deputy Chief

14   Executive Officer for Turning Points for

15   Children.  I'm delivering this testimony

16   this afternoon on behalf of the seven

17   agencies contracted with the Department of

18   Human Services to provide community umbrella

19   agencies family services as part of the

20   Improving Outcomes for Children initiative.

21       We testify today in full support of DHS

22   and the IOC initiative and with the request

23   that this Council invest additional City

24   general funds to ensure its success.
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1       This historic advance in the delivery of

2   child welfare services, which is still in

3   its infancy is being watched across the

4   nation.  As child welfare across the country

5   seeks to redesign itself to support 21st

6   century families with 21st century

7   solutions.  DHS and its leaders are to be

8   commended for its courage in recognizing the

9   limitations of past approaches to protecting

10   an advancing the safety and well being of

11   our most vulnerable children.  But DHS has

12   been hampered in maximizing the full

13   potential of the IOC project by a number of

14   factors far beyond its own control.

15       The Commissioner and the Pennsylvania

16   Council have already shared with you the

17   data on the explosion in new demand for

18   child welfare services.  Add to these

19   children the number of children requiring

20   foster care services has jumped at and the

21   number of foster families available to them

22   has stayed relatively constant.  Meaning,

23   that we are running out of foster homes in

24   which to place these children.
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1       All of this is happening in a system

2   that receives significantly less funding

3   today than it did ten years ago.  DHS is

4   doing the best it can within limited

5   resources.  But as a result of this lack of

6   resources, case loads continue to increase

7   endanger the very children we are charged to

8   protect.  This lack of resources for child

9   welfare services is a tragedy waiting to

10   happen.

11       The failure to adequately fund child

12   welfare services has created a crisis

13   similar to that affecting our public

14   education system.  But unlike the public

15   schools, the fate of the almost 11,000

16   children in the child welfare system is not

17   the stuff of front page headlines or mayoral

18   debates.

19       This is an emergency, one that worsens

20   Philadelphia's ability to protect the

21   thousands of vulnerable children charged to

22   its care.  With federal and state agencies

23   failing to do their part, it falls on the

24   City with its own funds to fill the gap.  We
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1   strongly encourage you to increase the

2   City's portion of the DHS budget to ensure

3   that these children are safe and their well

4   being is ensured.

5       Thank you for allowing me to testify.

6       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.

7       Mr. Rodriguez.

8       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Good evening, esteemed

9   Councilmembers.  Thank you for having me.

10   My name is Angel Rodriguez, Vice President

11   of Asociacion of Puertorriquenos En Marcha,

12   APM for short.  I'm here before you today in

13   support of an allocation of additional

14   $1 million in general funds to support our

15   neighborhood small businesses and commercial

16   corridors and the NAC Program, Neighborhood

17   Assistance Committees.  I have submitted

18   written testimony so I will be brief and hit

19   just the high points.

20       The NAC program is a critical program in

21   terms of redevelopment in our neighborhoods

22   throughout Philadelphia.  As many of you may

23   know, the NAC program connects residents to

24   services that will help them stop
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1   foreclosures on their homes, find them --

2   help them find affordable homes, help them

3   with their heat, address food and security

4   which is a growing concern in Philadelphia

5   and find employment.

6       It's also an area where Philadelphians

7   are able to understand and involve

8   themselves with what's happening in

9   Philadelphia as it goes with physical

10   development.  It's very important as we

11   become a world class city and we have

12   transformative neighborhoods, that we are

13   actually bringing our current residents into

14   that new city and understand what the impact

15   of new development in the City is.  That

16   happens throughout the -- with the NAC

17   Program.

18       Done well, a NAC program is also an

19   opportunity to leverage other resources and

20   funds.  Typically, you will see a NAC

21   program funded at about $75,000.  In our

22   situation at APM, we've been able to

23   leverage that 75,000 to bring in an

24   additional half million dollars which has
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1   allowed us to do crime prevention programs,

2   lead and healthy home services, energy

3   savings initiative and basic systems repairs

4   and numerous health initiatives.

5       We ask you today, myself and my

6   colleague Beth McConnell, to actually

7   reallocate an additional million dollars.

8       Thank you.

9       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you very

10   much.  Are there any questions?

11       Councilman Neilson?

12       COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Thank you, Madam

13   Chair.

14       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Mr. Rodriguez,

15   thank you for your work with -- in housing

16   and rebuilding.  Thank you.

17       COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  The NAC program,

18   can you tell us how many people are on the

19   waiting list right now to get help and

20   assistance in some of the maintenance

21   problems with their homes?

22       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  You mean in terms of

23   basic systems repair?

24       COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Basic systems
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1   repair.

2       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Well, I would say that

3   in this past year in conjunction with our

4   NAC coordinator, we've been able to provide

5   20 houses this year.  In terms of basic

6   systems repair, I can tell you that in

7   eastern North Philadelphia, we have about

8   twelve blocks that need more.  So, you

9   figure about 16 -- on one side of a block

10   about 16 units.

11       COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Out on the trail

12   someone told me that what you have projected

13   on your list to do currently, that would

14   take you two and a half years with current

15   funding levels that you have just to try

16   and --

17       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Just to have an impact,

18   yes, correct.

19       COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  I just wanted to

20   put that on the record because we're not

21   funding enough to stretch that out.

22       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Clearly not enough.

23   Especially when you look at the impact of

24   what immediate equity means to homeowners
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1   and senior homeowners in Philadelphia where

2   you have basic systems repairs.  And

3   immediately, they can weather the storm

4   where taxes go up and you have new

5   development in certain neighborhoods.  It

6   actually helps knit the community together

7   and allow us to have mixed-income

8   communities in Philly.

9       COUNCILMAN NEILSON:  Thank you, Madam

10   Chair.  I have no further questions.  Thank

11   you for your testimony today.

12       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you very

13   much.  Any other questions?

14            (No further questions.)

15       Thank you very much.

16       MS. LEWIS:  Maurice D. Jenes --

17       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Jones.

18       MS. LEWIS:  Maurice Jones.  I'm going to

19   read the names of folks who have signed up

20   that didn't come to the table.  Sarah

21   Stuart, Sarah Stuart?  Hans Kersten, Hans

22   Kersten?  Judith Robinson, Judith Robinson?

23   Charles Younger, Charles Younger?

24      (Witness approaches witness table.)
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1       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Good afternoon,

2   Mr. Jones.  Always a pleasure, sir.

3       MR. JONES:  Always a pleasure to see

4   you, Councilwoman.

5       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.

6       MR. JONES:  I have prepared testimony

7   and materials for Sergeant of the Arms.

8       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.

9       MR. JONES:  There's one for each

10   Councilmember present.

11       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.

12       MR. JONES:  I will start off.  My name

13   is Maurice Jones.  I'm coming from the Henry

14   C. Lea School in West Philadelphia.  My

15   testimony is concerning the Safe Routes

16   program.

17       Starting off, this is a decision that I

18   regret the most of my mayoral service.  That

19   was something said by Mayor Nutter.  These

20   words were spoken by Mayor Nutter in the

21   beginning of March in his last budget

22   address.  He was referring to libraries.  In

23   an attempt to reduce spending across the

24   government, he attempted to close 11
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1   libraries based on incomplete information by

2   well meaning members of his administration.

3       As we come into 2016 with the

4   expectation of internal budget cuts at the

5   Philadelphia Department of Public Health,

6   which will effect safe routes, the words

7   rang true for this program, as well.  The

8   fact that $50,000 in cuts will be

9   devastating to programming which will create

10   hardship for those who can least afford it.

11   As we found with the decision to close

12   libraries, there are nuances which are not

13   being looked at in this decision.

14       This cut in Safe Routes will also cause

15   the loss of matching NHTSA funding.  The

16   communities that most need those services

17   have no recourse to replace them.  So if you

18   look, there is an attachment on there of the

19   community health improvement plan for 2014

20   to 2018.  And one of the key priorities is

21   increasing physical activity among children

22   and adults.

23       So although violent crime in the City

24   has gone down over the years, there are
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1   still dangerous and concerns with children

2   traveling to school.  In the last few years,

3   24 schools were closed which created

4   additional travel in some of the

5   communities.  Safe Routes was a resource

6   which was geared on making that travel

7   safer.  Lea was one of the schools affected

8   by these closings by having the Wilson

9   school merge with it.  Children have to

10   travel past extremely busy streets and cross

11   some of the top ten most traveled SEPTA

12   routes.  This created a danger for students

13   and increased stress for parents.

14       Safe Routes is a program whose mission

15   is to lessen the safety issues with children

16   traveling to school.  It is also geared

17   towards helping to train them in best

18   practices of walking and riding which in

19   turn directly affects their physical being.

20   And there is a safety report concerning the

21   merger of the two schools that will

22   highlight that.

23       Considering the fact that 54 percent of

24   children, Philadelphia children, age 6 to 11
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1   are overweight or obese with an outstanding

2   70 percent in North Philadelphia, this is

3   more than just an issue; but, in fact, a

4   crisis.  To take away a program which could

5   directly affect change in those numbers is

6   ill conceived especially considering the

7   nominal costs of this program.  As we look

8   at budgets and what is important or not

9   important, we must set priorities.

10       With the Philadelphia Department of

11   Public Health making children's physical

12   activity one of its priority for the

13   2014/2018 that is a great start.  To cut a

14   program from the budget which could

15   economically facilitate this could be a

16   decision which would be in the future called

17   "the decision I regret the most."

18       So, I thank you -- I ask for the health

19   and safety of the children of Philadelphia

20   that this funding be restored.  And I thank

21   you for allowing me to testify.

22       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you,

23   Mr. Jones.  And I thank you for fighting for

24   this since they closed Wilson school.  And
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1   any of you who know the area realized that

2   46 and Woodland where you have to cross

3   Woodland and Chester/Springfield get over to

4   Baltimore.  Then after you even get to

5   Baltimore as large as that intersection is,

6   you still got to find your way to Spruce

7   Street.  It's absolutely unbelievable.

8       We thank you for sticking with this.

9   And I don't know how we -- frankly, I don't

10   know how we survived this long because it's

11   just unconscionable that these little

12   children have to go that far.

13       Thank you.  Any questions for Mr. Jones?

14   I will be in touch with you on this again.

15   Thank you, sir.

16       MS. LEWIS:  Pastor Rob Harrison,

17   Stenton -- oh, Pastor Rob Harrison of

18   Stenton and Family Manor.

19       PASTOR HARRISON:  Good evening.

20       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Good evening.

21       PASTOR HARRISON:  I come this afternoon

22   on behalf of the homeless initiative and the

23   homeless family shelters.  I also come on

24   behalf of Bishop Ernest Carl Morris who is
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1   CEO of Stenton Family Manor.

2       Since 1991, Stenton Family Manor has

3   been a part of the homelessness in providing

4   homeless shelter for families within the

5   City of Philadelphia.  That has been since

6   1991.  Since that, we have been providing

7   not just for shelters but we have been one

8   of the only homeless family shelters that

9   have been providing shelter for teenagers

10   living with their parents.  We also have

11   been providing for homeless fathers who

12   wanted to be a part of their children's

13   family.

14       So, we have done pretty unique things.

15   The City of Philadelphia has been a great

16   asset to that.  However, since 2005, we have

17   been told under the budget that we are to be

18   able to survive with what is called equal

19   funding.  No addition.  Since that time, we

20   have been able -- we have had and been

21   forced to cut back on our providing shelter,

22   food, transportation for these homeless

23   individuals over 75 families, 250 people,

24   175 on the average individual children
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1   within the City of Philadelphia.

2       We have been told that we have to

3   receive cutbacks because of this.  I am

4   coming on behalf of Stenton Family Manor and

5   all of the other shelters that you may have

6   heard from today to ask that there be some

7   prohibition that would be allotted for some

8   type of increase for us.

9       Since 2004, we have had equal funding,

10   level funding and not one dime more.  Cost

11   of living has gone up, gas has gone up

12   astronomically but jobs have been decreasing

13   within us.  We are basically working on a

14   skeleton, and I mean skeleton, crew.  I have

15   a staff of individuals.  50 percent of my

16   staff which are approximately 52 people.

17   Approximately, 42 of them are ex or prior

18   homeless individuals who we have employed to

19   working with us.  However, with the way the

20   cost of living and the funding is going, we

21   may be forced to cut those people back that

22   they may be put back in the same recidivism

23   of being homeless again.

24       What I'm coming forth on behalf of
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1   Stenton Family Manor and the Office of

2   Supportive Housing is that you look at OSH

3   and some type of funding that we may be able

4   to be adequate in our level funding.  We

5   have received orders from the Mayor that we

6   are to raise our funding to become where we

7   first started back in 2004.  The average

8   person was being paid $8.25 an hour.  That

9   same individual is required to pay $12 an

10   hour now and potentially $12.30 come

11   January 2016.  That with the same

12   coordinates -- the same ordinance of us

13   having to work with the same equal level

14   funding that we have since 2004.

15       This is a very hard labor that has been

16   put on the shelters, Stenton Family Manor as

17   well.  We ask that you take into

18   consideration on this budget of some of the

19   acknowledgements that is needed to support

20   those who are homeless that we may be able

21   to have some type of increase knowing what

22   it is.  But I can't see us telling homeless

23   people or telling homeless families we can't

24   provide you with housing, jobs, funding or
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1   anything because we don't have enough.

2       I thank you for your time.

3       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you,

4   Pastor Harrison.  You have met with OSH?

5       PASTOR HARRISON:  Yes, ma'am.

6       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  All right.

7   Well, I will work on this with you and we

8   will see what we can do always.

9       PASTOR HARRISON:  Thank you,

10   Councilwoman.

11       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  Thank you.  How

12   is your family?

13       PASTOR HARRISON:  Everybody is fine.

14   Mom is 90.

15       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  My goodness.

16   Thank you.  This is a gentleman I've known

17   all his life.  Yes.  Thank God you still

18   have her.

19       PASTOR HARRISON:  Yes, ma'am.

20       MS. LEWIS:  Councilwoman, there are no

21   more speakers on the list.

22       COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL:  All right.  Is

23   there anyone else who would like to make a

24   statement or speak?  My colleagues okay?
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1       All right, having seen none, then this

2   Committee will stand in recess until

3   Tuesday, May 5, 2015 at ten o'clock a.m.  At

4   which time, we will reconvene here in Room

5   400, City Hall.

6       Thank you all.

7       (Committee of the Whole adjourned at

8   5:50 p.m.)
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1

2

3           C E R T I F I C A T I O N

4

5               I, hereby certify that the

6       proceedings and evidence noted are

7       contained fully and accurately in the

8       stenographic notes taken by me in the

9       foregoing matter, and that this is a

10       correct transcript of the same.

11

12

13         -----------------------------
      ANGELA M. KING, RPR

14       Court Reporter - Notary Public

15

16

17               (The foregoing certification of

18       this transcript does not apply to any

19       reproduction of the same by any means,

20       unless under the direct control and/or

21       supervision of the certifying reporter.)

22

23

24
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